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® bakertilly
Independent Auditors' Report

To the County Council of
County of Delaware, Pennsylvania

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmentai activities, the business-type
activity, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the County of Delaware, Pennsylvania (the "County"), as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the County's
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generaily accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal contra! relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the
financial statements of the aggregate discretely presented component units, comprised of the Delaware County
Solid Waste Authority, the Economic Development Oversight Board, the Delaware County Chester Waterfront
industrial Development Authority, and the Redevelopment Authority of the County of Delaware, which represent
100 percent of the assets, net position, and revenues of the discreteiy presented component units of
the County. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to
us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Delaware County Solid Waste
Authority, the Economic Development Oversight Board, the Redevelopment Authority of the County of
Delaware, and the Delaware County Chester Waterfront industrial Development Authority, is based solely on
the reports of the other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, in making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation
of the financia! statements En order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

Opinions

in our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financiai position of the governmental activities, the
business-type activity, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the County of Delaware, Pennsylvania, as of December 31, 2018, and
the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the respective
budgetary comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Baker Tilly Vlrchow Krause, LLP trading as Baker Tiily is a member of the global network of Baker Tiily International Ltd., the members
of which are separate and independent legal entities. ©2018 Baker TillyVirchowKrause, LLP

1



Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's
Discussion and Analysis ("MD&A") on pages 3 through 14, Schedule of Changes in Net Other Post-
Employment Benefit Liability and Related Ratios, Schedule of Changes En the County's Net Pension LiabHity
(Asset) and Related Ratios, Schedule of Employer Contributions, and Schedule of Investment Returns on
pages 71 through 74 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not
a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmentai Accounting Standards Board who
considers it to be an essential part of financiai reporting for placing the basic financiai statements in an
appropriate operationai, economic, or historica! context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We
do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financiai statements that collectively
comprise the County's basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards on pages 75
through 77, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulation Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards and the schedules of City of
Philadelphia Contract number 1820021 and 1920029, Schedules of Source and Status of Funds, Schedules of
Program Expenditures, Reconciliation Schedules and Schedules of Program Income on pages 99 through 106,
as required by the City of Philadelphia Subrecipient Audit Guide (collectively, the "other information") are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financiai statements.

The other information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financia! statements. Such other information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financiai statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such other information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additiona! procedures in accordance with auditing standards generaliy accepted in the
United States of America. In our opinion, the other information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation
to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 25, 2019 on
our consideration of the County's internal controi over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internai control over financial reporting and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the County's internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the County's internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

^t^'^^^^/f^!^ ^-P

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
June 25, 2019 except for our report on other information for which the date is September 27, 2019



County of Delaware, Pennsylvania
Management's Discussion and Analysis
(Unaudited)

County of Delaware, Pennsylvania

IVIanagement's Discussion and Analysis
(Unaudited)

This Management's Discussion and Analysis ("MD&A") is intended to provide a narrative overview and
analysis of the financial activities of the County of Delaware for the year ended December 31,2018,
compared to 2017. The County's financiai performance is discussed and analyzed within the context of the
financial statements and the disclosures that follow. Additional information is provided in the Transmitta! Letter
preceding this Management Discussion and Analysis, which can be found on pages 3-14 of this report. This
discussion focuses on the County's primary government. Component units, uniess otherwise noted, are not
included in this discussion.

Financial Highlights

During 2018, the County's tota! net position as shown in the govern ment-wide statements decreased by $6.5
million. This decrease in net position is primariiy attributable to the change in the valuation of the other post
employment benefit liabiiity.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the County's basic financial
statements. The County's basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) government-wide
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financia! statements. This report also
contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The govern ment-wide financial statements are designed to provide
readers with a broad overview of the County's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on aii of the County's assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net position. Overtime, increases or decreases in net position may
serve as a usefu! indicator of whether the financial position of the County is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government's net position changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash fiows.Jhus, revenues and expenses are reported in this
statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and
earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the County that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues {governmental activities) from other functions that are
intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges {business-type
activities). The governmental activities of the County include general government, judicial, corrections, health and
welfare, highways, bridges, and streets. The business-type activity of the County is a geriatric center.
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The govern ment-wide financial statements include not only the County itself (known as the primary government,
but also a legally separate Solid Waste Authority, legally separate Economic Development Oversight Board,
legaily separate Redevelopment Authority and legally separate Chester Waterfront Industrial Development
Authority, for which the County is financially accountable. Financial information for these component units is
reported separately from the financia! information presented for the primary government itself.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 1 5-16 of this report.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The County, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with fiscai-reiated legal requirements.
All of the funds of the County can be divided into three categories; governmental funds, proprietary funds, and
fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the govemment-wide financial statements, However, unlike the government-wide
financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of
spendabte resources, as well as on balances ofspendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such
information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements.

Since the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financia! statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmenta! activities En the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better
understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental
fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental
activities.

The County maintains eleven individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately En the
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmentai fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances for the General Fund, Capital Projects fund, and the Health and Human Service
funds, ail of which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other eight governmental funds are
combined into a single, aggregated presentation captioned "Other Govemmenta! Funds." Individual fund data
for each of these non-major govemmenta! funds is provided in the form of combining statements and
schedules elsewhere in this report.

The County adopts an annuai appropriated budget for its General Fund. A budgetary comparison statement
has been provided for the General Fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 17-20 of this report.

Proprietary funds. The County maintains two proprietary funds. Proprietary funds, or enterprise funds, are
used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial
statements. The County uses an enterprise fund to account for its GeriatrEc Center. Internal service funds are
an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the County's various functions.
The County uses internal service funds to account for its health, workers' compensation and casualty/liabiiity
insurance. Since these services predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, they
have been included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements. The
internal service funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial
statements, individual fund data for the internal service funds is provided in the form of combining scheduies
elsewhere in this report.

The basic proprietary fund financia! statements can be found on pages 22-24 of this report,
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Fiduciary funds. The County maintains two fiduciary funds which consists of the Pension Trust Fund and the
Deshong Trust Fund. The Pension Trust Fund is maintained to account for assets held by the County in a
trustee capacity for individuals currently or previously empioyed by the County. The Deshong Trust Fund is
maintained to account for the assets held by the County in a trustee capacity obtained through the distribution
of the Deshong estate. Fiduciary activities are excluded from the government-wide statements because those
resources are not available to finance the County's programs.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 25-26 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the govemment-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the
financial statements can be found on pages 27-70 of this report,

Required supplementary information. Certain required supplementary information concerning the County's
progress in funding its obligations to provide OPEB benefits to its employees and retirees and their
dependents and changes in the County's pension liability, employer contributions and investment return can
be found on pages 71-74 of this report.

Other information. The combining statements and schedules referred to earlier in connection with
government fund types, proprietary fund types and component units are presented immediately following the
notes to the financiai statements. Combining and individual fund and component unit statements and
schedules can be found on pages 71-106 of this report.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The General Fund final expenditure budget for fiscal year 201 8 was approximately $245 million. This was a
decrease of approximately $3 million or 1 percent from the prior year final budget. There were no council
amendments to the 2018 General Fund budget. Taking into account tota! expenditures and operating
transfers, the County experienced an overall favorable budgetary variance of approximateiy $28 million,
primarily as a result of controlling expenditures.

The General Fund budget complied with the financial policies approved by the County Council.

Government-Wide Financial Analysis

The County's net position indudes its net investment in capita! assets (e.g., land, buildings, and equipment);
less any reiated debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The County uses these capital
assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. The
County's investment in its capital assets is reported, net of related debt, at $(39,794,669).
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County's Condensed Statement of Net Position
(in Miiiions)

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activity Total

Current assets

Long-term assets

Total assets

Deferred outflows

Other liabilities
Long-term liabilities

outstanding

Total
liabilities

Deferred inflows

Net position:
Net investment in

capital assets

Restricted
Unrestricted

Total net
position

2018

$ 258 ;
380

638

34

128

740

868

68

(40)
6

(230)

$ (264) ;

2017

E 220 ;
363

583

45

150

735

885

(35)
5

(227)

E (257) ;

2018

? 22 ;
23

45

6

7

25

32

11

(2)

9

2017

? 23 i
10

33

10

9

26

35

(17)

25

E 8 ;

2018

? 280 ;
403

683

40

135

765

900

80

(42)
6

(221)

E (257) ;

2017

E 243
373

616

55

159

761

920

(52)
5

(202)

E; (249)

Change

15 %
8

11

(27)

(15)

1

(2)

19
20
(9)

(3) %
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County's Condensed Statement of Activities
(In Millions)

Governmental Activities

2018
Business-Type Activity

2017 2018 2017
Total

2018 2017
%

Change

Program revenues:

Charges for services $ 31
Operating grants

and contributions 362
Capital grants and
contributions 2

General revenues:
Property taxes 177

Gaming revenue 8

Other 2

Investment earnings 2

31

339

6

174
8
2
1

67 $ 70 $ 98

362

2

177
8
3
2

101

339

6'

174
8
3
1

(3)

7

(67)

1

100

Total revenues 584 561 71 652 632 13L

Program expenses:

General government
Judicial

Corrections
Health and Human

Services
Highways, streets

and bridges
interest on long-term

debt
Geriatric Center

Total expenses

Net revenue (expense)
before transfers

Transfers

Change in net position

Net position, beginning
Effect of adoption of

GASB 75

158
46
74

301

3

5

(7)

(257)

184
47
73

282

5

5

(40)

23

(240)

72

(D

79

158
46
74

298

3

5
72

184
47
73

282

5

5
79

(14)
(2)

1

6

(40)

588

(4)

(3)

596

(35)

(5)

72

w

3

79

(8)

5

660

(8)

675

(43)

(2)

81

(3)

11

(8)

(249)

(43)

34

(240L

81

(832)

(100}

Net position, ending (264) $ (257) $ (257) _$_ (249) _(3L
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Governmental activities. Governmental activities decreased the County's net position by approximately
$6.5 million. Key element of this decrease are a result of the following:

• Operating grants and contributions increased by approximately $22 million primarily resulting from
increases health and human service grants.

• General government expenditures decreased approximately $25 million primarily as a result of
changes En other post employment benefit liability.

• The operating transfer from the General Fund to the Geriatric Center decreased by approximately
$2.4 million.

Business-type activity. Business-type activities decreased the County's net position by approximately
$1 miliion. Key eiement of this decrease are a result of the following:

• The Geriatric Center's revenue decreased by approximately $2.7 million, the resuit of a decrease in
overall bed occupancy primarily Medicaid patients. Bed occupancy decreased due to competition
from other long-term care facilities and increased home healthcare availabiiity. in addition, during
2018, 86 beds remained out of service in conjunction with a major muiti-year faciiity renovation
project. Preliminary work on the renovation project began in the 4th quarter of 2018,

• The Geriatric Center's non-pension fund related costs decreased by approximately $5 million in 2018,
primarily as a result of decreased employee healthcare costs, workers compensation costs and other
operational costs including facilities management, pharmacy and physical and occupational therapy.

Financial Analysis of the IVlaJor Funds

General Fund

Revenues of the General Fund totaled $243,558,950 for the year ended December 31, 2018. The
following represents a summary of General Fund revenue, by source, along with changes from 2017:

Real estate taxes
Gaming revenue
Licenses and permits
investment earnings
General grants
Charges for services,

fines, and forfeits
Other

Totai

2018
Amount

$ 177,034,412
7,815,230

26,083
1,811,675

23,707,796

21,655,562
11,508,192

$ 243,558,950

2017
Amount

$ 175,190,152
7,876,251

47,373
747,537

24,135,982

22,385,940
10,093,167

$ 240,476,402

Increase

(Decrease)
from 2017

$ 1,844,260
(61,021)
(21,290)

1,064,138
(428,186)

(730,378)
1,415,025

$ 3,082.548

Percentage
Increase

(Decrease)

1 %
(1)

(45)
142

(2)

(3)
14

1 %
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Real estate tax revenue was increased in 2018 compared to 2017, primarily as a result of a continued
growth and expansion in certain parts of the County, resulting in increases in the tax base.

The increase in investment earnings is primarily the result of more favorable interest rates in 2018.

The decrease in general grants is primarily due to decreases in Title IV-D and Act 148 reimbursable costs
experienced in 2018.

The decrease in charges for services, fines, and forfeits is primarily due to lower revenue collections
experienced in the offices of Recorder of Deeds, Sheriff, Judicial Support and Bail Bond. Parental support
payments related to juvenile placements were also lower due to decreased placement costs in 2018

Genera! Fund expenditures totaled $217,202,526, which represents a decrease of $4,401,219 or
2 percent from 2017. The following represents a summary of Generai Fund expenditures for the year
ended December 31, 2018, by source, along with changes from 2017:

General government
Judicial
Corrections
Transportation
Other
Debt service:

Principal
interest

Total

2018
Amount

$ 24,591.607
46,108,527
71,367,594

8,161,720
43,596,337

16,987,090
6,389,651

$ 217,202.526

2017
Amount

$ 24,554,072
46,892,638
70,043,433

7,816,883
49,492,459

16,386,211
6,418,049

$ 221,603,745

Increase

(Decrease)
from 2017

$ 37.535
(784,111)

1,324,161
344.837

(5,896,122)

600.879
(28,398)

$ (4,401,219)

Percentage
Increase

(Decrease)

0 %
(2)
2
4

(12)

4
0

(2) %

Judicial costs decreased in 2018 mainly as a result of lower juvenile placement costs and decreased
departmental costs for Court Support & Services and Domestic Relations,

Corrections expenditures increased primarily as a result of increased contracted operational and iegal
services costs related to the County Prison and.departmental cost increases for the offices of the Public
Defender and District Attorney.

Transportation costs increased as a result of an increase in the statutory funding requirement to SEPTA
for 2018.

Other expenses decreased primarily due to decreases in employee benefit expenses of approximately
$3 million, insurance expenses of approximately $1 million, and pension fund contribution costs of
approximately $2 miiiion. The pension fund contribution expense decreased in 2018 as a result of more
favorable market conditions experienced in 2018. The decrease in employee benefit expense is primarily
the result of reductions in healthcare ciaims costs. The decrease in insurance costs is mainly the result of
decreases to the workers compensation liability.

The overall increase in the debt service expenditure amount is due to higher principal payments made in
2018.



County of Delaware, Pennsylvania
Management's Discussion and Anaiysis
(Unaudited)

The following shows the original and final revenue and expenditure budgets for the General Fund (which
as noted above required no council amendments):

Increase

Original Final (Decrease)

Revenues:
Reai estate taxes $ 172,721,000 $ 172,721,000
Gaming revenue 8,100,000 8,100,000
Licenses and permits 37,000 37,000
General grants 28,687,000 28,687,000
Charges for services, fines and forfeits 24,837,000 24,837,000
investment earnings 555,000 555,000
Other 9,492,000 9,492,000

Total revenues 243,429,000 243,429,000

Expenditures:
General government 28,082,000 28,114,000 32,000
Judicial 57,254.000 57,254,000
Corrections 74,484,000 74.484,000
Transportation 8,165,000 8,165,000
Other 58,128,000 53,839,000 (4,289,000)
Debt service:

Prindpai 20,543,000 16,987,000 (3,556,000)
interest 7,533,000 6,390,000 (1,143,000)

Total expenditures . $ 254,189,000 , $ 245,233,000 $ _<8,956,0p0)

Expenditures

General Government" The general government budget was increased as a result of unanticipated costs
related to the office of County Council.

Other - The budget for other expenditures was decreased to fund required subsidies for Fair Acres
GeriatrEc Center and 9-1-1 operations.

Debt Service" The budget for Debt Service was decreased to reflect the allocation of debt service
expenditures to Fair Acres Geriatric Center.

Capital Projects Funds

The County's Capita! Project Funds account for financiai resources expended to acquire or construct
property and equipment. For the year ended December 31, 2018, the County expended $13,753,928 for
such projects, which represents an increase of $3,704,744 from 2017. Capital Projects Fund balances at
December 31, 2018 totaled $43,264,594, of which $5,475,000 is for an investment pledged by the
Delaware County Solid Waste Authority as a Department of Environment Protection Agency bonding
requirement.
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County of Delaware, Pennsylvania
Management's Discussion and Analysis
(Unaudited)

Health and Human Service Funds

The Health and Human Service Funds' revenues are derived from specific sources and are designated
for specific uses. Such funds, primarily Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and federal and state grants, are
restricted by !aw or other forma! action to expenditures for specific purposes. The County match of
$6,923,000 in both 2018 and 2017 to the Health and Human Sen/ice Funds were reflected as operating
transfers from the Generai Fund to cover the deficiency of revenues over expenditures.

Other Governmental Funds

The Other Govemmenta! Funds revenues are derived from specific sources and are designated for
specific uses. Such funds, primarily Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and federal grants, are restricted by
law or other formal action to expenditure for specific purposes.

The County maintains seven special revenue funds, which contain activity related to Social Services,
Employment and Training, the County's 911 Program, Library Services, Bridge Construction and Repair,
Community Development Block Grant Funding and MarceSlus Shale impact Fees, Revenues and
expenditures totaled $48,410,989 and $50,721,032, respectively, for 2018. These amounts represent a
decrease in revenue of 9 percent and a decrease in expenditures of 13 percent from 2017 amounts. The
911 program had a deficiency of revenues over expenditures of $4,477,977, which is the County subsidy.
The following programs had excess (deficiency) revenues over expenditures in 2018 as follows: Library -
$(18,805), Liquid Fuels - $(147,806), COSA - $(121,000), CDBG/Rehab program - $1,911,889 and
Other - $543,656.

Pension Trust Fund

The net position reserved for employee's pension benefits was $477,656,679. The funding status of the
empioyees' pension trust fund remains sound.

Fund Balances

Management feels that the restrictions, commitments and assignments of its fund balances does not
significantly affect the resources avaiiabie for future use of the County for ongoing operations.

Capital Assets

The County's investment in capita! assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of
December 31, 2018, amounts to $183,320,995 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in
capital assets includes land, buildings and improvements.

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activity Total

Land $ 6,176,214 $ - $ 6,176,214
Construction in progress 4,496,907 - 4,496,907
Land improvements 9,135,646 - 9,135,646
Buildings and improvements 107,321,516 8,307,796 115,629,312
Equipment 26,051,547 2,393,020 28,444,567
Infrastructure 19,438,349 - 19.438,349

Total $ 172,620,179 $ 10,700.816 $ 183,320,995

Additional information on the County's capital assets can be found in Note 12 on page 49 of this report.
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County of Delaware, Pennsylvania

Management's Discussion and Analysis
(Unaudited)

Long-Term Debt

As of December 31, 2018, the County's actual general obligation debt of $301,024,000 is well below the
legal limitof $1,689,145,030 by $1,388,121,020. Additional information on the County's long-term debt
can be found at Note 16 on page 53 of this report.

The County's bonds continue to have a favorable rating from Moody's Investors Services, Inc. of'Aat"
and Standard and Poor's Rating Group of'AA."

Economic Outlook

2018 was another year of consistent, steady economic growth in Delaware County. The County's
unemployment rate of 3.4% remains below the statewide rate of 3,8%. According to the Bureau of Labor
Statistics, the number of employees in the County totaled 228,480 as of December 2018. There were
203,618 private sector employees, specifically, with a count of 13,783 private business.

In addition, Moody's Investors Service affirmed the County's Aa1 rating in its 2018 issuer Comment
report, and the County's rating remains at AA with Standard & Poor's Ratings Services. The Moody's
report stated, "Delaware County's credit position is excellent," and remarked, "Notable credit factors
include a heaithy financial position, low debt and pension liabilities, a very substantial tax base and a
strong wealth and income profile."

The foilowing new construction and redevelopment projects in the County commenced or were
announced in 2018.

• A major redevelopment of the 58 acre Granite Run malt site in Middletown Township continues.
An outdated enclosed mail is being transformed into a state of the art walkabie town center
promenade with restaurants, stores and even a new movie theater with bowling, bar and restaurant.

• Also investing in the County is Equus Capital with the new development of the Shops at Eilis
Preserve, which have become a vibrant and stylish addition to the Newtown Square community.
Plans for Phase 2 of The Shops at Ellis Preserve are now in the design stage of development.

• MCB Real Estate is redeveloping the Drexeiine Shopping Center, a 265,825 square foot property on
18.5 acres at Route 1 and State Road in Upper Darby Township, This town center concept will
expand parking, improve traffic flow and enhance the overall economic vitality of the surrounding
community. Plans include walking paths and improved access to public transportation. The overall
project will be a $110 to $120 million investment in the community.

• Crozer Keystone Heaith System began the expansion project of their Tayior Hospital Emergency
Room with a completion target in 2019. Additionally, Main Line Health announced plans to renovate
their Birthplace at Riddie Hospital, which inciudes the nursery, patient rooms and other care areas for
families and newborns.

• Major transformative campus construction projects are underway at Villanova, Cabrini and Neumann
Universities,

• Amerihealth Caritas, an Independence Blue Cross affiliate that manages Medicaid plans, is relocating
corporate headquarters from Tinicum Township to the Eilis Preserve in Newtown Township. They will
reside in a custom built 378,000 square foot building. Their current 650,000+ square foot space in
Tinicum will be completely refurbished as their national operations center. The company projects that
these two actions will result in an additional 1,500 - 2,000 empSoyees.

• Kimberly dark in Chester has announced a $150 million conversion of their coal fired plant to natural
gas. Not only will this resuit in a significant reduction in carbon emissions, it will also ensure the future
of the largest manufacturing facility in the City of Chester.

12



County of Delaware, Pennsylvania

Management's Discussion and Analysis
(Unaudited)

The Delaware County Commerce Center continues their contract with the Pennsylvania Department of
Community and Economic Development to act as the agent for the statewide "Engage!" program whereby
staff meet individuaSly with County-owned businesses to assess their needs and determine if particular
government programs are available to assist these companies in growing their businesses, in this fiscal
year to date, over 100 businesses have been personally surveyed.

The Commerce Center has created the County Accelerator in partnership with Headroom Inc.
and the Service Corps of Retired Executives, an affiliate of the Small Business Association (SBA).
Six (6) companies are currently enrolled at the Accelerator committed to growing the entrepreneurial job
base of the County.

The Governor of Pennsylvania designated six targeted census tracts within the County as "Opportunity
Zones" to encourage private investment. This incentive allows taxpayers with capital gains to invest their
gains in equity funds for business development in the Opportunity Zones. In exchange, the taxpayers
receive deferred, or potentially even complete forgiveness of, federal taxes due on gains from the
investment.

Delaware County remains strong, diverse, vibrant and is well positioned for continued growth,

13



County of Delaware, Pennsylvania
Management's Discussion and Analysis
(Unaudited)

Requests for Information

Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financiai
information should be addressed to the Office of the Controller, County of Delaware, 201 West Front
Street, Media, Pennsylvania 19063.

Complete financial statements for the individual component units can be obtained from their respective
administrative offices as foiiows:

• Delaware County Solid Waste Authority
Rose Tree Park Hunt Club
1521 North Providence Road
Media, Pennsylvania 19063

• Economic Development Oversight Board
100 West 6th Street, Suite 100
Media, Pennsylvania 19063

• Delaware County Chester Waterfront hdustria! Development Authority
100 West 6th Street, Suite 100
Media, Pennsylvania 19063

• Redevelopment Authority of the County of Delaware
100 West 6th Street, Suite 100
Media, Pennsylvania 19063

14
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County of Delaware, Pennsylvania
Statement of Net Position
December 31,2018

Primary Government

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollec(ib)es):

Taxes

Accounts
Grants

Notes
Other

Due from component units
internal balances

inventories
Other assets

investments
Restricted cash and cash equivalents

investment !n Joint venture
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation):

Land
Construction in progress

Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Equipment
Infrastfuciure

Net pension asset

Total assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Deferred outfiows of resources - other post-employment benefit liability

Deferred outfiows of resources - pension

Totai deferred outflows of resources

Tota! assets and deferred outflows of resources

Liabilities
Accounts payable and other current liabilities

Accrued interest payable
Other liabilities
Due to primary govemmeni
Unearned revenue

Long-term liabiilties:
Due within one year:

Bonds and notes payable
Claims payable

Due in more than one year:
Bands and notes payable

Claims payable
Net other post-employment benefit Hability
Net pension liability
Accrued closure costs

Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Deferred inflows of resources - other post-empioyment benefit llabiiity

Deferred inflows of resources - pension

Total deferred inflows of resources

Net Position

Net investment In capital assets
Restricted for;

Highways and streets
Infrastructure

Library
Community development

Title IV D program
Capital projects
Economic development

Solid waste
Unrestricted

Total net position

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and net position

Governmental

Activities

$ 117,960,8-TO

7.280,297

3,211,205
35.591,716

2,596,527
5.952,3^0

7.479,419

7.9-W,210

8,070,355

61,591,029

183,876,297

6,176,214

4.496,907
9,135.6^6

107.321.516
26,051,547

19,438,349
23,812,238

638,006,652

21,655,837

12,068,708

33,724,545

£ 671,731,197

$ 42,341,862
1,-i 75.600

38,275,335

45,371.915

17.435,945
2,914,665

262,547,760

2.538,381

454,668,067

867,269,530

45,976,566
22,348,828

68,325,394

(39,794,669)

769,628

493,311
4,680,925

825,841
19.487

(230,858,250)

(263,863,727)

$ 671,731,197

Business-Type

Activity

$ 7,824,867

21,155,453

(7,9^4,210)

2,507

1,009,378

8,307,796

2,393,020

12,266,911

45,015.722

6,217,213

6.217.213

$ 51,232,935

$ 5,340,0^)9

2,094,241

3,669.055

21.736,601

32,839,946

11,513,033

-! 1,513,033

(2.437,929)

9,317.885

6,879,956

$ 51,232,935

Total

$ 125.805.707

7.280,297
24,366,658

35.591,716
2.598,527
5,952,340

7,479,419

8,072,862

62,600,407

183.876,297

6,176,214
4.496,907
9.135,646

115,629,3-i 2

2Q.444.5Q7
19,438,349

36,079,149

683,022,374

21,655,837

18.285.921

39,941,758

$ 722,96.<i,132

$ 47,681,911
1,175,600

36,275,335

47,466,156

21,105,000

2,914,665

284,284,361
2,538,381

454,668,067

900,109,476

45,976,566

33,861,961

79,838,427

(42,232,598)

769,628

493,311
4,690,925

825,841
19,487

(221,540,365)

(256,983,771)

$ 722,964,-132

Component

Units

$ 13.473,852

3,615,204

1.218,745

142,574
483,543

10,500

2.501,9''16

8,873,485

2.122,122

20,555.498
21,036,798

74,034,287

639.407

639,407

$ 74.673,674

$ 4.021,052

7,479,4-19

75,000

518,000

7,372,000

701,101
18,080,763

38,227,335

126,962

126,962

43,673,704

441,642
2,000,000

(9,735,969)

36,319,377

$ 74,673,674

See notes (o fjnanciai sfatemenls
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County of Delaware, Pennsylvania
Statement ofAcUvlties
Year Ended Decomber 31. 20f8

Expens

Pfogram Revenues
Opeiating

Gl

|U(

Capital

Grants and
Contributions

Govern me
Actlvitle

ntal

Met (Expense) Revenue anc

Changes in Net Position

Business-Type

ActiY!ly-

Cojnpotient
Units

FunctionriPro grams
Primary Government

Goremmenla! aclivillBS:
Genera! govemmenl

Judicial
Cotroclions

Health and human soivices

Highways, strests and bridges
I »!e rest on iong-totm debt

Total gavemmental activities

Business-type activityi

Gsriatric Center

Total primary government

Component Units

Solid Waste Aulhorily
Economic Devetopmcnt
Wale rfront Industrial DsvolopinentAulhorily
Redevelopment Aulhority

Total componsnt Units

5 168.826.027 $
16.108,627
73,639.664

301,734,417

2.767,966
'1.631.463

SW,70S,WA

72,633,211

S 660.341.295 S

S 43.169.827 $
711.501

978.833

9.141,762

S 54.001,923 $

17,693,47G

e.AM.ew
7,1SS,OOS

31.333,168

67.4e'i.8d0

99.797,968

37,011.762

174.149

37,185.911

$

_§_

5

s.

<16,4S5.<fS-t

Z1.662.182
80i|,8S4

291.877,113

717.6S5

361.527.2S8

3S1,527.2S6

107.107

658.650

6.901,159

9.666.916

$

_$_

$

s

General Revenues

Property taxes
Gaming revenue

Granfs and charges not restricted to specific programs
Other revenues (eicpenses)
Unrestricted investment earnings

Transfers

Totai a<

Changi

Net Position, aeglnnlfij

Net Position, Ending

general rove

ge in net po;

Ifl

inues

iition

and transfers

657,630

1.533.222

2.190.752

2.1 SO, 7S2

s

_$_

(9<i,009.56S)

(17,991.650)
(65.64 9.B12)

(9,857,30-1)

(517,079)
(4,631,463)

[192,658.876)

(182.656,876)

176.945.069
7,815.230

2,011.525

2,200.022
(2,903,233;

166.06S.613

(6,ESS,2G3j

(257,275,'iS4)

(2G3.663.7 27)

$

_$_

(5,ieB.-<n)

(5.168,411)

1.1BB.17a

29.saa

2.803.233

4.131.339

[1,037,072}

7.917.028

6.879.S56

$

s

(94,009,568)
(17,991,650)

(65.849,812)

(3,857,304)
(517,079)

(<t ,631,163)

(192.556.876)

(5,ie8,-in)

(197,825.287)

176.945.069
7, B15.230

2.011.525

1.198.178
2.229.850

190.199.952

(7.625,335)

(249,358.436)

<256.3S3.771}

S (6,050,958)
i2i,ssa

(976,8331
.I21A603).

t7.1-f9.098)

(13,591)
54.884

-11.293

(7,107,803)

43.127.180

$ 36,318.377

Sw notes to fhandal sla<emenls
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County of Delaware, Pennsylvania
Balance Sheet
Govemmentai Funds
December31,2018

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables:

Taxss
Accounts

Grants
Notes
Other

Due from component units

Due from other funds
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities, Deferred inflows of Resources and Fund Balances
Liabilities:

Vouchers and accounts payable
Payrol! payable
Payabla from restricted assets
Due to other funds
Unearned revenues

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources,

Unavailable revenues - taxes

Fund balances:
Nonspendabla;

Prepaid items
Restricted for:

Highways and streets
Library
Community deveiopment
Tille IV D program
Capital projects

Assigned to;
Capilal projects
Debt service costs

Employee healthcare costs
Unassigned

Total fund balances

Total II abilities, deferred irsflows
of resources and fund balances

Genera!

$ 83,648,942

7,438.546
3,211,205

4,615,505

128,410
2,004,419

61,499.015
2,336/193
1,167,321

$ 166.049,856

$ 14,697,113
11.437,471

138/187
47.A06.i34
2.180,775

16,251,583

94,111,563

5.982,185

Capita!
Projects

$ 121,1-iS

5,-i75,000

50,255,708

$ 55,851,856

$ 2,'j01,396

10,165,666

12,587.262

Health &
Human

Service

$ 13,142,851

21,377.580

27,266,001

4,535,477

3,290,619

$ 69,672,528

$ 21,637.571

16,543,307

25,157,847

6,133,703

69,672,528

Other
Governmental

Funds

$ 15,383,873

9.598,631

2,596,527

13.423,319
4.403.351

95,614

$ 45.506,315

$ 3.405.G82

16,365,037

18,033,293

1.757,'i39

39.562,451

Total
Governmental

Funds

$ 112,301,814

7/138,546
3,211,205

35,591.716

2,596,527

128,410
7,479.419

102,188.335
61,591.029

4,553.554

$ 337,030.555

$ 42,341.862
11,437,471

136.487
80,501,344

45,371.915
26,142.725

215,933,804

5,982.185

1,167,321 1,167,321

825,841

15,000,000

15.000,000
33,962,946

65,956,108

$ 166.049,856

43,143,890

120.704

43,264,594

$ 55,851,856 $ 69,872.528 ;

769,628
493,311

4,680,925

5,943,864

E 45,506,315

769,628
493,311

4,680,925

825,841
43.143,890

120,704
15,000,000

15,000,000
33.982.3'IS

115,184,566

$ 337,080,555

See nofes to financial statements
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County of Delaware, Pennsylvania
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2018

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position
(page 15) are different because:

Total fund balance" total governmental funds (page 17) $ 115,164,566

Capital assets, including investment in joint venture, used in governmentai
activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds 356,496,476

Property taxes receivable will be collected in the future but are not available
to pay for the current period's expenditures and, therefore, are not
recognized as revenue on the governmental fund financial statements 5,982,185

Long-term notes receivable wii! be collected in the future but are not available
to pay for the current period's expenditures and, therefore, are not recognized
as revenue on the governmental fund financia! statements 5,823,930

Establishment of an allowance for doubtful accounts, net of additional penalty and
interest receivable on the statement of net position (158,249)

Accrued interest payable included on the statement of net position (1,175,600)

Long-term assets and liabilities, are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore,
are not reported in the funds
Bonds and notes payable (279,983,705)
Net other post-empioyment benefit liability (454,668,067)
Net pension asset 23,812,238

Pension and other post-empioyment benefit liability related deferred outflow of
resources and deferred inflow of resources are not due and payable in the
current year and, therefore, are not reported in the funds:

Deferred outflows related to the other post-employment benefit liability 21 ,655,837
Deferred outflows related to the net pension liability 12,068,708
Deferred inflows reiated to the other post-empioyment benefit iiability (45,976,566)
Deferred inflows related to the net pension liability (22,348,828)

Accrued compensatory time included in other liabilities on the statement of net position (556,652)

Net position of governmental activities (page 15) $ (263,863,727)

See notes to financial statements
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County of Delaware, Pennsylvania
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes h Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2018

Revenues
Real estate taxes
Gaming revenue
Licenses and permits
General grants
Charges for sen/ices, fines and forfeits
Investment earnings
Health and human service grants
Other

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current:

Genera! government
Judicial
Corrections
Transportation
Health and human services
Highways, streets and bridges
OEher

Debt service:
Principal
Interest

Capita) outlay

Tofa) expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Bond proceeds
Transfers in
Transfers out

Tota! oiher financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund Balance, Beginning

Fund Balance, Ending

General

$ 177,034,412
7.815,230

26.083

23,707.796
21.655,562

1.811,675

11.508,192

243,558,850

24.591.607
46,108,527
71,367.594

8,161,720

43,596.337

16,987,090
6.389.651

217,202.526

26,356.424

540,000
(16,233,002)

(15,693,002)

10,663.422

55.292.686

$ 65.956.108

Capital
Projects

317.930

113,181

431,111

13.753.928

13.753.928

(-13,322,817)

40.000.000
1.807,791

41,807,791

28,484,974

14.779.620

$ 43.264,594

Health &
Human
Service

$

291,877,113

291,877,113

298.800,114

298.800,114

(6,923,001)

13,846,001
(6,923,000)

6,923,001

I_^_

Other
Governmental

Funds

48,410,989

48,410.989

2,530,329
48.190,703

50.721,032

J2310043)

4.598,977
(540,000)

4.058,977

1,748,934

4,194,930

$ 5.943,864

Total
Governmental

Funds

$ 177.034,412
7.815,230

26.083
72,436,715
21,655,562

1.924.856
291,877,113

11.508,192

584,278,163

24,591.607
46,108,527
71,367,594

8,161.720
298,800.114

2,530.329
91,787,040

16,987,090
6,389,651

13,753.928

580,477.600

3,800,563

40,000,000
20,792,769

(23,696,002)

37,096,767

40,897,330

74,267,236

$ 115,164,566

See notes (o iinanciai statements
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County of Delaware, Pennsylvania
Reconciiiation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Aciivities
Year Ended December 31, 2018

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities
(page 16) are different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (page 19)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the
amount by which depreciation exceeded capita! outlays in the current period

Purchase of capital assets
Loss on disposal of capital assets
Depreciation expense

Governmentai funds report the County's budget contribution to SEPTA as
expenditures. However, in the statement of activities the cost is capitalized
as an investment in a Joint venture and recognizes the amortization of the
investment over the estimated life

Net investment in joint venture

Revenues related to real estate taxes in the statement of activities that do not
provide current financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds

Collections on long-term receivable due from the City of Chester is reported as
revenue in the funds, while the coliecSion reduces long-term receivables in

the statement of net position

Pension expense in the statement of activities that do not consume current financial

resources are not reported as expenses in the funds and changes in related

deferred amounts

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources

to governmental funds, while the repayment of the pnncjpai of long-term debt
consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither

transaction, however, has any effect on net position. Also, governmental funds

report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items

when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized

in the statement of aclivities. Reconciling items related to long-term debt
activity for the year ended December 31,2018 are as follows:

Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt

Scheduled principa! payments on long-term debt made in 2018
Aiiocation of debt to business type activity for capita! assets
Accretion of bond and note premiums

Accrued interest expense on long-term debt is reported in the statement of activities
but does not require the use of current financial resources. Therefore, accrued

interest expense is not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. The net
change in interest payable is recorded En the statement of activities.

Other post-employment benefit expense in the statement of activities that do not
consume current finanda! resources are not reported as expenses in the funds

Payments related to eariy retirement expense is reported as expenditures in
the funds, while the payment reduces long-term liabilities En the statement of
net position

An allowance for doubtful collections of real estate taxes receivable
is reported on the statement of net position, net of additional penalty and
interest on delinquent taxes

Compensatory time is reported in the statement of net position within other liabilities
but does not require the use of current financial resources. Therefore, compensatory

is not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. The net change in
compensatory time [[ability !s recorded in the statement of activities.

$ 40,897,330

10,541,087
(1,702,133)

(10,311,986)
(1,473,032)

(5,071,612)

(733,494)

(165,767)

(2,013,139)

(40,000,000)
16,987,090

1,931,123
1,708,532

(19,373,255)

49,656

(18,955,978)

163,529

644,151

(556,652)

Change in net position of governmental activities (page 16} $ (6,588,263)

See notes to financial statements
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County of Delaware, Pennsylvania
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances "
Budget and Actual Comparison - General Fund
Year Ended December 31, 2018

Revenues
Real estate taxes
Gaming revenue
Licenses and permits
Genera! grants
Charges for services, fines and forfeits

Investment earnings
Other

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current

Genera! government
Judicial
Corrections
Transportation
Other

Debt service:
Principal
Interest

Total debt service

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over (under)
expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing uses, net

Net change in fund balance

Fund Balance, Beginning

Fund Balance, Ending

Original

$172,721,000
8,100,000

37,000
28,687,000
23,837,000

555,000
9,492,000

243,429,000

28,082.000
57,254,000
74,484,000

8,165,000
58,128,000

20,543,000
7,533,000

28,076,000

254,189,000

(10,760,000)

7,641,000

(14,710,000)

(7,069,000)

(17,829,000)

48,353,260

$ 30,524,260

General Fund

Final

$172,721,000
8,100,000

37,000
28,687,000
23,837,000

555,000
9,492,000

243,429,000

28,114,000
57,254,000
74,484,000
8,165,000

53,839,000

16,987,000
6,390,000

23,377,000

245,233,000

(1,804,000)

2,942,000

(18,967,000)

(16,025,000)

(17,829,000)

48,353,260

$ 30,524,260

Actual
Amounts

$177,034,412
7,815,230

26,083
23,707,796
21,655,562

1,811,675
11,508,192

243,558,950

24,591,607
46,108,527
71,367,594

8,161,720
43,596,337

16,987,090
6,389,651

23,376,741

217,202,526

26,356,424

540,000
(16,233,002)

(15,693,002)

10,663,422

55,292,686

$ 65,956,108

Variance with
Final Budget -

Positive
(Negative)

$ 4,313,412
(284,770)

(10,917)
(4,979,204)
(2,181,438)
1,256,675
2,016,192

129,950

3,522,393
11,145,473
3,116,406

3,280
10,242,663

(90)
349

259

28.030,474

28,160,424

(2,402,000)
2,733,998

331,998

28,492,422

6,939,426

$ 35,431,848

See notes to financial statements
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County of Delaware, Pennsylvania

Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Funds
December 31, 2018

Business-Type

Activity
Geriatric

Care

Governmental

Activities -

Internal
Service

Fund

Assets and Deferred Outflows
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net

Due from other funds
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Prepaid expense and other assets

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:

Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation):
Buildings and improvements
Equipment

Net pension asset

Totai noncurrent assets:

Deferred Outflows of Resources " Pension

Tota! assets and deferred outflow

Liabilities
Current liabilities:

Vouchers and accounts payable
Unearned revenue

Due to other funds
Claims payable
General obligation bonds and notes " current

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
General obligation bonds and notes payable
Claims payable

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources - Pension

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total net position

Total liabilities, deferred inflow and net position

7,824,867 $ 5,679,026
21,155,453

647,618
1,009,378

2,507 3,516,801

29,992,205

8,307,796

2,393,020

12,266,911

22,967,727

6,217,213

19,047,555

21,736,601

21,736,601

40,784,156

11,513,033

(2,437,929)
9,317,885

6,879,956

9,843,445

$ 59,177,145 $ 9,843,445

5,340,049 $
2,094,241
7,944,210 4,390,399

2,914,665
3.669,055

7.305,064

2

2

9

,538,381

,538,381

,843,445

$ 59,177,145 $ 9,843,445

See notes to financial statements
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County of Delaware, Pennsylvania
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
Proprietary Funds
Year Ended December 31, 201 8

Operating Revenues
Charges for services

Operating Expenses
Administration
Operation, maintenance and housekeeping

Nursing
Dietary
Medical and physical therapy
Employee benefits
Insurance claims
Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous revenues
Interest expense

Tota! nonoperating revenues, net

Transfers In

Change in net position

Net Position, Beginning

Net Position, Ending

Business-Type

Activity
Geriatric

Care

$ 67,464,800

12,292.3-10
11,277,253
20,685,58-1

7,226,350

5,534,817
12,949,682

1,626,368

71,592,361

(4,127,561)

29,928
1,198,178

(1,040,850)

187,256

2,903,233

(1,037,072)

7,917,028

$ 6,879,956

Governmental
Activities -

Internal

Service
Fund

$ 49,722.581

45.853

49,696,183

49742.036

(19.455)

19,455

19,455

See notes to financial statements
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County of Delaware, Pennsylvania
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2018

Business-Type

Activity
Geriatric

Care

Governmental

Activities -

Internal

Service
Fund

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from customers and users
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees for services

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Acquisitions of capital assets
Proceeds of debt for purchase of capita! assets
Principal paid on capital debt
Interest paid on capital debt

Net cash used in capital and related
financing activities

Cash Flows Provided by Investing Activities
Interest received

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Ending

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities

Operating loss
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net

cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation

Non-operating receipts from customers
Transfer in from General Fund
Decrease En accounts receivable
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expense and other assets
Increase in net pension asset and deferred outfiows
increase in due to other funds
Decrease in vouchers and accounts payable
Increase in unearned revenue
Decrease in claims payable

Totai adjustments

Net cash provided by operating activities

72,965,397
(28,386,296)
(33,308,886)

11,270,215

(1,938,628)
1,938,628

(3,563,414)
(1,422,072)

(4,985.486)

29,928

6,314,657

1,510,210

1,626,368

1,198,178
2,903,233
3,153,460

(1,444)
1,037.072
4,082.806
(696.138)

2,094,241

15,397,776

$ 53,273,955
(51,737,157)

1,536,798

19,455

1,556,253

4,122,773

$ 7,824,867 $ 5,679.026

$ (4,127,561) $ (19,455)

(1.226,710)

3,551,374

(768,411)

1,556,253

$ 11,270,215 $ 1,536,798

See notes to financial statements
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County of Delaware, Pennsylvania
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
December 31, 2018

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
interest receivable

Investments, at fair value:
U.S. government securities
Corporate bonds
Common and preferred stocks and stock funds
Guaranteed investment contracts
Annuity contracts
Asset-backed securities
Municipal bonds

Total investments

Total assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable and other liabilities

Net Position
Net position restricted for pensions and other

Pension
Trust
Fund

$ 30,542,268
1,349,455

49,986,812
60,069,913

289,724,029
37.762,707
3,324,239

142,448

5,047,017

446,057,165

477,948,888

289,209

$ 477,659,679

Deshong
Private"

Purpose
Trust
Fund

$ 40,514

40,514

279

$ 40,235

See notes to finandat statements
25



County of Delaware, Pennsylvania
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2018

Additions
Contributions;

Plan members
County

Total contributions

Investment earnings:
Interest and dividends
Net depreciation in fair vaiue of investments
Less investment expense

Net investment loss

Total additions, net

Deductions
Death benefits
Refunds of contributions
Administrative expenses
Retirement allowance

Total deductions

Net decrease in net position

Net Position, Restricted for Pensions
and Other, Beginning

Net Position, Restricted for Pensions
and Other, Ending

Pension
Trust
Fund

$ 10,798,327

1,527,490

12,325,817

11,207,146

(46,091,558)
(1.824,817)

(36,709,229)

(24,383,412)

1,857,098
2,291,936

25,139,869

29,288.903

(53,672,315)

531,331,994

$ 477,659,679

Deshong
Private-

Purpose
Trust
Fund

80

80

80

9,312

9,312

(9,232)

49,467

$ 40,235

See notes to financiaf statements

26



County of Delaware, Pennsylvania
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2018

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting methods and procedures adopted by the County of Delaware, Pennsylvania
(the "County"), conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as
applied to governmental entities. The following notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the
County's financial statements.

Financial Reporting Entity

The County was established under the laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania in 1789 and
operates under a Home Rule Charter form of government. As required by accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, the financial statements of the reporting entity
include those of the County (the primary government) and its component units. The component units,
discussed in Note 2, are included in the County's reporting entity as discretely presented component
units. Component units are legally separate organizations with which the County has a significant
operational or financial relationship.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its
component units. The effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements except for
interfund services provided and used, which are not eliminated in the process of consolidation.
Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are
reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and
charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from certain legally
separate component units for which the primary government is financiaiiy accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function
or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with
a specific function or segment. The expenses reported for functional activities include allocated
indirect expenses. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase,
use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or priviieges provided by a given function or segment
and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements
of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items properly not included among program
revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary
funds, even though the fiduciary funds are excluded from the government-wide financial statements.
Major individua! governmental funds and major individua! enterprise funds are reported as separate
columns in the fund financial statements.
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County of Delaware, Pennsylvania
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2018

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial
statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in
the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as ail
eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmentai fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon
as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are
collectibie within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period,
For this purpose, the County considers revenues to be available if they are coilected within 60 days of
the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generaily are recorded when a liability is incurred,
as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures are recorded only when payment is
due.

Property taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are al! considered to be
susceptible to accrual and have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. All other
revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the
County.

The County reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the County's primary operating fund. !t accounts for ali financial resources of
the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Capital Projects Fund is used to account for financial resources received and used for the
acquisition, construction, or improvement of capita! facilities other than those financed by other
funds.

The Health and Human Service Fund accounts for operations and administration of various County
health and human service programs. Financing is provided by state and federal grants with an
appropriation from the County General Fund.

The County reports two proprietary funds:

The Enterprise Fund is maintained to account for the operations of the County's Geriatric Center,
which is intended to be self-supporting. The nature of the County's Enterprise Fund is such that
the determination of net income on a periodic basis is an important consideration and, as such, all
operating expenses, including depreciation, are recorded.

The Internal Service Fund is maintained to account for the operations of the County's Health,
Casualty/Liability and Workers' Compensation Self-lnsurance Programs,
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County of Delaware, Pennsylvania
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2018

The County's Fiduciary Funds account for the Pension Trust Fund and the Deshong Trust Fund.

The Pension Trust Fund is maintained to account for assets held by the County in a trustee
capacity for individuals currently or previousiy employed by the County. The County's Pension
Trust Fund reports using the economic resources measurement focus.

Plan member contributions are recognized in the period in which the contributions are due.
Employer contributions to the plan are recognized when due and the employer has made a formal
commitment to provide the contributions. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the terms of the plan.

The Deshong Trust Fund is maintained to account for the assets held by the County in a trustee
capacity obtained through the distribution of the Deshong estate. The Deshong Trust Fund is a
private purpose trust fund since the principal can be expended.

Amounts reported as program revenues include charges to customers or applicants for goods,
sen/ices, or privileges provided and operating grants and contributions. Internally dedicated resources
are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues
include aEE taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods
in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues
of the enterprise fund are charges to patients for services. Operating expenses for the enterprise fund
include the cost of services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and
expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the County's policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Budgetary Accounting Control

In accordance with the County's Home Rule Charter and Administrative Code, the County prepares
and adopts a budget at least ten days prior to December 31 for the subsequent calendar year.
Expenditures cannot legally exceed budgeted appropriations at the fund level. Additionally,
management may not revise the total budget amounts by fund level without the approval of County
Council Budgetary transfers and/or additionai appropriations from additionai revenues received or
from unexpended funds appropriated, but not spent in prior years, must be approved by County
Counci!. All appropriations lapse at the end of the year.

Budgets are prepared on a modified accrua! basis and are adopted for the General Fund and the
Liquid Fuels Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund.

Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash fiows, the County considers all highly liquid investments with
an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Cash restricted for closure costs
are not considered cash equivalents.
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County of Delaware, Pennsylvania
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2018

Investments

investments of the Pension Trust Fund are stated at fair value for both reporting and actuarial
purposes, investment purchases are recorded as of the trade date. Securities traded on a national or
international exchange are valued at the last reported saies price at current exchange rates.
investments that do not have an established market are generally reported at cost, which is not
expected to be materially different from fair value. The calculation of realized gains and losses is
independent of the calculation of the net change in the fair value of pension plan investments.
Realized gains and losses on investments that had been held in more than one reporting period and
sold in the current period were included as a change in the fair value reported in the prior period(s)
and the current period.

Receivables and Payables

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the
end of the fiscal year are referred to as either "due to/from other funds" (i.e., the current portion of
interfund loans) or "advances to/from other funds" (i.e., the noncurrent portion of interfund loans).

Ail trade and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles. The property
tax receivable allowance is calculated based on collection history and was $158,249 at December 31,
2018.

Interfund Transactions

As a resu!t of its operations, the County affects a variety of transactions between funds to finance
operations. Accordingly, to the extent that certain interfund transactions have not been paid or
received as of December 31, 2018, appropriate interfund receivabies or payables have been
established.

Restricted Assets

Restricted assets represent resources deposited in financia! institutions for liquidation of specific
obligations.

Capita] Assets

All capita! assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historica! cost if actual historical cost is not
avaiiabie. Donated capita! assets, donated works of art and similar items, and capita! assets received
in a service concession arrangement are reported at acquisition vaiue rather than fair value.

General infrastructure assets acquired prior to December 31, 2001 consist of bridges and are
reported at estimated historical cost using deflated replacement cost. The cost of normal
maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets' lives
are not capitalized.

Capita! outlay greater than $5,000 are capitalized and depreciated when placed in service. Capita!
assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated usefu! lives:

Estimated
Useful Lives

Infrastructure 100 years
Land improvements 20 years
Buildings and improvements 45 years
Equipment 5 - 20 years
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County of Delaware, Pennsylvania
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2018

Compensated Absences

County employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts based on their length of
employment. Vacation ieave is earned by employees on a monthly basis each year, All vacation
leave earned must be used by February 15, following the year earned, Sick leave is earned by
employees on a monthly basis and may be accumulated up to a maximum of 180 days. In the event
of termination, an emptoyee is compensated for all earned and unused vacation leave, Employees
are not compensated for earned and unused sick leave.

Compensatory Time

County employees have the opportunity to accrue compensatory time in lieu of overtime based upon
their employment contract. Upon separation of employment from the County, the employee is paid
out the balance of compensatory time at the hourly rate of pay as of the date or separation.

Unearned Revenue

Unearned revenues arise when assets are recognized before revenue recognition criteria have been
satisfied.

Grants and entitlements received before the eligibility requirements are met, and delinquent property
taxes due at December 31, 2018, are recorded as unearned revenue on the governmental fund
financia! statements.

Deferred Outflows/ln flows of Resources

A deferred outflow of resources is a consumption of net assets that is applicable to a future reporting
period. Deferred outflows of resources have a positive effect on net position, similar to assets;
however, the actual outflow of resources (net decrease in assets or net increase in liabilities) was
incurred in a prior period, and the outflow of resources is applicabie to a later period,

In the government-wide financial statements, the County reports the unamortized balance of
differences in expected and actual expense related to the net other post-empioyment benefit liability
and the net pension liability and the pension contributions made subsequent to the measurement
date as deferred outflow of resources.

A deferred inflow of resources is an acquisition of net assets that is app!icab!e to a future reporting
period. Deferred inflows of resources have a negative effect on net position, similar to liabilities;
however, the actual inflow of resources (net increase En assets or net decrease in liabilities) was
incurred in a prior period, and the inflow of resources is applicable to a later period.

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, governmental funds report unavailable revenues
from property taxes, which are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that
the amounts become available that qualifies for reporting in this category, in the govemment-wide
financial statements, the County reports the differences between expected and actual experience
related to the net pension iiabiiity.
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County of Delaware, Pennsylvania
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2018

Long-Term Obligations

In the govemment-wide financial statements, long-term obligations are reported as iiabilities in the
governmental activities statement of net position. Where applicable, bond and note premiums and
discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds and notes using the effective interest
method.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond and note premiums and
discounts, as wel! as bond and note issuance costs as expense, during the current period. The face
amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources, Premiums received on debt issuances
are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other
financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are
reported as debt service expenditures.

Fund Balances

Govemmenta! fund balance classifications are hierarchical and are based primariiy on the extent to
which the County is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in the
funds may be spent. The County's accounting and finance policies are used to interpret the nature
and/or requirements of the funds and their corresponding assignment of restricted, committed,
assigned, or unassigned.

The County reports the following classifications for governmental fund balances:

Nonspendable Fund Balance - Nonspendable fund balances are amounts that cannot be spent
because they are either (a) not in spendabie form, such as inventory or prepaid expenses or
(b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact, such as a trust that must be retained
in perpetuity. Specifically included in this category are prepaid expenses and tong-tenn
receivables.

Restricted Fund Balance" Restricted fund balances are restricted when constraints placed on the
use of resources are either (a) externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments or (b) imposed by law through constitutionai provisions or
enabling legislation. Specifically included in this category are amounts restricted for highways and
streets, library, community development, the Title IV D program and capital projects.

Committed Fund Balance - Committed fund balances are amounts that can only be used for
specific purposes as a result of constraints imposed by County Council by passing a resolution.
Committed amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless County Council removes those
constraints by taking the same action. There are no fund balances meeting this category
definition.

Assigned Fund Balance - Assigned fund balances are amounts that are constrained by the
County's intent to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed, intent is
expressed by County Council or official to which County Councii has delegated the authority to
assign fund balances. County Council has delegated this authority to the Executive Director of the
County as approved by the County fund balance policy. Specificaiiy included in this category are
amounts assigned for capita! projects, debt service costs, and increases in employee healthcare
costs.

32



County of Delaware, Pennsylvania
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2018

Assigned fund balance includes (a) all remaining amounts that are reported in governmental
funds (other than the General Fund) that are not classified as nonspendable, restricted, or
committed, and (b) amounts En the General Fund that are intended to be used for specific
purpose. Specific amounts that are not restricted or committed En a special revenue or capita!
projects fund are assigned for purposes in accordance with the nature of their fund type.
Assignment within the Genera! Fund conveys that the intended use of those amounts is for a
specific purpose that is narrower than the general purposes of the County itseif.

Unassigned Fund Balance - Unassigned fund baiance is the residual classification for the
General Fund. This classification represents General Fund balance that has not been assigned to
other funds, and that has not been restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes within
the General Fund.

in circumstances when an expenditure is made for a purpose for which amounts are available in
multiple fund balance ciassifications, fund baiance is depleted in the order of restricted, committed,
assigned, and unassigned.

Net Position

!n the government-wide financia! statements, net position is classified in the foilowing categories.

Net Investment in Capital Assets - This amount consists of capital assets net of accumulated
depreciation and reduced by outstanding debt attributable to the acquisition, construction, or
improvement of the assets.

Restricted Net Position - This amount is restricted by external creditors, grantors, contributors,
laws or regulations or other governments, enabling legislation.

Unrestricted Net Position - This amount is all net position amounts that do not meet the definition
of net investment in capital assets or restricted net position.

The County applies restricted resources first when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both
restricted and unrestricted net position is available.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabiiities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.
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2. Reporting Entity

The County has determined that the Delaware County Soiid Waste Authority ("DCSWA"), the Economic
Development Oversight Board ("EDOB"), the Redevelopment Authority of the County of Delaware
("RDA") and the Delaware County Chester Waterfront industrial Development Authority ("IDA") are
separate legal entities for which the County has a significant operational or financiai relationship and
should be included in the County's financial statements as aggregate discretely presented component
units.

Discretely Presented Component Units

The Delaware County Soiid Waste Authority, an entity legally separate from the County, is governed
by a board appointed by County Council and County Council has the ability to impose its will on the
DCSWA. Additionally, a member of County Council sits on the board of the DCSWA and the DCSWA
is financially dependent on the County, its purpose is to provide waste disposal aimost entirely for
citizens of the County,

The Economic Development Oversight Board, an entity legaliy separate from the County, is governed
by a board appointed by County Council. County Councii has the ability to impose its will and is
financially responsible for the EDOB. its purpose is to encourage economic development in Delaware
County by facilitating the retention of existing business, the formation of new business and the vitality
of all business within the County of Delaware.

The Redevelopment Authority of the County of Delaware, an entity legaiiy separate from the County,
is governed by a board appointed by County Council. County Counci! has the ability to impose its wiil
on the RDA. The RDA was created by the County for the delivery of services to County residents,
pursuant to the Urban Redevelopment Law, Act of 1945. The RDA acts as the vehicle for
condemnation and development within the County.

The Delaware County Chester Waterfront Industrial Development Authority, an entity legally separate
from the County, is governed by a board whose voting majority is appointed by County Council.
County Council has the ability to impose its will and is financially responsible for the !DA. The IDA is
an industrial development authority incorporated in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania on July 3,
2008. IDA was formed pursuant to the Economic Development Financing Law (73 P.S, Section 371)
for the purpose of acquiring, constructing, financing, improving and maintaining industrial and
commercial development projects and public facilities in certain geographic regions within the City of
Chester.
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Complete financial statements for the individual component units can be obtained from their respective
administrative offices as follows:

• Delaware County Solid Waste Authority
Rose Tree Park Hunt Ciub
1521 North Providence Road
Media, Pennsylvania 19063

• Economic Development Oversight Board
100 West 6th Street, Suite 100
Media, Pennsy!vanja 19063

• Delaware County Chester Waterfront
industriai Development Authority
100 West 6ih Street, Suite 100
Media, Pennsyivania 19063

• Redevelopment Authority of the County of Delaware
100 West 6ti1 Street, Suite 100
Media, Pennsyivania 19063
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The following presents the condensed financial statements for each of the discretely presented
component units.

Condensed Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2018

Assets:
Current assets
Long-term assets

Capital assets, net

Total assets

Deferred outflows of resources

Tota!

Liabiiities:
Current liabilities
Long-term liabilities
Due to primary

government

Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources

Net position:
Net investment in capita!

assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total net position

Total

Solid Waste
Authority

$ 13,700,905

2,010,500

30,158,920

45,870,325

639,407

$ 46,509,732

$ 4.336,218
26,133,864

7,475,000

37,945,082

126,962

22,268,920

2,000,000

(15,831,232)

8,437,688

$ 46,509,732

Economic
Development

Oversight
Board

$ 1,332,350

1,332,350

$ 1,332,350

$ 95,948

95,948

441,642
794,760

1,236,402

$ 1,332,350

Waterfront
industrial

Development
Authority

$ 63,182

21,404,784

21,467,966

$ 21,467,966

21,404,784

63,182

21,467,966

$ 21,467,966

Redevelopment
Authority

$ 4,339,427 ;

1,024,199

5,363,626

$ 5,363.626 ;

$ 186,305 ;

186,305

5,177,321

5,177,321

$ 5,363,626 ;

Totals

E 19,435,864
2,010,500

52,587,903

74,034,267

639,407

& 74,673,674

& 4,618,471

26,133,864

7,475,000

38,227,335

126,962

43,673,704

2,44.1,642

(9,795,969)

36,319,377

E 74,673,674
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Condensed Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Solid Waste
Authority

Economic
Development

Oversight
Board

Waterfront
Industrial

Development
Authority

Redevelopment
Authority Totals

37,011,762

107,107

174,149 $

658,650 8,901,159

37,185,911

9,666,916

Program revenues:

Charges for services
Operating grants and

contributions

Total

Expenses:

Operating expenses
Depreciation and depietion

Total

Net expense

General revenues(expense)

Change in net position

Net position, beginning

Net position, ending

Related Organizations

The following organizations are considered to be reiated organizations of the County because of their
reiationship and mutual interest. Although the County appoints a voting majority of the organizations'
governing boards in most instances, the County has determined that these organizations are not
component units. These related organizations are as follows:

• Delaware County Housing Authority

• Delaware County Housing Development Corporation

• Delaware County Regional Water Quality Control Authority
• Delaware County Industrial Development Authority

• Community Transit of Delaware County, inc.

• Community Action Agency of Delaware County

• Delaware County Authority
• Delaware Valley Regional Finance Authority ("DVRFA")

37,118,869

43,169,827

43,169,827

(6,050,958)

6,652

(6,044,306)

14,481,994

$ 8,437,688 $

832,799

711,501

711.501

121,298

18,346

139,644

1,096,758

1,236,402 ;

978,833

978,833

(978,833)

1,170

(977,633)

22,445,629

E 21,467,966 $

8,901,159

9,141,762

9,141,762

(240,603)

15,125

(225,478)

5,402,799

5,177,321 ;

46,852,827

53,040,465

978,833

54,019,298

(7.149,096)

41,293

(7,107,803)

43,427,180

? 36,319,377
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3. Component Units - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Solid Waste Authority

Basis of Accounting

The measurement focus is on the flow of economic resources and the accrual basis of
accounting, whereby, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when
incurred. Proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting,

Landfill Site/Depletion

The estimated value of the landfill at acquisition and additional purchases for expanding capacity
is being depleted over the projected life of the landfiil. Depletion is charged annualiy against
income in a manner consistent with the physical usage of the site based upon the site's estimated
capacity. The estimated remaining landfill life is approximately ten years.

Closure and Post Closure Costs

Municipal landfill owners and operators are required to incur costs to provide for protection of the
environment both during the period of the landfill operation and during the post closure period.
These costs are estimated annually and current cost is adjusted for changes in landfill capacity,
operating conditions and increases or decreases in estimated costs. Closure and post closure
costs include equipment installed and facilities constructed near or after the date of acceptance of
solid waste, cost of the final capping, and the cost of monitoring and maintaining the area during
the post ciosure period. The DCSWA has estabiished an account to accumuiate the anticipated
cost of closure and post closure based on usage of the landfi!!. An amount is charged annually to
operations to recognize the current cost and resultant liability based on landfill capacity used to
date. The estimate of closure and post closure costs were determined taking into account
capping, revegetation, maintenance, leachate treatment, water quality monitoring, and gas
control. In determining the closure and post closure costs, an inflation rate was utilized at the rate
of 4.967 percent, plus administrative fees of 10 percent and a contingency charge of $1,369,361
that would anticipate covering unexpected changes in technology, inflation, or applicable laws
and regulations.

Pursuant to the Municipal Waste Planning, Recycling, and Waste Reduction Act of the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Act No. 101 of July 28, 1988, P.L. 556, DCSWA is required to
pay to a trust, on a quarterly basis, $0.25 per ton of weighed waste to be used for remedial
measures and emergency actions necessary to prevent or abate adverse effects on the
environment subsequent to landfill closure. Any funds remaining in the trust subsequent to the
fina! closure are divided between the host county and host municipality.

The DEP raised the bonding requirement to the amount of $20,714,788. In 2014, the Authority
obtained a surety bond amounting to $20,390,083 to cover post closure costs. In addition, the
Authority has deposited $2,000,000 in an escrow account, which serves as collateral and is held
in an interest bearing account by the Surety Company. This amount is reflected as restricted cash
on the statement of net position as of December 31 ,2018.

Accrued closure and post closure costs, as reflected on the statement of net position, totaled
$18,060,763 and $447,944 was charged against income in 2018. The estimated closure and post
closure costs total $22,360,208, comprised of $4,869,201 of ciosure costs and $17,491,007 of
post closure costs. At December 31, 2018, there remains $5,391,367 in closure and post closure
costs to be recognized in excess of the Act 101 requirements previously mentioned.
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Inventory

The DCSWA maintains an inventory of purchased goods used in construction and capping
activities, which are stated at cost.

Restricted Net Position

Restricted net position of the DCSWA represent funds set aside for use during the post-ciosure
phase of the landfill's life.

Capita] Assets

Capita! assets are recorded at historical cost. A full fixed asset inventory was conducted in a prior
period. Estimates were used as originai cost for those items where actuai cost records were
unavailable. Assets not previously accounted for at that time were shown at their net transferable
value with accumulated depreciation charged accordingiy. For those assets considered by
management to be obsolete, a change in accounting estimate was made to reflect proper
depreciation amounts.

Depreciation is recorded on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful Sives of the assets,
which range from two to thirty-seven years. Assets exclusiveiy related to the landfill are
depreciated over the lesser of their estimated usefui life or the anticipated life of the landfill.

The DCSWA capitalizes assets in excess of $2,000,

Covanta Delaware Valley, LP - Revenue and Expense

As of May 15, 2017, the Authority signed an amended and restated service agreement with
Covanta Delaware Valley, LP ("Covanta"). The County, through the DCSWA, is obligated to
deliver County waste to the Covanta facility, and Covanta is required, in turn, to pay to the
DCSWA landfill host community fees for process residue. Further, Covanta pays to the DCSWA
disposal fees for non-County waste. Unless otherwise agreed in writing, the DCSWA shall not
deliver greater than 370,000 tons of acceptable waste, 37,000 tons in each billing period or 2,500
tons each day. Covanta has no obligation to accept any excess waste of the maximums noted. If
Covanta accepts excess waste, then existing additional fees shall apply. For cash management
purposes, the two parties have agreed that the party owing the net balance shall pay to the order
of the other party the statement baiance within 30 days. During 2018, the DCSWA paid to
Covanta $13,932,499, which included insurance costs, for its County waste deliveries. Covanta
paid to the DCSWA $7,602,534 in residue charges.

Concentrations

The DCSWA derived 21 percent of its operating revenue from Covanta.

Waterfront Industrial Development Authority

Property

Capital assets shown on these financial statements have been primarily financed by grants from
both the County and the RDA. Depreciation is provided over the assets' useful lives using the
straight-line method of depreciation.
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Lease and Development Agreement

The IDA entered into a lease and devebpment with F.C. Pennsyh/anEa Stadium LLC, as tenant of
the stadium property to acquire, construct, furnish and equip a new stadium with related
improvements and amenities. Further, the tenant wii! occupy the stadium premises during the
terms of the lease as the tenant's exclusive forum and location for playing and exhibition. The IDA
retains legal ownership of and legal title to the stadium premises. However, during the term of the
agreement, the tenant has legal and beneficial ownership of and legai title to leasehold interest in
and to the Stadium facility.

4. Deposits and Investments

The County's investments are included primarily in the Pension Trust Fund and are invested in
accordance with the appointed Employee's Retirement Board's (the "Board") investment policy. The
policy authorizes the County to invest in a diversified portfoiio including domestic and international
equities, fixed income securities, and cash and cash equivalents. The policy prohibits investments in letter
stock or other unregistered securities, commodities or commodity contracts, short sales, margin
transactions, private placements (with the exception of Rule 144A securities), derivatives, options, or
futures.

in defining the objectives of the Retirement Fund, the Board has carefuily reviewed its current and
projected financial obligations as we!! as the risk and return relationships included in various asset
allocation strategies. Based on these considerations, the Fund objectives are:

1. To invest assets of the Retirement Fund in a manner consistent with the fiduciary standards of Act 96,
namely: (a) all transactions undertaken must be for the sole interest of Fund participants and their
beneficiaries and to provide maximum benefits and defray reasonable expenses in a prudent manner,
and (b) assets are to be diversified in order to minimize the impact of large losses in individual
investments.

2. To provide for the funding and anticipated withdrawa!s on a continuing basis.

3. To consen/e and enhance the capital value of the Retirement Fund in real terms through asset
appreciation and income generation, while maintaining a moderate investment risk profile.

4. To minimize principal fluctuations over the investment cycle (three to five years).

5. To achieve a long-term level of return commensurate with contemporary economic conditions and
equal to or exceeding the investment objective set forth in the policy of the Board.

Equity funds invested in common stock, preferred stocks, and publicly traded real estate investment trusts
shal! be restricted to the high quality, readily marketable securities of corporations that are actively traded
on a major exchange.

Not more than 5 percent of the total stock portfoiio valued at market may be invested in the common
stock of any one corporation. Ownership of the shares of one company shall not exceed 2 percent of
those outstanding. Not more than 25 percent of stock valued at market may be held in any one industry
category. Other than these constraints, there are no qualitative guidelines suggested as to issues,
industry, or individual security diversification.
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In order to maintain an effective money management structure that is style neutral, the large capitalization
growth equity portion of the investment portfoiio shaii not exceed the large capitalization value equity
portion of the portfolio by more than a two-to-one ratio. Conversely, value shall not exceed growth by the
same ratio, This same relationship should be followed for the portfolio's small capitalization equity money
managers as well.

With regards to fixed income investments, all investments shall be high quality, marketabie securities with
a preponderance of the investments in (1) U.S. Treasury, federal agencies, and U.S. government-
guaranteed obligations, and (2) investment grade municipal or corporate issues including convertibles.

Credit Risk

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to magnitude of the County's investment in a
single issuer. Fixed income securities of any one issuer shall not exceed 5 percent of the total bond
portfoilo at time of purchase, This does not apply to issues of the U.S. Treasury or other federal
agencies.

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the
investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized rating
organization. The overall rating of the fixed income assets shall be at least "A," according to either
Moody's or Standard & Poor's rating system. In cases where the yield spread adequately
compensates for additional risk, Baa or BBB ratings can be purchased up to a maximum of
15 percent of total market value of fixed income securities, if the credit quality of any one issue should
drop below Baa or BBB, the investment manager should notify the Board and the investment
consultant immediately, detailing their plan of action regarding the security.

Active bond management is encouraged and may require transactions that will temporarily lower the
return or change the maturity of the portfolio in anticipation of market changes. Holdings of individual
securities should be liquid so as not to incur unnecessary transaction costs.

The following securities and transactions are not authorized and sha!J not be purchased: letter stock
and other unregistered securities, commodities of commodity contracts, short sales, margin
transactions, private piacements (with exception of Rule 144A securities), derivatives, options of
futures for the purpose of portfolio leveraging are also prohibited, issues of or by instrumentaiities
deemed to be in vioiation of the Prohibited Transactions Standards of Act 96. Neither real estate
equity nor natural resource properties such as oil, gas, or timber may be held except by purchase of
publicly traded securities, except for existing real estate holdings. The purchase of collectibles is also
prohibited.

All securities shail be held by a custodian appointed by the Board for safekeeping. The custodian
shall produce statements at least quarterly listing the name and value of ail assets held, and the
dates and nature of all transactions. Assets of the Fund held as liquidity of investment reserves shall,
at all times, be invested in interest-bearing accounts.

At December 31, 2018, cash and cash equivalents consists of cash on hand of $18,100, deposits with
financial institutions of $188,428,528'and cash equivalents of $30,542,268 held in uninsured
investment funds. At December 31 , 2018, the carrying amount of deposits with financial institutions
and the bank balance was $188,428,528 and $205,026,535 respectively. The differences were
caused primarily by items in transit.
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Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the County's deposits may not be
returned to it. The County does not have a deposit policy for custodia! credit risk. Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania Act 72 of 1971 ("Act 72"), as amended, allows banking institutions to satisfy the
collateralization requirement by pooling eligible investments to cover total pubiic funds on deposit in
excess of federal insurance. Such pooled collatera! is pledged with the financial institutions' trust
departments. At December 31, 2018, $898,046 of the County's bank balance was insured by the
Federal Deposit insurance Corporation ("FDIC"). The remaining balance of $204,128,489 is fully
collateralized by securities pledged and held by the financial institution in accordance with Act 72, as
indicated above. At December 31 , 2018, the County's bank balance was exposed to custodial credit
risk as follows:

Uninsured and coilatera! held by pledging bank's trust
department not in the County's name $ 204,128,489

Custodiai credit risk is the risk that in the event of a failure of the counterparty (trustee) to a
transaction, the County will not be able to recover the value of its investment. The Board does not
have a formai policy for custodial credit risk. As of December 31, 2018, the County's total cash
equivalents and investments held with investment fund institutions, excluding its investment in joint
venture, of $446,057,165 were exposed to custodial credit risk, since the investments were uninsured
securities held by its custodian, but not in the County's name,

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment, Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater sensitivity of its fair value
to changes in market interest rates. The Board's investment guidelines have no formai policy that
limits investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to interest rate risk. The Board has
adopted a long-term investment horizon such that the chances and duration of investment losses are
carefully weighed against the long-term potentiai for appreciation of assets.

Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in the foreign exchange rates will adversely affect the
fair value of an investment. The Board's policy allows 20 percent of the portfolio be invested in
developed international markets. On December 31, 2018, the international equity fund represented
approximately 17.2 percent of the total portfolio.
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The following is the carrying value (fair value) of deposits and investments at December 31 ,2018:

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments:
U.S. government and agencies

Corporate bonds

Stocks
Guaranteed investment contracts
Annuity
Asset-backed securities

Municipa! bonds

Total investments in pension trust fund

Total

S&P
Rating <1^

N/A

AA+
N/A
A-

AA-

A
BBB+

A+
BBB
AAA
AA

AA+
BBB-

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
AAA
N/A
A+
AA
AA-

AA+
AAA
N/A

Duration
(Range) t1>

N/A

1.29-3.91

0-11.32

0.31-4.99

0.31-4.17

0.39-5.15

0.35-5.04

0.31-4.14

0.29-4.18

0.31-3.38

0.31-0.87

0.94-5.11

0.53-1.56

0
N/A
N/A
N/A
0.60

0.40
1.17-1.75

0.55-6.1

1.37-3.46

0.42-4.46

0.1-1.71

0.96-1.76

Fair Value

$ 218,988,896

1,620,603
48,366,209
13,524,880
5,759,155
8,299,586

10,361,704
5,622,549
9,717,211

372,559
694,739

3,995,364
1,658,382

63,784
289,724,029

37,762,707
3,324,239

83.001
59,447

317,047
3,093,959

358,159
689,902
386,892
201,058

446,057,165

$ 665,046,061

(1)N/A-not applicable
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5. Fair Value Measurements

The County's cash and cash equivalents and investments measured at fair value include the following
assets from each major fund classification at December 31, 2018:

Cash and Cash
Equivalents

Restricted Cash
and Cash

Equivalents Investments Total

Governmenta! Activities
Bussness-Type Activity
Pension Trust Fund
Deshong Private-Purpose Trust Fund

Total cash and cash equivalent
and investments

117,980,840
7,824,867

30,542,268
40,514

61,591,029
1,009,378

446,057,165

179,571,869
8,834,245

476,599,433
40,514

$ 156,388,489 $ 62,600,407 $ 446,057,165 $ 665,046,061

The County measures its cash and cash equivalents and investments on a recurring basis in accordance
with the fair value hierarchy. The investments were measured with the following inputs at December 31,
2018:

Cash and cash equivalents

Common stock

Fixed income

Annuity contract
Guaranteed investment

contracts

Total

Carrying Value

$ 218,988,897

289,724,029

115,246,190

3,324,239

37,762,707

$ 665,046,061

Fair
Value

$ 218,988,897

289,724,029

115,246,190

$ 623,959,116

Quoted Prices
tn Active
Markets
(Level 1)

$ 218,988,897

289,724,029

115,246,190

$ 623,959,116

Other
Observable

Inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservabie

Inputs
(Level 3)

3,324,239

37,762,707

$ 41,086,946

Total

$ 218,988,897

289,724,029

115,246,190

3,324,239

37,762,707

$ 665,046,061

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. inputs to valuation techniques refer to
the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability, inputs may be
observable, meaning those that reflect the reporting entity's own belief about the assumptions market
participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based upon the best information available in the
circumstances. Additionally, the inputs are prioritized based on a three-level hierarchy that gives the
highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabiiities and the lowest priority to
unobservable inputs. The fair value hierarchy is as follows:

Level 1 - valuations are based on unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at
the measurement date for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - valuations are based on quoted prices in markets that are not active, or inputs that are
observable either directly or indirectly, for substantially the fui! term of the asset or liabiiity.

Leve! 3 - valuations are based on prices or valuation techniques that require inputs that are both
significant to the fair value measurement and unobservable (i.e. supported by little or no market
activity).
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The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value:

Cash and cash equivalents: The carrying amounts approximate fair value because of the short
maturity of this financial instrument.

Common stock: Valued at fair value based upon quoted market prices.

Fixed income: Valued at fair value based upon quoted market prices, if available, or estimated using
quoted market prices for similar securities.

Annuity contracts: Valued at contract value, which approximates fair value, based on the Prudential
Insurance Company of America's ("Prudential") ability to pay the guaranteed amounts in accordance
with the terms of the contract. As of December 31 , 2018, Prudential's credit ratings were as follows:
A+ by A.M. Best Company, AA- by Fitch Ratings, A1 by Moody's investors Sen/ice, and AA- by
Standard & Poor's. Management believes the credit ratings of Prudentiai as of the measurement date
uphold the firm's ability to meet obligations set forth in the contracts.

Guaranteed investment contracts: Valued at contract value, which approximates fair value, based on
Nationwide Life Insurance Company's ("Nationwide") ability to pay the guaranteed interest rate in
accordance with the terms of the contract. As of December 31, 2018, Nationwide's credit ratings were
as foilows: A+ by A.M. Best Company, A1 by Moody's investors Service, and A+ by Standard &
Poor's. Management believes the credit ratings of Nationwide as of the measurement date uphold the
firm's ability to meet obligations set forth in the contracts.

6. Component Units - Deposits, Investments and Fair Value

Solid Waste Authority

On December 31, 2018, the DCSWA held $8,842,919 in unrestricted cash and cash equivalents.

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the DCSWA's deposits may not be
returned to it. The DCSWA's policy is to place deposits only in FDIC insured institutions. Deposits in
excess of the FDiC limit are collateralized pursuant to Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Public Law 72
of 1971, which allows depositories to satisfy collateralization requirements by pooling eligibie
investments to cover total public funds on deposit in excess of federal insurance.

DCSWA holds a surety bond. The bond requires a cash coliatera! deposit of $2,000,000, which is
included in restricted cash as of December 31, 201 8. Per terms of the surety bond, the collaterai
deposit is protected from custodial credit risk.

At December 31, 2018, the DCSWA's investments consist solely of certificates of deposit totaling
$10,500, which were ai! deemed to be Level 1 investments. The certificates of deposits were values
based on the stated value of the certificates plus accrued interest, which was calculated based on
stated interest rates and dates of maturity.
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Economic Development Oversight Board

On December 31, 2018, the total carrying amount of EDOB's checking and savings deposits was
$769,053, and the corresponding bank balance was $771,172.

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the EDOB's deposits may not be
returned to it. The EDOB's policy is to place deposits only in FDIC insured institutions. Deposits in
excess of the FDIC limit are colfateralized pursuant to Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Public Law 72
of 1971, which allows depositories to satisfy collateralization requirements by pooling eligible
investments to cover total public funds on deposit in excess of federal insurance, in the normal
course of business, EDOB may have deposits that exceed insured balances.

Chester Wateriront Industrial Development Authority

On December 31, 2018, the [DA held $63,182 in cash and cash equivalents and a corresponding
bank baiance of $63,182.

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the IDA'S deposits may not be
returned to it. The IDA does not have a written poiicy for custodial credit risk. The bank balances are
covered by federal depository insurance.

Redevelopment Authority

On December 31, 2018, the total carrying amount of RDA's checking, savings and escrow deposits
was $4,300,644 and the corresponding bank balance was $4,308,734.

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the RDA's deposits may not be
returned to it. The RDA does not have a policy for custodial credit risk. In the normal course of
business, the RDA may have deposits that exceed insured balances.

7. Property Taxes

Real Estate Property Taxes

Real estate property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property on January 1. Taxes are levied
on February 1, payabie on the following terms: 2 percent discount February 1 through April 1; face
amount April 2 through June 1; and 10 percent penalty after June 2. The County bills and collects its
own property taxes. Revenues are recognized in the period In which they become susceptible to
accrual, which is when they become both measurable and available. Rea! estate taxes receivable are
recorded net of an allowance for uncoilectibies totaling $158,249 as of December 31, 2018, on the
statement of net position.

The County is permitted by law to levy taxes of an unlimited rate of mills on every doiiar of assessed
value of real property for general governmental services. At December 31, 2018, the millage rate was
5.604 mills on each dollar of assessed valuation, or the sum of $.5604 on each one hundred dollars
of assessed valuation..
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8. Other Receivables

Other receivables of $5,952,340 in the governmental activities consist of amounts due from the City of
Chester of $5,823,930 (Note 27) and various other receivables of $128,410.

9. Accounts and Grants Receivable, Net

Business-type activity net accounts receivable of $21,155,453 consists of amounts due from the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Department of Human Service Medical Assistance of $7,473,547;
Private Pay Patients of $13,238,094; Medicare Part A and B of $1,666,315 and other patient-related
receivables of $252,752. The accounts receivable aiiowance for uncollectibles is calculated based on
historicai data and currently known facts and was $1,475,255 at December 31, 2018.

Governmental activities net accounts receivable of $3,211,205 consists of amounts due from the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and Harrah's Chester for gaming revenue of $1,511,197 and various
miscellaneous receivables of $1,700,008.

Governmental activities net grants receivable of $35,591,716 consists of amounts due from Federal
agencies and the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.

10. Component Units - Accounts Receivable, Net

The DCSWA manages the County owned transfer stations and is responsible for the receipt and transfer
of soiid waste materials as provided by commercial or private haulers. Beginning in January 1 995, it was
determined by agreement between the DCSWA and the County that the fees and permits collected from
commercial or private haulers would remain with the DCSWA and represent income. Fees that were due
relative to the receipt of solid waste at December 31, 2018 are represented by receivables in the amount
of $2,504,326, net of an allowance for doubtfu! accounts of $103,514. Commercial and private haulers
that deposit waste at the landfili are charged hauling fees that are reflected in the DCSWA's income.
Receivables representing haulerfees at December 31, 2018 totaled $1,110,878 net of an allowance for
doubtful accounts of $109,525.
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11. Restricted Assets

Assets whose use is limited to a specific purpose have been ciassified as "restricted" cash and cash
equivalents in the statement of net position. As of December 31, 2018, restricted cash and cash
equivalents are held for the following:

Primary government:
District Attorney Escrow Funds representing monies

confiscated from arrested individuals, which uitimateiy
will be distributed based upon court order. (The
aggregate amount has been classified as other
restricted assets on the General Fund balance sheet) $ 261,693

Marcellus ShaSe Funds are restricted pursuant to PA
Act 13, for replacement or repair of locally owned
at-risk deteriorated bridges and the planning
acquisition, development rehabilitation and repair of
greenways, recreational trails, open space, natural
areas, community conservation and beautification
projects, community and heritage parks and wafer
resources management 4,403,351

Workers' Compensation Escrow Funds are to be utilized
for payment of major workers' compensation claims 2,074,800

Emergency Communications Escrow Funds to be utilized
for payment of maintenance agreements related to
911 global positioning system equipment in the capital
project fund 1,387

Capital Project Funds to be utilized for various capita!
improvement projects as defined in the corresponding
note agreements 50,236,221

Capital Project Funds to be utilized for Help America Vote
Act Program 18,100

Health and Human Service Funds to be utilized for Health
Choices reinvestment plans 4,595,477

Residents' Accounts are to be utilized by the residents;
Residents Special Aid and Entertainment Escrow
Funds are to be utilized for entertainment of the
Geriatric Center's residents and are distributed by a
resident's council; both are classified as other
restricted assets on the proprietary funds statement of
net position 1,009,378

Total primary government 62,600,407

Component units:
Delaware County Solid Waste Authority deposited funds with

an escrow agent as collateral deposit for surety bond 2,000,000
Delaware County Economic Development Oversight Board

maintains restricted cash related to Community
Deveiopment Biock Grant revolving loan fund
requirements 498,771

Delaware County Redevelopment Authority deposited funds
with an escrow agent

Tota! component unit

Total
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12. Capital Assets

A summary of changes in capital assets follows:

Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being

depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets not
being depreciated

Capital assets being
depreciated:

Land improvements
Buildings and

improvements
Equipment
Infrastructure

Total capita] assets being
depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation
for:

Land improvements

Buildings and
improvements

Equipment
Infrastructure

Total accumulated
depreciation

Tota! capital assets being
depreciated, net

Governmental activities,
capital assets, net

January 1,
2018

$ 6,176,214

6,176,214

22,566,400

235,987,945

107,080,543
24,092,291

389,727,179

12,581,434

122,522,023

82,045,786

4,660,939

221,810,182

167,916,997

$ 174,093,211

Additions

4,496,907

4,496,907

9,300

354,271
5,435,975

244,634

6,044,180

858,620

4,800,161

4,415,568

237,637

10,311,986

(4,267,806)

$ 229,101

Rec iassifi catio ns/
Disposals

(6,109,367)
(243,963)

(6,353,330)

(4,410,851)
(240,346)

(4,651,197)

(1,702,133)

$ (1,702,133)

December 31,
2018

$ 6,176,214
4,496,907

10,673,121

22,575,700

230,232,849
112,272,555

24,336,925

389,418,029

13,440,054

122,911,333

86,221,008

4,898,576

227,470,971

161,947,058

$ 172,620,179
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Business-type activity,
Geriatric Center:

Capital assets being
depreciated:

Buildings and
improvements

Equipment

Totai capital assets being
depreciated

Less accumulated
depreciation for:

Buildings and
improvements

Equipment

Total accumulated
depreciation

Total capital assets being
depreciated, net

January 1,
2018

$ 53,804,542
40,285,971

94,090,513

45,809,007

37,892,951

83,701,958

10,388,555

Additions

$ 908,216
1,030,413

1,938,629

693,780

932,588

1,626,368

312,261

Reciassifications/
Disposals

December 31,
2018

$ 54,712,758

41,316,384

96,029,142

46,502,787

38,825,539

85,328,326

10,700,816

Business-type activity,
capita! assets, net $ 10,388,555 312,261

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental activities as foliows:

General government
Corrections
Public ways and facilities, including depreciation of general

infrastructure assets
Health and human service
Recreation
Other

Total

following is a summary of capita! assets by source:

December 31, 1983 and prior
General obligation bonds
General Fund
State grants
Restricted 911 special revenue

Total

$ 6,599,279
2,272,090

237,637
200,183
955,240
47,557

$ 10,311,986

$ 63,888.593
276,842,750

18,290,830
18,741,838
22,327,139

$ 400,091,150

$ 10,700,816
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13. Component Units " Capital Assets

The capita! asset activity for the DCSWA for the year ended December 31, 201 8 was as foliows;

Capital assets not being
depreciated,
Land !

Capital assets being depreciated or
depleted:

Landfill
Machinery and equipment
Buildings and structures
Pad construction

Totai capital assets being
depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation
and depletion for

Landfiil
Machinery and equipment
Buildings and structures
Pad construction

Totai accumulated
depreciation and
depletion

Totai capital assets being
depreciated or
depleted, net

Capital assets, net !

The capital asset activity for the

Capital assets not being
depreciated,
Land !

Capital assets being depreciated,
Property

Less accumulated depreciation for,

Property

Total capital assets being
depreciated, net

Capita! assets, net ;

January 1,
2018

$ 7,000,000

51,135,989

12,270,806

13,779,638

73,889,207

151,075,640

48,628,309

9,790,262

12,048,333

55,409,000

125,875,904

25,199,736

E 32,199,736

Additions

J__
1,460,142

256,048
1,138,461

2,854,651

385,558
680,297

453,243
3,353,885

4,872,983

(2,018,332)

$ (2.P18^32L

IDA for the year ended December 31

January 1,
2018

? 849,286

29,365,000

7,830,669

21,534,331

E 22,383,617

Additions

_$_-_

978,833

(9Z8A33.L

$ (978,833)

Reciassifications/
Disposals

(1,712,004)

(1,712,004)

(1,689,520)

(1,689,520)

(22,484)

(22,484) ;

, 2018 was as follows

Reclassifications/
Disposals

December 31,
2018

? 7,000,000

51,135,989

12,018,943

14,035,686

75,027,665

152,218,283

49,013,867

8,781,039

12,501,576

58,762,884

129,059,367

23,158,916

? 30,158,920

December 31,
2018

& 849,286

29,365,000

8,809,502

20,555,498

^ 21,404,784
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14. Investment in Joint Venture

Southeastern Pennsylvania Transportation Authority ("SEPTA") runs a multi-modai system of vehicles
and route services in Delaware County along with other areas such as Chester, Montgomery,
Philadelphia and selected areas in New Jersey and Delaware. SEPTA has five participants - Delaware,
Chester, Bucks, Montgomery and Philadelphia Counties, each of which appoints two members to the
Governing Board. Four members are appointed by the Pennsylvania State House and Senate. The
fifteenth member is appointed by the Governor's office. Delaware County has an ongoing financial
responsibiiity as it is obiigated for the Transportation Bonds of SEPTA and the continued existence of
SEPTA depends on continued funding by the County and the other four participants.

Under state law, the County is required to subsidize SEPTA's operating and capital budget annually.
During 2018, the County's operating budget contribution was $10,135,834, and capital additions were
$2,004,119. As the investment in the joint venture is primarily related to capital purchases with estimable
useful lives, typically of 15 to 30 years, the County determined the investment in the joint venture to have
an estimated life of 30 years. Current year amortization of the investment was $7,075,731. Included on
the statement of net position is an investment in a joint venture totaling $183,876,297 at December 31,
2018.

Complete financial statements for SEPTA can be obtained from the administrative offices of SEPTA or at
septa.org/strategic-plan/reports.html.

15. Long-Term Liabilities

Primary Government

The following is a summary of changes in noncurrent liabilities of the County excluding other post-
employment benefit (Note 22) and pension (Note 23) liabilities for the year ended December 31 ,
2018:

Govemmentai activities:
Liability for general

obligation debt
Liability for daims payable
Liability for early

retirement incentive

Govemmenta! activity,
Long-term liabilities

Business-type activity,
Liability for general

obligation debt

Beginning
Balance

$ 260,610,450
6,221,458

163,529

$ 266,995,437

$ 27,411,666

Additions

$ 40,000,000
49,742,036

$ 89,742,036

$ 1,931,123

Reductions

$ (20,626,745) ;
(50,510,448)

(163,.529)_

$ 71,300,772 !

$ (3,937,134) !

Ending
Balance

^ 279,983,705 ;
5,453,046

E 285,436,751 :

? 25,405,656

Due within
One Year

$ 17,435,945
2,914,665

$ 20,350,610

$ 3,669,055

The long-term liabilities are generally liquidated by the fund to which they relate. The significant funds
to which they relate are the General, Health and Human Services, and Geriatric Care Fund.
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Component Unit

The following is a summary of changes in noncurrent !iabi!Eties of the DCSWA for the year ended
December 31, 2018:

Liability for revenue notes
payable

Liability for accrued dosure
costs

Long-term liabilities

Beginning
Balance

$ 8,391,000

17,612,819

$ 26,003,819

Additions

447,944

$ 447,944

Reductions

$ (501,000) ;

$ (501,000) !

Ending
Balance

? 7,890,000

18,060,763

? 25,950,763

Due within One
Year

$ 518,000

$ 518,000

16. General Obligation Debt

The following are summaries of changes in general obligation debt, by type, for the year ended
December 31, 2018:

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activity Total

Outstanding at beginning of the year $ 260,610,450 $ 27,411,666 $ 288,022,116
issuance of debt 40,000,000 - 40,000,000
Allocation of debt for capital assets (1,931,123) 1,931 ,123
Accretion of bond premiums (1 ,708,532) (381,223) (2,089,755)
Retirements and repayments (16,987.090) (3,555,910) 20,543,000

Outstanding at end of year $ 279,983,705 $ 25,405,656 $ 305,389,361

Total balance includes the premiums of $4,365,361. Actual debt outstanding was $301,024,000 at
December 31, 2018.

The outstanding balance at December 31, 2018 related to governmental activities of $279,983,705
includes $6,739,051 of debt used to fund the capital assets of SEPTA. The following summarizes general
obligation debt. by type, outstanding at December 31, 2018:

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activity Total

Serial bonds and notes $ 273,244,654 $ 25,405,656 $ 298,650,310
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A summary of general obligation debt outstanding at December 31, 2018 is as follows:

Year of
Issue/
Final Amount of

Maturity Original Issue Purpose

Outstanding at
December 31,

2018
Current
Portion

12,432,000

12,220,000

343,000

14,310,000

4,746,000

343,000

40,000

Fund SEPTA projects, building and park
improvements, construction of a prison, and

1997/2022 $ 50,000,000 various other County projects

Refinance the 1999 notes used to fund SEPTA
2002/2022 61,524,000 projects and various other County projects

Fund voting machine project and various other
2005/2019 10,000,000 County projects

Refinance the 2004 Note and to refinance a
2007/2027 26,720,000 portion of the 2002 Note

Provide funds in the form of a grant to the
Delaware County Chester Waterfront
Industrial Deveiopment Authority, which will
be used to acquire, construct, and equip a
new soccer stadium in the City of Chester,

2009/2039 28,595,000 Delaware County

Refund the 1999 Generai Obligation Note to
2009/2019 54,750,000 reduce total debt service

Refund the 2008 Genera! Obligation Note and
for various other capital projects at the

2010/2028 45,180,000 County

Fund SEPTA projects, construction and
renovations of County buildings and various

2012/2032 20,000,000 other County projects

Fund SEPTA projects, construction and
renovations of County buildings and various

2013/2033 25,000,000 other County projects

Partially refund the 1997 and 2002 notes
2014/2025 45,166,000 payable to level debt sen/ice payments

Fund SEPTA projects, construction and
renovations of County buildings and various

2015/2035 25,000,000 other County projects

Refund the 2005 bond to reduce total debt
2016/2021 49,420,000 service

Fund construction and renovations of'County
buildings, equipment, SEPTA, and open

2018/2038 40,000,000 space projects

Total

interest rates on the above obligations are fixed and variable. Fixed interest rates range 1.39 percent to
5.00 percent. Variable interest rates are limited to a maximum potential variable rate of 15 percent.

There are a number of limitations and restrictions contained in the various bond indentures.

23,125,000

7,395,000

45,145,000

19.994,000

24,995,000

45,158,000

24,997,000

30,910,000

40,000,000

$ 301,024,000 ^

700,000

7,395,000

5,000

1,000

1,000

2,000

1,000

7,870,000

1,000

? 21,105,000
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Amounts due from governmental funds are expected to be repaid from the General Fund. A summary of
principal and interest maturities on general obligation serial bonds and notes outstanding at
December 31, 2018 is presented below:

Principal
IVIaturity

$ 21,105,000
21.520,000
22,146,000
24,366,000
24.991,000

100.795,000
54,194,000
30,217,000

1,690.000

$ 301,024,000

Interest
Maturity <1>

$ 8,291,480
7,648,197
7,032,848
6,223,130
5,677,839

20,538,169
10,705,625
3.430,198

86,613

$ 69,334,099

Total Principal
and Interest
iVIaturities

$ 29.396,480
29,168,197
29,178,848
30.589,130
30,668,839

121,333,169
64,899,625
33,647,198

1.776,613

$ 370,358,099

Years:
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024-2028
2029-2033
2034-2038
2039

Total

(1> Includes interest at year-end rates for variable rate notes. Interest on the variable rate notes is paid
and adjusted monthly based on certain factors. Actual interest expense on al! long-term debt totaled
$7,762,067 for the year ended December 31, 2018.

Delaware Valley Regional Finance Authority ("DVRFA") was formed for the purpose of estabhshing a
pooled loan program for the benefit of local governmental units in the Delaware Valley region. The County
has entered into genera! obligation notes with DVRFA of which $ 239,594,000 is outstanding at
December 31, 2018.

DVRFA has entered into interest rate swap agreements with third party financial institution counterparties
reiated to the bonds DVRFA issued, the proceeds of which fund the pooled loan program. If the swap
agreements were terminated, DVRFA would receive or be obligated to pay the market value of the swap
agreements at the termination date. If DVRFA were obligated to make a payment and sufficient funds
were not available, each borrower would be assessed its ailocable share of the termination payment.
Borrowers are not entitled to any payments DVRFA would receive from a counterparty as a result of a
termination. A related interest rate swap agreement may be terminated under the following
circumstances: 1) DVRFA and the counterparty mutually consent to the termination, 2) the borrower
defaults on its loan, or 3) DVRFA or the counterparty default or their financial conditions deteriorate to
make a default imminent. DVRFA would seek to replace the terminated underlying swap agreement with
a new agreement with similar terms and conditions upon termination.

DVRFA enters into interest rate swap agreements to provide fixed interest rates to borrowers. The
agreement would normally only be terminated if the borrower requested it, including prepayment of the
outstanding note, or if the borrower defaulted on its loan. The borrower would be responsible for any
termination payment. The borrower is not entitled to receive any payments DVRFA would receive from
the counterparty as a result of a termination.
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As of December 31, 2018, the market value of interest rate swap agreements related to outstanding
general obligation notes outstanding are as follows:

General Obligation Note Year of Issue

1997
2002
2005
2007
2010
2012
2013
2014
2015
2018

Balance
Outstanding

$ 12,432,000
12,220,000

343,000
14,310,000
45,145,000
19,994.000
24,995,000
45,158,000
24,997,000
40.000,000

Market Value of
Related

AIIocable
Interest Rate

Swap

$ 1,499,143
1.473,578

41,361
1,725,606
5,443,920
2,411,025
3,014,083
5,445,488
3,014,324
4,823,498

Market Value of
Related

Fixed Rate Loan
Swap

$ 229,656
268,143

(110)
(8,880)

442,551
53,160

643,732
467,344

(2,434,327)

17. Component Unit - Notes Payable

Revenue Notes Payable

On March 25, 2009, the DCSWA authorized the issuance of Guaranteed Revenue Notes, 2009
Series (the "Notes") totaling $7,200,000. The 2009 Notes were used for certain capita! projects
consisting of a) the construction of leachate collection and treatment facilities, b) the acquisition of
vehicles and equipment, c) the construction of and improvements to the Rolling Hills Landfill, d) the
rehabilitation of wells, and e) the payment of the costs of issuance of the 2009 Notes. The 2009
Notes were issued over a two year period.

On March 25, 2009, the DVRFA issued on behalf of the DCSWA, Guaranteed Revenue Notes, 2009
A Series (the "2009 A Notes") in the amount of $2,400,000, 2009 B Series (the "2009 B Notes") in the
amount of $2,400,000, and 2009 C Series (the "2009 C Notes") in the amount of $2,400,000.

Principal is payable annually on March 25 and interest is payabie monthly at a rate of 3.38 percent for
Series A, 3.23 percent for Series B and 3.39 percent for Series C as per the Notice of Fixed Rate
Conversion.

On March 26, 2012, the DCSWA authorized the issuance of Guaranteed Revenue Notes, 2012
Series (the "2012 Notes") totaling $4,000,000. The 2012 Notes were used for certain capital projects
consisting of a) the construction of leachate collection and treatment faciiities, b) the acquisition of
vehicles and equipment, c) the construction of and improvements to the Rollings Hills Landfill, d) the
rehabilitation ofweiis, and e) the payment of the costs of issuance of the Notes.

On March 26, 2012, the DVRFA issued on behalf of the DCSWA, Guaranteed Revenue Notes, 2012
A Series (the "2012 A Notes") in the amount of $4,000,000. Principal is payable annualiy on June 25
beginning June 25, 2013. Interest is payable monthly at a rate of 2.485 percent as per the Notice of
Fixed Rate Conversion.
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The County has guaranteed the 2009 and 2012 loan agreements listed above between the DCSWA
(component unit) and DVRFA in accordance with the laws of Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. In the
event that the DCSWA is unable to make payment, the County will be required to make payment. The
guarantees are for the term and amount of the debt disclosed below. There are no arrangements for
recovery of payments.

The aggregate annual principal and interest payments for each of the following years ending
December 31 are as follows:

Principal Interest

$ 518,000 ;
534,000
551,000
568,000
585,000

5,134,000

$ 7,890,000 ;

? 229,176
213,154
196,632
179,586
161,991
616.203

^ 1,596,742

Years ending:
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024-2032

Total

For the year ended December 31, 2018, interest expense amounted to $242,475.

18. Other Liabilities

Other liabilities represent accrued expense and other obiigations with third parties payable expected to be
settled and paid within one year, On the statement of net position, governmental activities other liabilities
of $38,275,335 consists of $11,994,123 of accrued payroll expenses, $7,839,638 of accrued expense
payable to vendors, $7,205,780 of internal governmental transfer balance payable on behalf of Fair
Acres, $5,560,478 of refundable deposits held by the Sherriff's Office, Office of Judicia! Support, and
Recorder of Deeds, $2,077,314 of delinquent tax settlements payabie, $1 ,073,208 of fund to be refunded
or escheated, and $2,524,794 of Sherriff's sale proceeds payable to creditors.

19. Interfund Receivables and Payables

Interfund receivabie and payabSe balances as of December 31, 2018 are as follows:

Due from
Other Funds

Due to
Other Funds

General Fund
Capital Projects Fund
Health and Human Service Fund
Other Governmental Funds
Proprietary Fund
internal Service Funds

Total

$ 61,499,015 $

27,266,001
13,423,319

647,618

47,406,134
10,185,866
16,543,307
16,366,037
7,944,210
4,390,399

$ 102,835,953 $ 102,835,953

These balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that (1) Jnterfund goods and services are
provided or reimbursabie expenditures occur, and (2) transactions are recorded En the accounting system
and payments between the funds are made.
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20. Amounts Due To/From Component Units

The following is a summary of amounts due to/from component unit (the "DCSWA") at December 31,
2017, activity for 2018, and amounts due at December 31, 2018:

Balance, December 31, 2017
Additions
Repayments

Balance, December 31, 2018

General Fund

$ 2,007,387

<2,9681.

$ 2,004,419

Capital Projects
Fund

$ 5,475,000

$ 5,475,000

Total

$ 7,482,387

(2,968)

$ 7,479,419

The County has made advances to the DCSWA from time to time for operations and or capital purchases
and improvements. The amount due from the DCSWA to the County's Capital Project fund of $5,475,000
reflects a pledged investment, which is not expected to be liquidated within the current operating cycle.

21. Interfund Transfers

Interfund transfers for the year ended December 31, 2018 are as follows:

Transfers In Transfers Out

General Fund $ 540,000 $ 16,233,002
Capital Projects 1,807,791
Health and Human Service Fund 13,846,001 6.923,000
Proprietary Fund 2,903,233
Other Governmental Funds 4,598,977 540,000

Tota! $ 23,696,002 $ 23,696.002

Transfers from the Genera! Fund to the Health and Human Service Fund and the other governmental
funds are unrestricted revenue collected in the General Fund used for the County's match for various
grant agreements. Transfers from the Genera! Fund to the enterprise fund are unrestricted revenues
collected in the General Fund used to subsidize operating shortfalls in the proprietary fund. Transfers
from the Health and Human Services Funds represent the transfer of funds from the human services
administrative fund, which handles centralized costs that are allocated, to the other health and human
services funds.
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22. Other Post-Employment Benefits

Plan Description

The Delaware County Health Plan is single-employer plan administered by the County. The Plan is a
welfare pian designed to provide hospitai, medical-surgical, major medical and prescription benefits to
eligible employees and their dependents.

The County pays premiums for medical insurance on behalf of eligible retirees and their dependents.
Eligible retirees are defined as individuals who retire with a normal or early pension and who has
attained the age of sixty or who has twenty years of service. An eligible employee may also be an
individual who has been employed by the County for five years of service and before reaching
superannuation retirement age, is disabled while in service and is unable to continue as a County
employee, A dependent is defined as a lawful spouse and unmarried children under twenty-seven
years of age, Dependent children may be included up through age twenty-six.

The Plan is unfunded and no financial report is prepared. The County expressly reserves the right, in
its sole discretion, at any time and from time to time to amend or terminate the existence, amount or
nature of a benefit; alter or postpone the conditions for or method of payment of a benefit; amend or
rescind a provision of the Plan; merge the Plan with another pian; and terminate the Plan in its
entirety. The Plan is authorized and under the contra!, maintenance and operation of the County.

Plan Membership

At December 31, 201 8, the Plan membership consisted of the following:

inactive members or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 1,453
inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits
Active members 2,654

Total membership 4,107

Funding Policy

Plan members do not contribute to the plan; the County pays 100 percent of the cost of coverage for
retired covered employees. The required contribution is based on pay-as-you-go financing
requirements. County Council has the authority to amend the Plan including changing the obligations
of the plan members and the County to contribute to the Plan.
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Net OPEB Liability of the County

The County net OPEB liability was measured as of December 31, 2018, and the total OPEB liability
used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by and actuarial valuation as of that date.

Totai other post-empioyment benefit liability $ 454,668,067
Plan fiduciary net position

Net other post-employment benefit liability $ 454,668,067

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total
OPEB liability 0.0%

The calculations are based on the types of benefits provided under the terms of the Plan at the time
of the valuation. The projection of benefits for financial reporting purposes does not incorporate the
potential effects of lega! or contractual funding limitations on the pattern of cost sharing between the
employer and plan members in the future.

Actuarial Assumptions

The tota! OPEB iiability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2018 utiiizing
the entry age actuarial cost method. The following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods
included in the measurement, were used in determination of the total OPEB liability:

Inflation - 2.50 percent

Salary increase rate - 3.50 percent per annum

Healthcare cost trend rates-the following heaithcare cost trend assumptions were applied in
2018 and will reduce by 0.5 percent each year until the ultimate trend rated indicated is
reached:

Expense Type 2018 Rate

7.0%
6.0%
7.0%
4.5%

Ultimate Rate

4.5%

4.5%
4.5%

4.5%

Pre-Medicare medicai and Rx Benefits
Medicare benefits
Stop loss fees
Administrative fees

Per capita health claim cost - the expected annual per capita claim costs were $1 1,000 for age 60
and $4,300 for age 70

Plan participation percentage -100 percent of ali employees and their dependents wil! participate
in the Plan

Mortality rates - RP-2014 generational table scaled using MP-17and appiied on a gender-specific
basis

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 4.09 percent. The investments
expected to be used to finance the payments of benefits would be plan assets for funded plans,
assets of the employer for pay-as-you-go plans, or a proportionate combination of the two for plans
that are being partially funded.
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Changes En the Net OPEB Liability

Balance at January 1, 2018

Service cost

interest

Changes of assumptions or other inputs

Benefit payments

Balance at December 31, 2018

Total OPEB
Liability

$ 485,369,968

18,690,090

17,101,669

(52,656,643)

(13,837,017)

$ 454.668.067

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the County, as well as what the County's net OPEB
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or
1-percentage-point higher than the current discount rate:

1% Decrease
3.09%

Current
Discount Rate

4.09%
1% Increase

5.09%

2018 Net OPEB liability $ 379,891,000 $ 454,668,000 $ 550,739,000

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the County, as well as what the County's net OPEB
iiability would be if it were calculated using heaithcare cost trend rates that are 1 "percentage-point
lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rates:

1% Decrease
(5.5% decreasing

to 3.5)

Healthcare Cost
Trend Rates

(6.5% decreasing
to 4.5)

1% Increase
(7.5% decreasing

to 5.5)

2018NetOPEBiiabi!ity $ 381,205,000 $ 454,668,000 $ 551,000,000
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OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to OPEB

For the year ended December 31, 2018, the County recognized OPEB expense of $32,792,995.

Gains and losses related to the difference between assumptions and actual experience are amortized
over a period of 7.9 years starting on January 1, 2017. At December 31, 2018, the County reported
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following
sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflow of Inflow of
Resources Resources

Changes in assumptions $ 21,655,837 $ (45,976,566)

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Years ending December 31:
2019 $ (2,998.765)
2020 (2,998,765)
2021 (2,998,765)
2022 (2,998,765)
2023 (2,998,765)
Thereafter (9,326,904)

Total $ (24,320,729)

23. Employees' Retirement Plan

Plan Description and Administration

The Delaware County Emptoyees' Pension Plan (the "Plan") is a singie-empioyer defined benefit
pension plan that covers all fuil-time employees of the County. The plan is included in the
accompanying financial statements of the County as a pension trust fund and does not issue a
separate pian financial statement.

The plan is governed by the Delaware County Employees' Retirement System Trust, Amended and
Restated Effective January 1, 2011 plan document. The retirement trust is administered in good-faith
compliance with the appiicable provisions of the Internal Revenue Code and consistent with
Commonwealth of Pennsyivania's Act 96 of 1971, as amended, commonly referred to as the County
Pension Law. The plan is managed by the Delaware County Retirement Board, which consists of five
members - three elected County Counci! members, the County Controller and the County Treasurer.
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At January 1, 201 7, the measurement date, members of the plan was as follows:

inactive plan members currently receiving benefits 1,575
inactive plan members entitled to benefits but not yet receiving them 163
Current employees 2,966

Total membership 4,704

Number of participating empioyers _^

Benefits Provided

The Plan provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Retirement benefits for plan members
are calculated as a percent of the member's highest three-year average salary times the number's
years of service depending on class basis. Plan members with 20 years of service are eligible to
retire at age 55. Plan members that have attained age 60 are eligible to retire. Al! pian members are
eligible for disability benefits after five years of service if disabled while in service and unabie to
continue as a County employee. Disabiiity retirement benefits are equal to 25 percent of the highest
average salary at time of retirement. Death benefits for a member who dies with 1 0 years of service
prior to retirement is the total present value of member's retirement paid in a lump sum, A plan
member who ieaves County service with less than five years of service may withdraw his or her
contributions, plus any accumulated interest. On an ad hoc basis, cost-of-living adjustments to each
member's retirement allowance shall be reviewed at least once in every three years subsequent to
the member's retirement date. The adjustment, should the County elect to give one, is a percentage
of the change in the Consumer Price Index. Benefits are determined by the plan document, which is
in accordance with the Commonweaith of Pennsylvania's Act 96 of 1971, as amended, commonly
referred to as the County Pension Law.

Funding Policy and Contributions

Employees are required to contribute a portion of their salaries (7 percent of earnings) to the Plan and
employees can elect to contribute up to 17 percent of their saiaries. Per Act 96 of 1 971, contribution
requirements of the plan members and the County may be amended by the General Assembly of the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. Interest is credited each year in an amount allowed by the County
Retirement Board to each member's account. Administrative costs of the Plan are financed through
investment earnings.

The Plan's funding policy provides for periodic employer contributions at actuariaHy determined rates.
The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits
earned by p!an members during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued
liability, Leve! percentages of payroll employer contribution rates are determined using the entry age
normal actuarial cost funding method.

For 2018, the annual contribution by the County was $1,527,490 based on the January 1, 2017
actuarial valuation using the entry age normal cost method. The actuarial assumptions included
(a) 7,5 percent investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses) compounded annually,
(b) projected salary increases of 3,5 percent per year, and (c) cost-of-living adjustments provided at
the discretion of the Delaware County Employees' Retirement Board. Both (a) and (b) included an
inflation component of 3.0 percent. The actuarial value of assets is calculated using the greater of the
market value of assets as of the valuation date or the actuarial value of assets as of the prior
valuation date, plus contributions and other deposits (except investment income) minus benefit
payments, administrative expenses, or other payments, plus credited interest at 1 percent less than
the Plan's assumed rate to the valuation date. The actuarial value of assets will be limited to a
maximum of 120 percent and a minimum of 80 percent of the market value of assets as of the
valuation date,
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Deposits and Investments

The Pian allows funds to be invested pursuing a strategy that reduces risk through the prudent
diversification of the portfolio across 9 broad selection of distinct asset classes. The following was the
Board's asset allocation poiicy for the 2017 measurement period.

Long-Term

Expected
Real Rate of

Asset Class Target Return

Domestic equity 40-50% 5.4-6.4 %
International equity 15-25 5.5-6.5
Fixed income 25-35 1.3-3.3
Real estate 0-10 4.5-5.5

Cash and cash equivalents 0-10 0.0-1.0

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a buiiding-
block method, which best-estimate ranges of expected future rea! rates of return (expected returns,
net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.
These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the
expected future rea! rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and adding expected
inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic reai rates of return for each major asset class included in the
pension plan's target asset aiiocation for the 2017 measurement period are summarized in the above
table.

There was a significant change in the net plan fiduciary net position during 2018 due to market
performance of plan investments.

Rate of Return

For the year ended December 31, 2017, the annual money-weighted rate of return on pension plan
investments, net of Pension Fund investment expense, was 15.27 percent. The money-weighted rate
of return expresses investment performance, net of investment expense, adjusted for the changing
amounts actually invested.

Net Pension (Asset) Liability

The components of the net pension asset of the Plan as of December 31, 2017 were as foilows:

Total pension liability $ 495,252,845
Plan fiduciary net position 531 ,331,994

Plan net pension asset $ (36,079,149)

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of total pension
Ability 107,28%
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Changes in the Net Pension (Asset) Liability

The changes in the County's net pension (asset) liability during the year ended December 31 , 2017
are asfoHows;

Increases (Decreases)

Balances at January 1, 2017
Changes for the year:

Service cost
interest cost
Difference between expected and

actual experience
Contributions - employer
Contributions - plan member
Net investment income
Benefit payments, including

refunds

Net changes

Balances at December 31, 2017

Total Pension
Liability

(a)

$ 477,926,499

15,286,753
35,056,767

(8,234,316)

(24,782,858)

17,326,346

$ 495,252,845

Plan Fiduciary
Net Position

(b)

$ 472,059,676

4,762,155
10,584,568
68,708,453

(24,782,858)

59,272,318

$ 531.331,994

Net Pension
Liability(Asset)

(a) - (b)

$ 5,866,823

15,286,753
35,056,767

(8,234,316)
4,762,155

10,584,568
68,708,453

(41,945,972^

$ (36,079,149)

The schedule of changes in the employer's net pension liability and related ratios, presented as
required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements, presents
mu!thyear trend information related to the funded status of the Plan.

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability above was determined by an actuariai valuation performed as of
December 31, 2017 using the foilowing actuarial methods and assumptions:

Actuariai valuation date
Actuaria! cost method
Actuarial assumptions:

Projected salary increases
infiation
Interest rate
Cost-of-ilving adjustments

Asset valuation method

January 1, 2017 rolled"
forward to December 31

Entry-age normal

3.5%
3.0%

7.5%
0.0%

Fair-Market Value

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2013 Annuitant and Non-Annuitant Mortality Tables for Males
and Females with no projected improvement. The actuarial assumptions used in the valuation for the
2016 measurement period were based on past experience under the plan and reasonable future
expectations, which represent the actuary's best estimate of anticipated experience under the pian.
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Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liabiiity for the Plan was 7.5 percent. The
projection of cash fiows used to determine the discount rate assumed that member contributions will
be made at the current contribution rate and that County contributions will be made at rates equa! to
actuarially determined contribution rates. Based on those assumptions, the Pension Fund's fiduciary
net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current
plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Discount Rate Sensitivity

The following is a sensitivity analysis of the net pension asset to changes in the discount rate. The
table below presents the pension (asset) liability of the Plan caicuiated using the discount rate of
7.5 percent as well as what the net pension liability would be if it were to be calculated using a
discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (6.5 percent) or 1 percentage point higher (8,5 percent)
than the current rate:

1% Decrease Current 1% Increase
(6.5%) Discount Rate (8.5%)

Net pension liabiiity (asset) $ 10.618,227 $ (36,079,149) $ (78,423,646)

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources

For the year ended December 31, 2018, the County recognized pension expense of $29,288,903. At
December 31, 2018, the County reported deferred outflows of resources related to pensions from the
foliowing sources:

Deferred
Outflow of
Resources

$ 26,543
16,731,888

1,527,490

$ 18.285.921

Deferred
Inflow of

Resources

(26,921,148)
(6,940,713)

$ (33,861,861)

Differences between expected and actual experience
Net difference between projected and actual earning
Changes in assumptions
Contributions made subsequent to measurement date

Totai

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deffered inflows of resources related to
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended December 31:
2018 $ (124,233)
2019 (124,234)
2020 (7,963,447)
2021 (8,281,564)
2022 (609,951)

Total $ (17,103,429)__
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24. Seif-lnsurance Program

Effective January 1,1987, the County elected to seif-insure potential obligations applicable to workers'
compensation, casu a Ity/li ability and heaith insurance. By doing so, the County is exposed to certain risks
of losses associated with these types of transactions. These programs are contractuaily administered by
private agencies. Three separate internal service funds were established to account for ail transactions
associated with seif-insurance,

The County purchased reinsurance coverage to limit its liability per incident to a maximum of:

1988 to 1992 1993 to 1999 2000 to 2001

Workers' compensation
Casuaity/iiabiiity (excluding vehides)
Health benefits
Vehicles

$ 300,000

75,000
100,000

2002 to 2006

$ 325,000
250,000

90,000
100.000

$ 300,000
100,000
75,000

100,000

2007 to 2013

$ 500,000
250,000
200,000
100,000

$ 250,000
100,000
75,000

100,000

2014 to 2018

$ 650.000
250,000
210,000*
100,000

Workers' compensation
Casualty/Hability (excluding vehicles)
Health benefits
Vehicles

* includes a $365,000 corridor deductible

The County's reinsurance policy has provided sufficient coverage to the County such that no settlements
within the past three years have exceeded the reinsurance coverage. The cost of providing this coverage
is charged directiy to the County fund, which benefits from the coverage. Such charges are reflected as
operating revenues into the self-insurance funds. Costs of the self-insurance program charged to the
current year expenses were $49,787,889, which includes insurance claims of $49,742,036 and
administrative costs of $45,853. Expenditures and claims are recognized when it is probable that a ioss
has occurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonabiy estimated. In determining claims, events that
might create claims, but for which none have been reported, are considered. Additional administrative
costs of the self-insurance funds are paid by the General Fund and totaled $353,629 for the fiscal year.
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An analysis of the claims activity is presented as foitows:

2018

Seif-Insured Health
insurance Fund

Seif-Insured Workers'
Compensation Fund

Seif-lnsured
Casualty/Liability Fund

Total

Self-lnsured Health
insurance Fund

Self-lnsured Workers'
Compensation Fund

Self-Insured
Casualty/Liabiiity Fund

Total

Balance at
Beginning

of Year

$ 4,476,450

1,3-13,393

431,615

$ 6,221,458

Balance at
Beginning

of Year

$ 5,575,015

313,392

411,615

$ 6,300,022

Current Year
Claims and
Changes in

Estimate

$ 42,311,276 $

1,165,824

6,264,936

$ 49,742,036 $

2017
Current Year
Claims and
Changes in

Estimate

$ 47,307,029 $

2,605,186

5,979,825

$ 55,892,040 $

Actual
Claim

Payments

; 43,873,061

447,391

6,189,996

. 50,510,448

Actual
Claim

Payments

1 48,405,594

1,605,185

5,959,825

; 55,970,604

Balance at
End of
Year

$ 2,914,665

2,031,826

506,555

$ 5,453,046

Balance at
End of
Year

$ 4,476,450

1,313,393

431,615

$ 6,221,458

25. Other Revenues

Other revenues of $11,508,192 in the governmental funds consist of funds received related to gaming
proceeds for economic development of $1,610,876; interest revenue from the City of Chester of
$440,933; rental income of $653,481 ; funds received from the state equaiization board of $607,850;
fringe benefits recovered of $6,098,087; revenues related to Act 164 Rideshare fees of $1,074,387; and
various other revenues of $1 ,022,578.

26. Unearned Revenues

Unearned revenues are those where asset recognition criteria have been met, but for which revenue
recognition criteria have not been met. On the statement of net position, governmenta! activities unearned
revenue of $45,371,915 consists of the General Fund of $2,180,775 representing grants and other fees,
Heaith and Human Service of $25,157,847 and Other Governmental Funds of $18,033,293 representing
grants received which were not earned at December 31, 2018.
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27. Grant to the Delaware County Chester Waterfront Industrial Development Authority

The IDA was formed for the purpose of acquiring, constructing, financing, improving and maintaining
industria! and commercial development projects within the City of Chester and is a discretely presented
component unit of the County (Note 2). On February 15, 2009, the County and the IDA executed a grant
agreement, which states that the County will grant funds in an amount up to $30,000,000 for eligible costs
as defined for the construction of a stadium project. The County financed the grant through the issuance
of its Genera! Obligation Bonds, Series of 2009 ("2009 Bonds") (Note 16). Upon issuance of the 2009
Bonds the proceeds were placed in a Trust, as eligible costs are expended by the IDA funds are released
from the Trust on a reimbursement basis.

On February 15, 2009, the County and the City of Chester (the "City") executed a contribution agreement
whereby the City unconditionally agreed to pay the County $1 3,445,635 through May 31, 2039 in semi-
annual payments to fund a portion of the capital grant to the IDA. The 2017 amount due to the County of
$440,958 was paid by the City in January 2018. The present value of this asset amounting to
approximately $5,823,930 has been recorded in other receivables on the government-wide statement of
net position at December 31, 2018 (Note 8).

28. Commitments and Contingencies

Commitments

The County leases office space under a number of operating leases with expiration dates through
2031.

Future minimum lease payments for each of the five years subsequent to December 31, 2018 under
the various leases are as follows:

Years ending December 31:
2019
2020
2021
*2022
2023
2024-2028
2029-2031

Total

Total rental expense for these leases during 2018 was $2,595,222.

Contingencies

The use of grant monies received is subject to compliance audits by the disbursing governmental
agency. The County believes it is En compliance with all significant grant requirements.

The County is involved in various litigation matters arising in the normal course of business which are
stili pending. The ultimate outcome of these cases or the County's exposure to liabiiity, if any, cannot
be determined at this time. Consequently, no provision has been made in these financial statements
for this uncertainty. !t is the opinion of management that the amount of potential claims not covered
by insurance resulting from claims against the County would not materially affect the financial position
of the County at December 31, 20-18.

$ 3,J

3,

u
1,^

2,f

,474,
,361,

,782
,485

,817,242
,422,;

957,
,594,'i

,345
,860
,723

395,497

$ 14,023.,934
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29. New Accounting Pronouncements

in November 2016, the GASB issued Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obfigations. The
County is required to adopt Statement No. 83 effective for the period beginning after June 15, 2018 (the
County's financial statements for the year ending December 31, 2019).

In January 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. The County is required to
adopt Statement No. 84 effective for the period beginning after December 15, 2018 (the County's financial
statements for the year ending December 31, 2019).

In June 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases. The County is required to adopt Statement
No. 87 effective for the period beginning after December 1 5, 2019 (the County's financial statements for
the year ending December 31 , 2020),

in April 2018, the GASB issued Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, including Direct
Borrowings and Direct Placements. The County is required to adopt Statement No. 88 effective for the
period beginning after June 15, 2018 (the County's financial statements for the year ending December 31,
2019).

In June 2018, the GASB issued Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost incurred before the End
of a Construction Period, The County is required to adopt Statement No, 89 effective for reporting periods
beginning after December 15, 2019 (the County's financial statements for the year ending December 31,
2020).

In August 2018, the GASB issued Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests—an amendment of GASB
Statements No. 14 and No. 61. The County is required to adopt Statement No. 90 effective for reporting
period beginning after December 1 5, 2018 (the County's financiai statements for the year ending
December 31, 2019).

In May 2019, the GASB issued Statement No. 91 , Conduit Debt Obligations. The County is required to
adopt Statement No. 91 effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2020 (the County's
financial statements for the year ending December 31, 2021).

County management is in the process of analyzing these pending changes in accounting principles and
the impact they wil! have on the financial reporting process.
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(Unaudited)

2017 2018

Total OPEB Liability
Service cost $ 18,068,533 $ 18,690,090
Interest cost 14,518,005 17,101,669
Changes of assumptions or other inputs 29,018,463 (52,656,643)
Benefit payments 13,198,969 (13,837,017)

Net change in total OPEB liability 74,803,970 (30,701,901)

Total OPEB Liability, Beginning 410,565,998 485,369,968

Total OPEB Liability, Ending $ 485,369,968_ $ 454,668,g67_

Covered-Employee Payroll (Estimated) $ 167,229,090 $ 173,082,000

County's Net Pension Liability as a Percentage of Covered-
Employee Payroll 290.24% 262.69%

Notes to Schedule:
The County implemented GAS B Statements No. 75 infisca! year 2017. information prior to fiscal year 2017

is not available.

The County does not accumulate assets in a trust to pay related benefits under the other post-employment

benefit plan.

In 2018, the actuarial valuation was updated for a change in assumed discount rate related to net OPEB liabiiity
and deferred inflows of approximately $52.7 million
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2014 2015 2016 2017

Total Pension Liability
Semce cost
Interest
Difference between expected and actuai experience
Changes in assumptions
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions

Net change in total pension liability

Total Pension Liability, Beginning

$ 4,767,562
3-!,874.452
4,147,176

$ 4.584.055
33.074.553
8.944.917

(23,917,898)

$ 15,542,585
33,824,984

(363,424)
(17,616.575)
(24,299.440)

$ 15,286.753
35,056,767
(8,234,316)

(24,782,858)

15,523,198

432,629,544

22.685.627

448,152,742

7,088.130

470,838,369

17.326.346

477.926.499

Total Pension Liability, Ending (a)

Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Employer contributions
Employee contributions
Net investment income (loss)
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions
Admmistratfon

$ 448,152,742

$ 4.159.063
10,929.265
25,701,117

(25,266,392)
(-'18,804)

$ 470,838,369

$ 3.987,098
10.301.611
(4,799,203)

(23,917,898)
(48,803)

$ 477,926,499 $

$ 5.160.038 $
10.747.880
31,600.871

(24,299,440)
(48,803)

495,252.845

4,762,155
10.584,568
68.708,453

(24,782,858)

Net change in plan fiduciafy net position

Plan Fiduciary Net Position, Beginning

Plan Fiduciary Net Position, Ending (b)

P!an net pension (asset) liability, ending (a) - (b)

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total
Pension (Asset) Liability

Covered- Payroll

County's Net Pension (Asset) Liabiiity as a Percentage of Covered-
Payroll

15.474,249

447,902.076

(14,477,195)

463,376,325

23.160,546

448,899,130

59.272,318

472,059,676

$ 463.376,325 $ 448,899,130 $ 472,059,676 $ 531,331,994

$ (15,223,583) $ 21,939,239 $ 5,866,823 $ (36,079.149)

103.40%

$ 134.056.126

(11.36)%

95.34%

$ 130,961,008

16.75%

98.77%

$ 135.127.843

4.34%

107.28%

¥ 132,185,406

-27.29%

Notes to Schedule:
The County implemented GASB Statement No. 67 in ftsca! year 2014. Information prior to fiscal year 2014 is not available.

In 2016, the actuarial valuation was updated for the impact of member contributions and the member's resen/e which
resulted in a change in the assumptions related to the pension iiabiiity and deferred outflows of approximately $17.6 million.

TheGountyusedthe2017Actuarial Valuation to determine the net pension liability as of December 31, 2018 as allowed under GASB 67.
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County of Delaware
Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Employer Contributions
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudted)

Actuarial ly Determined Contribution

Contributions in Relation to the Actuarially
Determined Contribution

Contribution Deficiency (Excess)

Covered Payroll

Contributions as a Percentage of Covered

Payroll

Notes to Schedule:

Valuation dste; January 1, 2017

Methods snd assumptions used to determine contribution rates:

Actuarial cost method
Amortization method
Remaining amortization period
Asset valuation method

Infation
Salary increases
Investment rate of return

Retirement age
Mortality

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

7.487.851 S 6,756,099 $ 5,944,506 $ 7,142,276

7.487,851 6,75S,099 5,&44>50S 7,142,276

7,145,641 $ 4,159.063 S 3,987.098 $ 5,160,038 S

7,146,641 4,159,063 3,987,098 5,160,038

4,762,155 S 1,527,490

4,762,155 1,527,490

$ 120,363.000 $ 132.733,000 S 128,943,000 $ 126,634,000 $ 131,612,000 S 134,056,000 $ 130,551,008 $ 135,127,843 $ 132,195,406 $ 132,195,408

5.64%

Entry Age
Level dollar
15 years
The method that is prescribed by Pennsylvania State Law, Act 44
3.0%
3.5% average, including inflation
7.5%, net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation

Age SO or SS with 20 years of service
2013 RP Annu'rtant and Non-Annuitant Mortality Tables for males and femaies with no projected improvement

3.04% 1.16%



County of Delaware
Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of investment Returns
December 31, 2018
(Unaudited)

Annual Money-Weighted Rate of Return,
Net of Investment Expense

2014 2015 2016 2017

6.50% (0,65)% 7,90% 15.27%

Notes to Schedule:
The County implemented GASB Statement No. 67 in fiscal year 2014. Information prior to fisca! year 2014
is not available.
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County of Delaware, Pennsylvania
Schedule of Expenditures of Federa! Awards
December 31, 2018

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/

Program or Cluster Title

U.S. Department of Agriculture
Pass-through Pennsyivania Department of Education:

Chifd nuirition ciuster,
School breakfast program
National Schoo! iunch program

Total chiid nutrition cluster

Pass-through Pennsylvania Department of Human Services:
SNAP cluster,

State matchinq grants for supDlemental nutrition assistance proqram

Pass-through Pennsylvania Department of Agnculture:
Food distribution duster,

Emergency food assistance program
Emergency food distribution program

Total food distribution duster

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture

U.S. Department of Commerce
Direct program:

Coastal zone management administration awards

U.S. Department of Education
Direct program:

Rehabilitation services vocational rehabilitation grants to states

Pass-through Pennsylvania Department of Human Services;
Special educalion grants for infants & famiiies with disabilities

Total U.S, Department of Education

U,S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Direct program:

CDBG - Entitlement grants cluster,
Community development block grants/eniitiement grants

Emergency solutions grant
Supportive housing program
HOME invesfment partnerships program
Continuum of care program

Pass-lhrough Pennsylvania Department of Human Sen/ices:
Shelter plus care program

Pass-through City of Philadelphia Division of Housing and Community Development;
Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS

Contract #1820021
Contract #1920029

Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
Pass-through Pennsylvania Department of Aging;

Special programs for the aging Title VII, Chapter 3 - programs for prevention of
elder abuse, neglect and exploitation

Special programs for the aging Title Vtl, Chapter 2 - long-term care ombudsman
services for older Jndividuais

Special programs for the aging Title HI, Part D - disease prevention and health
promoiion services

National family caregiver support, Tiile ill. Part E
Medical enrollment assistance program
State health insurance assistance program

Pass-ihrough Pennsylvania Department of Community and Economic Deveiopment:
Low income Home Energy Assistance

Federal
CFDA

Number

Pass-Th rough

!D

Total
Federal

Exponditurss

Passed-Through

toSubreciplents
Expenditures

10.553
10.555

10.561

10.568
10.569

n/a
n/a

n/a

n/a
n/a

$ 13,878 $
20,913

34,791

121,021

43,550
288,893

332,443

488,255

33.321
288,893

322,214

322.214

11.419 n/a

84.126 n/a

84.181 n/a

14.238

14.241
14.241

n/a

n/a
n/a

10,355

2,952

770,293

773,245

136,649

289.106
278,371

6.681.020

93.041

93.042

93.043
93.052
93,071
93.324

4100072809

4100072809

4100072809
4100072809
4100072809
4100072809

COOOOS1656

6,360

15,900

29,587
173,110

16.438
50,952

34.91S

770.293

770,293

14.218
14,231
14,235
14.239
14.267

n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a

3,212,726
274.510
179.358

1.211,715
1,098,585

2.441.817
242,543
145.600

1,104,942
997,547

136,649

46,684
34,408

5,150,190

See notes fo schedule of expenditures of federal awards
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County of Delaware, Pennsylvania
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
December 31, 2018

Federal Grantor/Pass-Th rough Grantor/

Program or Cluster Title

Federal

CFDA
Number

93,090
93.150
93,556
93.563
93.590

93.575
93.596

93.645
93.658
93.659
93.667
93.674
93.958

93.959
93,243

Pass-Through

ID

G17213
70154

G17697
4100070482

n/a

n/a
n/a

1701PACWSS
G17336
G17339

1801PASOSR
G17420
70167

4100053190
4100053190

Total
Federal

Expenditures

$ 103,801
83,108

129,824
7.531.112

1.751

13.486,782
5,825,576

19,312,358

220,851
5,921,866
1,909,470
3.730,940

90,877
532,284

1.511.163
314,445

Passed-Through

to Subrecipients

Expenditures

83.109
110,388

1,653

220,851
1,733,888

1,209,921
36.496

532,284

1,511,163

254.955

Pass-through Pennsylvania Department of Human Services:
Guardianship assistance
Projects for assistance in transition from homelessness
Promoting safe and stable families
Child support enforcement
Community-based child abuse prevention grants
CCDF cluster,

Chiidcare and devdopment block grant
Chiidcare mandatory and matching funds of the chiidcare and development fund

Total CCDF cluster

Stephanie Tubbs Jones Child Welfare Services Program
Foster care - Title JV-E
Adoption assistance
Social services block grant
Chafee foster care independence program
Block grants for community mental health services

Pass-through Pennsylvania Department of Drag and Alcohoi Programs;
Block grants for prevention and treatment of substance abuse
Substance abuse and mental health services

Pass-through Pennsylvania Department of Health:
Nations! bioterrorism hospital preparedness program
Hospital preparedness program ancf public health emergency preparedness

aligned Cooperative Agreements
Preventive health and heaitti services block grant

TANF cluster,
Pass-through Pennsylvania Department of Human Services:

Temporar/ assistance for needy families
Pass-through the Pennsylvania Department of Labor and Industry;

Temporary assistance for needy families

Total TANF cluster

Medicaid cluster,
Pass-through Pennsylvania Department of Aging:

Medical assistance program (Medicaid)
Pass-through Pennsylvania Department of Human Services:

Medical assistance program (Medicaid)
Pass-ihrough Pennsylvariia Department of Drug and Alcohol Programs:

Medical assistance program (Medicaid)

Total Medicaid cluster

Aging cluster,
Pass-through Pennsylvania Department of Aging;

Special programs for ihe aging Titie III, Part B - grants for supportive
services and senior centers

Special programs for the aging Title Hi, Part C - nutrition services
Nutrition services incentive program

Total Aging cluster

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

U.S. Department of Justice
Direct program;

Missing chiidren's assistance
Edward Br/ne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program

Pass-through Pennsylvania Commission cm Crime and Deiinquency;
Justice Roinvestmeni Initiative
Crime Victims Assistance

Contract # 27386
Contract # 26672
Contract #26194

Edward Bryne Memoria! Justice Assistance Grant Program

Total U.S. Department of Justice

93.889 78382 and 81064

16.827

11,330

93,074
93.758

93.558

93.558

93.778

93,778

93.778

4100078490
n/a

G17370

n/a

4100078250

n/a

n/a

49.139
12,500

5,236.152

2,422,497

7.658,649

568.709

3,609,214

1,342,920

5,520,843

1,516,202

1,516,202

2,772,843

1.320.171

4.093.014

93.044
93.045
93.053

16.543
16.738

4100072809
4100072809
4100072809

n/a
n/a

617,273
405.095
122,320

1,144,688

56,118,262

489,671
150,981

11.303,925

123,130

27008 112,608

16.575
16.575
16.575
16.738

27386
26672
26194

JG -UX-27806

113.012
143.932

2.570
19,233

1,032,007 123,130

See notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards
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County of Delaware, Pennsylvania
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
December 31, 2018

Federal Grantor/Pass-Th rough Grantor/

Program or Cluster Title
Pass-Th rough

ID

Total
Federal

Expenditures

Passed-Th rough

toSubredpients
Expenditures

U,S. Department of Labor
Direct program:
Employment serwe cluster:

Employment sen/ice/wagner-peyser funded activities
Trade adjustment assistance

Pass-throygh the Pennsyivarea Department of Labor and industry:
WiA/WIOA cluster,

Workforce Investment Act Adu!t Program
Workforce Investment Act Youth Activities
Workforce Investment Act disiocated worker formula grsnt

Total WIA/WIOA cluster

Total U.S. Department of Labor

U.S. Department of Energy
Pass-through the Pennsylvania Departmenl of Community and Economic

Development Weatherization assistance for low income persons

Corporation for National and Community Service
Direct program:

Foster grandparent/senior companion cluster,
Foster grand parents program

U.S. Department of Transportation
Direct program:

Highway safety cluster,
State and community highway safety

Pass-ihrough Pennsylvania Department of Transportation:
Highway planning and construction cluster,

Highway pianning and construction
Pass-lhrough Delaware Valley Regiona! Planning Commission

Metropolitan transportation planning

Tota! U.S. Department of Transportation

U.S. Department of Homeland Security
Pass-through Pennsylvania Emergency Management Agency:

Emergency Management Performance Grants
Homeland security grant program

Total U.S. Departmeni of Homeland Security

Executive Office of the President
Direct program:

High Intensity Drug Trafficking Areas Program

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards

* - Programs denoted as major programs by other auditors

17,207
17.245

17.258
17.259
17.278

n/a
n/a

n/a
n/a
n/a

$ 118,962
20,792

1,057,341
858,825
758,221

81.042

94.011

20,600

20.205

20.505

97.042
97.067

95.001

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a
n/a

n/a

2,674,387

2,814,141

58,528

280.858

69,874

802.553

113,032

985.469

57,350
1,084,069

1,141,419

12,281

$ 70,395,841 3; 17,669,752

See notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards
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County of Delaware, Pennsylvania
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
December 31. 2018

1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal award activity of the
County of Delaware, Pennsylvania (the "County") under programs of the federal government for the year
ended December 31, 2018. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of Titie 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards. Because the Schedule presents only a
selected portion of the operations of the County, it is not intended to and does not present the financial
position, changes in net assets or cash flows of the County.

2. Basis of Accounting

Expenditures reported in the Schedule are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein
certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Negative amounts
shown on the Schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the normal course of business to
amounts reported as expenditures in prior years.

3. Relationship to Basic Financial Statements

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards presents the activity of all federal awards
programs of the County, as defined in Note 1 to the County's financial statements. Expenditures of federal
awards are reported in the County's financial statements as follows:

General Fund $ 9,202,032
Special Revenue Funds:
Special grants 8,168,103
Mental health 1,043,441
Intellectual disabilities 1,268,706
Drug abuse 3,145,779
Eariy intervention 800,288
Aduit services 2,298,978
MATP 2,706,708
Child care 9,101,906
Day care 25,674,348
COSA 2,286,602
CDBG/Rehab 4,698,951

$ 70,395,841

4. Indirect Cost

The County has elected not to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform
Guidance.
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® bakertilly
Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control

Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance
and Other Matters Based on an Audit of

Financial Statements Performed in Accordance
with Government Auditing Standards

To the County Council of
County of Delaware, Pennsylvania

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activity, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the County of Delaware, Pennsylvania (the "County") as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the County's
basic financiai statements, and have issued our report thereon dated June 25, 2019. Our report inciudes a
reference to other auditors who audited the financial statements of the discreteiy presented component units,
Delaware County Solid Waste Authority, Economic Development Oversight Board, the Redeve!opment
Authority of the County of Delaware and the Delaware County Chester Waterfront Industrial Development
Authority as described in our report on the County's financia! statements. This report does not include the
results of the other auditors' testing of internal control over financial reporting and compSiance and other matters
that are reported on separately by those auditors. The financial statements of Delaware County Solid Waste
Authority, the Redevelopment Authority of the County of Delaware and the Delaware County Chester
Waterfront industrial Development Authority were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards.

The County's financial statements include the operations of certain departments which received federal awards
and Pennsylvania Department of Human Services awards. However our audit, described above, did not include
the programs of certain departments because other auditors were engaged to perform these audits in
accordance with Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, Such programs are as follows;

Department

Early Intervention Fund

Child and Youth Services

Mental Health/intellectual Disabilities, Early intervention, Drug
and Alcohol and Medical Assistance Transportation Programs

Federa!
CFDA Number

84.181

93.558
93.645
93.658
93.659
93.667
93.778

14.238
93.243
93.667
93.778
93.958
93.959

Federal
Expenditures

$ 770,293

732,204
220,851

5,489,167
1,909,470

519.839
22,749

134,161
314,445
690.082

4,864,420
532,284

1,511,163

Baker Tilly VJrchow Krause, LLP trading as Baker T1l!y is a member of the global network of Baker Tilly International Ltd., the members
of which are separate and Independent legal entities. © 201 8 Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP
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Department

County Office of Services for the Aging

Child Care Information Services

Federal
CFDA Number

93.042
93.043
93.044
93.052
93.053
93.071
93.778
94.011

10.561
93.558
93.575
93.596
93.667

Federal
Expenditures

$ 15,900
29,587

617,273
173,110
122,320

16,438
568,709
280,858

121,021
3,719,950

13.486,782
5,825,576
2.521,019

$ . 45,209,671Total

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

!n planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the County's internal control
over financial reporting (internal contro!) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the County's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the County's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal contra! was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify ail deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not
been identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control
that we consider to be material weaknesses. We did identify a deficiency in internal control, described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 201 8-001, that we consider to be a significant
deficiency.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County's financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompiiance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of
our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.
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The County's Response to Findings

The County's response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs. The County's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the financia! statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is soieiy to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the County's internal control or
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the County's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

SfLhcTU^/t^w^i^^^) ^-P

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
June 25, 2019
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Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance
for Each Major Federal Program and City of Philadelphia

Programs and on Internal Control Over Compliance Required
by the Uniform Guidance and the City of Philadelphia

Subrecipient Audit Guide

To the County Council of
County of Delaware, Pennsylvania

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and City of Philadelphia Programs

We have audited the County of Delaware, Pennsylvania's ("County") compiiance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement and the City of Philadelphia Subrecipient Audit
Guide that could have a direct and material effect on each of the County's major federal and City of Philadelphia
programs for the year ended December 31, 2018. The County's major federal programs are identified in the
summary of auditors' resuits section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

IVIanagement's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions
of its federal and City of Philadelphia awards applicable to its federal and City of Philadelphia programs.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compiiance for each of the County's major federal programs and
City of Philadelphia programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards ("Uniform Guidance"); and, the City of Philadelphia Subrecipient Audit Guide. Those standards,
the Uniform Guidance, and the audit requirements of and the City of Philadelphia Subrecipt'ent Audit Guide,
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with
the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major
federa! program or City of Philadelphia program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence about the County's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program and City of Philadelphia program. However, our audit does not provide a iegal determination of the
County's compliance.

Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP IradEng as Baker Tilly Is a member of the global network of Baker Tilly International Ltd., the members
of which are separate and independent lega! entities. © 2018 Baker Tiily Virchow Krause, LLP
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The County's financial statements include the operations of certain departments which received federal awards.
However our audit, described above, did not include the programs of certain departments because other
auditors were engaged to perform these audits in accordance with the Uniform Guidance. Such programs are
as follows:

Department

Early Intervention Fund

Child and Youth Services

Mental Health/intellectua! Disabilities, Early Intervention, Drug
and Alcohol and Medical Assistance Transportation Programs

County Office of Services for the Aging

Child Care Information Services

Federal
CFDA Number

84.181

93.558
93.645
93.658
93.659
93.667
93.778

14.238
93.243
93.667
93.778
93.958
93.959

93.042
93.043
93.044
93.052
93.053
93.071
93778
94.011

10.561
93.558
93.575
93.596
93.667

Federal
Expenditures

$ 770,293

732,204
220,851

5,489,167
1,909,470

519,839
22,749

134,161
314,445
690,082

4.864,420
532,284

1,511,163

15,900
29,587

617,273
173,110
122,320

16,438
568.709
280,858

121,021
3,719,950

13,486,782
5,825,576
2,521,019

$ 45,209,671Total

Opinion on Each of the Other Major Federal and City of Philadelphia Programs

in our opinion, the County complied, in aii material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred
to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its other major federai programs and City of
Philadelphia programs identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs for the year ended December 31 ,2018.

Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance, which are required to be reported
in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs as items 2018-002 and 2018-003. Our opinion on each major federal program is not
modified with respect to these matters.
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County's Response to Findings

The County's response to the noncompiiance findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. The County's response was not subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal contra! over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. in planning and performing our audit
of compliance, we considered the County's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that
could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program and City of Philadelphia program to
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on compliance for each major federal program and City of Philadelphia program and to test and report
on infernal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and the City of Philadelphia
Subrecipient Audit Guide, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County's
internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normai course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program, or City of Philadelphia program, on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is
a reasonable possibility that material noncompiiance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program or City of Philadelphia program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or City of Philadelphia
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal controi over compliance, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance,

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compiiance
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, we identified certain deficiencies in internal
control over compliance, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items
2018-002 and 2018-003, that we consider to be significant deficiencies.

County's Response to Findings

The County's response to the internal control over compliance findings identified in our audit is described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, The County's response was not subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the
response.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compiiance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance and the City of Philadelphia Subrecipient Audit Guide. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any
other purpose.

v

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
September 27, 2019

^/U^UM^^P
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County of Delaware, Pennsylvania
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended December 31, 2018

Section I - Summary of Auditors' Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditors' report issued:

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Noncompliance materia! to financial statements noted?

Federal Awards

internal control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major
programs:

Any audit findings disdosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with 2CFR 200.516(a) of the
Uniform Guidance?

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number(s)

Unmodified

yes
X yes

yes

x

x

no

none reported

no

yes
X yes

Unmodified

X yes

X no

none reported

no

Name of Federal Program or Cluster

17.258/17.259/17.278

14.218

93.558

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs:

Auditee qualified as tow-risk auditee?

WIOA Cluster
Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement

Grants
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families State

Programs

$2,111,875

yes X no
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County of Delaware, Pennsylvania
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended December 31, 2018

Section II - Financial Statement Findings

Finding 2018-001

Criteria: A system of internal controi should be in place that provides reasonable assurance that
management or employees may prevent, decect, or correct misstatements and/or errors on a timely
basis.

Condition: The bank reconciliations for several cash accounts were prepared and reviewed by the
same individual leading to a lack of segregation of duties for the period September through December
2018. The Deputy Treasurer is responsible for preparing the bank reconciliations while the Treasurer
is responsible for reviewing; however, the Treasurer retired during this time frame. Since the Deputy
Treasurer has signing rights on each account and has cash receipt duties, internal control is most
effective when the person reviewing the bank reconciliations also is not responsibie for entries in the
receipts and disbursements records.

Effect: Due to the Sack of internal controls, it is less likely that errors or misstatements would be
discovered internally in a timely basis.

Cause: Due to the retirement of key individuals without a complete succession plan, the County
Treasurer's Department did not have an adequate number of employees needed to implement a
properly designed system of controls over cash reconciliation, receipts, and disbursements.

Recommendation: We recommend that the party responsible for reivewing bank reconciliations be
separate from the individuals with account signing priviedges, individuals who prepare the bank
reconciliations, and inviduals with cash receipts duties.

Views of responsible officials: See the County's corrective action plan.

Section 111 - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

Finding 2018-002

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Labor

Pass-through Agency: Pennsylvania Department of Labor and Industry

Federal Program: WiOA Cluster - 17.258/17.259/17.278

Compliance Requirement: C. Cash Management/ R. Reporting

Criteria: A system of internai control should be in place to provide a structure for appropriate
assignment of responsibility for supervisory and review of cash management and reporting activities.

Condition: There is a Sack of controls over monitoring of cash management and reporting activities
including the supervisory and review of cash drawdowns, requests for reimbursement, and external
reporting.

Effect: The lack of internal review by an individual other than the preparer may result in adjustments
not being identified in a timely manner.

Cause: The Office of Workforce Development of the County worked closeiy with the Pennsylvania
Department of Labor and Industry to resolve historicai issues within the program. Due to the close
working relationship with the state, the Office of Workforce Development of the County came to rely
upon the Pennsylvania Department of Labor and Industry as the review function of the internal control
environment.
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County of Delaware, Pennsylvania
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended December 31, 2018

Questioned Costs: None noted

Recommendation: We recommend that a policy be put in place requiring a level of review by an
individual other than the preparer prior to the submission of cash drawdowns, requests for
reimbursement, and/or external reporting.

Views of responsible officials: See the County's corrective action plan.

Finding 2018-003

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Labor

Pass-through Agency: Pennsylvania Department of Labor and industry

Federal Program: TANF Ciuster- 93.558

Compliance Requirement: C. Cash Management/ R. Reporting

Criteria: A system of internai control should be in place to provide a structure for appropriate
assignment of responsibility for supervisory and review of cash management and reporting activities.

Condition: There is a lack of controls over monitoring of cash management and reporting activities
including the supervisory and review of cash drawdowns, requests for reimbursement, and external
reporting.

Effect: The lack of internal review by an individual other than the preparer may result in adjustments
not being identified in a timely manner.

Cause; The Office of Workforce Development of the County worked closely with the Pennsylvania
Department of Labor and Industry to resolve historical issues within the program. Due to the close
working relationship with the state, the Office of Workforce Development of the County came to rely
upon the Pennsylvania Department of Labor and Industry as the review function of the internal control
environment.

Questioned Costs: None noted

Recommendation: We recommend that a policy be put in place requiring a ievel of review by an
individual other than the preparer prior to the submission of cash drawdowns, requests for
reimbursement, and/or external reporting.

Views of responsible officials: See the County's corrective action plan.

Section IV - Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings

Finding 2017-001

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Labor

Pass-through Agency: Pennsylvania Department of Labor and industry

Federal Program: WIOA Cluster - 17.258/17.259/17.278

ComptiQnce Requirement: B. Allowable Costs/Cost Principles/C. Cash Management/L. Reporting

Repeat of prior year finding 2016-001
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County of Delaware, Pennsylvania
Scheduie of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended December 31, 2018

Criteria: The entity's financial management system must be sufficient to permit the preparation of
reports required by general and program-specific terms and conditions; and the tracing of funds to a
level of expenditures adequate to establish that such funds have been used according to the Federal
statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of the Federal award. The entity must maintain
records that identify adequately the source and appiication of funds for federally-funded activities.
These records must contain information pertaining to Federal awards, authorizations, obligations,
unobligated balances, assets, expenditures, income and interest and be supported by source
documentation. [Title 2 SubtitSe A Chapter il §200.302]

Condition: Records were not maintained that reconciled the general ledger accounting system detail
to the reports filed with the Pennsylvania Department of Labor and Industry for reimbursement of costs
incurred. Revenues recognized on the grants were not reconciled to the reports filed with the
Pennsylvania Department of Labor and the related cash receipts on g timely basis.

Resolution: The Office of Workforce Development of the County worked closely with the Pennsylvania
Department of Labor and Industry to resolve issues regarding reporting of the program's expenditures
from the underlying tinanciai records in the Financial Service Reports (FSR). The Pennsylvania
Department of Labor and industry recognized the issues over reported as resolved in August 2017.
No findings of a similar nature were identified in the 2018 audit.

Finding 2017-002

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Labor

Pass-through Agency: Pennsylvania Department of Labor and Industry

Fecfera/Program; WIOA Cluster-17.258/17,259/17.278

Compliance Requirement: B, Allowabie Costs/Cost Principles

Repeat of prior year finding 2016-002

Criteria: Charges to Federal awards for salaries and wages must be based on records that accurately
reflect the work performed. These records must be supported by a system of internal control which
provides reasonable assurance that the charges are accurate, allowable, and properly allocated.
These records must support the distribution of the employee's salary or wages among specific
activities or cost objectives. Budget estimates alone do not qualify as support for charges to Federal
awards, but may be used for interim accounting purposes, provided that the system for establishing
the estimates produces reasonable approximations of the activity actually performed and the entity's
system of internal controis includes processes to review after-the-fact interim charges made to a
Federal awards based on budget estimates. All necessary adjustment must be made such that the
final amount charged to the Federal award is accurate, allowable, and properly allocated,
[Title 2 Subtitle A Chapter II §200.430(0]

Condition: The County's internal controls over the WIOA program payroll charges includes a manua!
allocation of salaries and payroll between programs based on time incurred when reconciling financial
records to reimbursement reports.

Resolution: The Office of Workforce Development of the County worked closely with the Pennsyivania
Department of Labor and Industry to resolve issues regarding reporting of the program's expenditures
from the underlying financial records in the Financial Sen/ice Reports (FSR). The Pennsylvania
Department of Labor and Industry recognized the issues over reported as resolved in August 2017.
No findings of a similar nature were identified in the 2018 audit.
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Independent Accountants' Report on
Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures on the

Schedule ofWIOA Expenditures by
Program Identifiers and Cost Categories

To the County Council of
County of Delaware, Pennsylvania and the

Pennsylvania Department of Labor and Industry:

We have performed the procedures enumerated below, which were agreed to by County Council and the
Pennsylvania Department of Labor and Industry on the accompanying financial schedules of the County of
Delaware, Pennsylvania (the "County") for the year ended December 31 , 2018, solely to assist you in
evaluating the County's compliance with the requirements of the Pennsylvania Department of Labor and
industry. The County's management is responsible for the exhibits required by the Pennsylvania Department of
Labor and Industry. The sufficiency of these procedures is solely the responsibility of the parties specified in this
report. Consequently, we make no representation regarding the sufficiency of the procedures enumerated
below, either for the purpose for which this report has been requested or for any other purpose.

Procedures and findings are as follows:

We mathematically checked the clerical accuracy of the County's summarization of amounts reported on
the monthly Financial Status Report ("FSR") submitted to the Pennsylvania Department of Labor and
Industry during the fiscal year ended December 31, 201 8 and the report of the summarized, fiscal year
totais on the respective formats as presented in the W!OA Policies and Procedures Manual. This procedure
was performed for the WIOA expenditures by program identifier and year included on page 90 administered
by the County which were funded in whole, or in part, by the Pennsylvania Department of Labor and
Industry. No findings were identified.

We inquired of management regarding any adjustment to reported revenues or expenditures which were
not reflected on reports submitted to the Pennsylvania Department of Labor and Industry. No adjustments
to the revenues or expenditures had been made as of the issuance of the agreed-upon procedures report.

This agreed-upon procedures engagement was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established
by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. We were not engaged to and did not conduct an
examination or review, the objective of which would be the expression of an opinion or conciusson, respectively
on the exhibits required by the Pennsylvania Department of Labor and industry. Accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion or conclusion. Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our
attention that would have been reported to you.

This report is intended soleiy for the information and use of County Council, Pennsylvania Department of Labor
and Industry, management and others within the County of Delaware, Pennsylvania and is not intended to be>
and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties

'u/^yi^hw/-]'

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
September 27, 2019

^/^UM^^-P

Baker THIy Virchow Krause, LLP trading as Baker Tiily is a member of the global network of Baker Tilly International Ltd., the members
of which are separate and independent legal entities. © 2018 Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP
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County of Delaware, Pennsylvania
Statement of WIOA ExpendiEures by Contract Number and Year
December31, 2018

Title
C PDA

Number

17.258
17.258

17.278
17.278
17.278
17.278
17.278

17.259

93.558
93.558
93.558

17.258
17.258
17.258

17.278
17.278
17.278
17.278

17,259

93.558
93.558
93.558

17.258
17.258

17.278
17.278
17.278
17.278

17.259

93.558

Contract
Number

035153001
035153011

035154001
035154011
035154152
035154052
035154155

035153301

035153361
035153362
035153364

035163001
035163011
035163132

035164001
035164011
035164151
035164134

035163301

035163361
035163362
035164133

035173001
035173011

035174001
035174011
035174151
035174053

035173301

035173361

Agreement
Period

7/1/15-6/30/18
10/1/15-6/30/18

7/1/15-6/30/18
10/1/15-6/30/18
10/1/15-6/30/18
7/1/15-6/30/18
10/1/15-6/30/18

4/1/-i 5-6/30/18

4/1/15-6/30/19
4/1/15-6/30/19
4/1/15-6/30/19

7/1/16-6/30/19
10/1/16-6/30/19
10/1/16-6/30/19

7/1/16-6/30/19
10/1/16-6/30/19
10/1/16-6/30/19
10/1/16-6/30/19

4/1/16-6/30/19

7/1/16-6/30/19
7/1/16-6/30/19
10/1/16-6/30/19

7/1/17-6/30/20
10/1/17-6/30/20

7/1/17-6/30/20
10/1/17-6/30/20
10/1/17-6/30/20
7/1/17-6/30/20

4/1/17-6/30/20

7/1/17-6/30/19

Authorized
Budget

$ 83,295
893,171

127,992
705,424

79.478
25.000
20.106

1,028.993

460,186
202,988

9,944

$ 3,636.577

$ 106,221
728,217
60,000

129,772
668,287

90.334
198,067

913,854

507.804
259,257

5.559

$ 3,667,372

$ 108,848
749,185

129,524
693,594

36.396
5,697

1,015,156

832,923

$ 3.571,123

Cumulative
Expenditures

$ 83,295
893.171

127.992
705.424
52.769
25,000
20.106

1,028,993

460,186
202.988

9,944

$ 3.603.868

$ 106,221
728,217
60.000

129,772
668.287

63,533
56,332

913.854

507,604
259,257

5.559

$ 3,498.836

$ 10,865
553.607

129.524
247.389

323.088

754,409

$ 2,018,882

(Over) Under

$

26,709

$ 26,709

?

26,801
141.735

$ 168,536

$ 97.783
195.578

446.205
36,396
5,697

692,068

78,514

$ 1.552,241

WIOA Adult Program

WIOA Dislocated Worker Program

WIOA Youth Program

TANF Youth Program

Grand Totals

WIOA Adult Program

W!OA Disiocaied Worker Program

WJOA Youth Program

TANF Youth Program

Grand Totals

WIOA Adult Program

WIOA Dislocated Worker Program

WIOA Youth Program

TANF Youth Program

Grand Totals
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® bakertilly

Independent Accountants' Report
on Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures

on Department of Human Services
Supplemental Schedules

To the County Counci! of
County of Delaware, Pennsylvania and Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Department of Human Services:

We have performed the procedures enumerated beiow, which were agreed to by the Commonwealth of
PennsyivanEa, Department of Human Services ("DHS") and management of the Domestic Relations Section of
the County of Delaware, Pennsylvania on the DHS financial schedules and exhibits required by the DHS Single
Audit Supplement QS of and for the year ended December 31, 2018, The County's management is responsible
for the financial schedules and exhibits required by the DHS Single Audit Supplement The sufficiency of these
procedures is solely the responsibility of the parties specified in this report. Consequently, we make no
representation regarding the sufficiency of the procedures enumerated below, either for the purpose for which
this report has been requested or for any other purpose.

The procedures and associated findings are as follows:

a) We have agreed by comparison of the amounts and classifications that the supplemental financiai
schedules listed below, which summarize amounts reported to DHS for fiscal year ended December 31 ,
2018, have been accurately compiied and reflect the audited books and records of Domestic Relations
Section of the County of Delaware, Pennsylvania. We have also agreed by comparison to the example
schedules that these schedules are presented, at a minimum, at the level of detail and in the format
required by the DHS Single Audit Supplement pertaining to this period.

Referenced
Schedule/ExhEbit

Comparison of Single Audit Expenditures with
Reported Expenditures
Comparison of Reported Incentives to Incentives
on Deposit
Comparison of Single Audit Title !V-D Account
with Reported Title !V-D Account

b) We have inquired of management regarding adjustments to reported revenues or expenditures, which
were not reflected on the reports submitted to DHS for the period in question.

c) The processes detailed in paragraphs (a) and (b) above disciosed the foHowing:

The employee fringe benefit rate is subject to adjustment based on internal review and assessment
of actual employee benefit costs in comparison to the estimated benefit rates applied to the
program. This may result in a change in the amount of fringe benefits charged for the period ended
December 31, 2018. This assessment has not been completed as of the issuance of the agreed-
upon procedures report.

Program Name

Child Support Enforcement

Child Support Enforcement

Child Support Enforcement

Page
Number

93

94

95

Exhibit
Number

A-1(a)

A-1(c)

A-1(d)

Baker Tilly VErchow Krause, LLP trading as Baker Tilly is a member of the global network of Baker Tllly International Ltd., the members
of which are separate and independent iegai entities. © 201 8 Baker Tilly Vfrchow Krause, LLP
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d) With regard to the Reconciliation Supplementai Financial Schedule (Exhibit XX on Page 96)
(the "Reconciliation Schedule"), we have performed the following procedures:

1. We have agreed by comparison of amounts and classifications the expenditure amounts listed
on the Reconciliation Schedule under the "Federal Expenditures per the SEFA" (column C),
which summarizes DHS federal expenditure amounts as of December 31, 2018, have been
accurately compiled and reflect the audited books, records and SEFA of the County.

2. We have agreed by comparison of amounts and ciassifications the program receipt amounts
listed on the Reconciliation Schedule under the "Federal Awards Received per the audit
confirmation reply from Pennsylvania" (column d), which summarizes DHS federal receipt
amounts as of December 31 , 2018, have been accurateiy compiled and refiect the audited
books, records and SEFA of the County.

3. We have recalculated the doilar amount and percentage differences between the Federal
Expenditures per the SEFA (column C) and the Federal Awards Received per the audit
confirmation reply from Pennsylvania (coiumn D) on the Reconciliation Schedule.

4, We have agreed by comparison to the audited books and records that the dollar amount
differences (column E) between the expenditures (column C) and receipts (column D) on the
Reconciliation Schedule accurately reflect the audited books and records of the County.

5. We have agreed by comparison to the audited books and records that the explanation of
differences (column G) between the expenditures (column C) and receipts (coiumn D) on the
Reconciliation Schedule accurately reflect the audited books and records of the County.

e) With regard to the County Children and Youth Agency Provider Monitoring Schedule
(Exhibit XXI on pg 98) ( the "CCYA Schedule"), we have performed the following procedures:

1. We have reconciled the list of providers under "Provider Name" column A to the providers who
were paid for !n-Home Purchased Services during the year according to the County's genera!
ledgers and Act 148 reporting. We did not identify any providers who were paid during the year,
but were not included on the CCYA Schedule.

2. We have agreed the response in column B to the appropriate provider contract. We identified
one provider who did not have a contract on file,

3, We have agreed the information in columns C through i to the County's Children and Youth
Agency monitoring records for In-Home Purchased Service Providers.

The procedures detailed in paragraphs a), b) c), d), and e) above disclosed no adjustments or findings for the
period reported upon.

This agreed-upon procedures engagement was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established
by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. We were not engaged to and did not conduct an
examination or review, the objective of which would be the expression of an opinion or conclusion, respectively
on the financia! schedules and exhibits required by the DHS Single Audit Supplement. Accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion or conclusion, Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might have
come to our attention that would have been reported to you,

This report is intended solely for the information and use of County Council, Domestic Relations Section of the
County of Delaware and Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Department of Human Services, management and
others within the County of Delaware, Pennsylvania and is not intended to be, and should not be,used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

^/^Ml//f^^ i^-P

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
September 27, 2019
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County of Delaware, Pennsylvania
Child Support Enforcement
Comparison of Singie Audit Expenditures with Raported Expenditures
For the Year Ended December 31.2018
ExhibttA-1 (a)

Net Total (1-2-^-4+5+5)

Single Audit Expenditures
C. Incentive

B. Unailowable Paid Costs Net [A.B.C1

Reported Exp&nditures

C. Incentive

Ami Paid A. Total B. Unallowable Paid Costs Net (A.B-C} Amt Paid

Single Audit OverfUn de rReported
C. incentive

A. Total B. UnaHowable Pai_d_Cpsts____ ....,Net(A^-Cj

Q uarter Ending 3/31,2019
•I Salary & Overhead
2 Fees & Costs
3 Interest & Prog Income
4 Stood Testing Fees
5 Stood Testing Costs
6 ADP

$ 3,001,711 $

12,093
S79

1,B11

83,202 $

3BO

S 2,890.545 $

S 2,918,508 S 1.926,216 $ 3,001,711 ?

11,738
679

1,611

7.747
448

1.0S3

12,098
S7S

1,61'!

83,202

360

$ 2,91&,509 $ 1,926,218 $

11.73S
679

1,611

7,747
448

1,063

t 2,307,703 $ 1.919,084 S 2,990,545 S 82,842 S. $ 2,907,703 $ 1,919,084 S

Q ua rt e c,EniIina_G/30/201 8[

1 Salary & Oveftiead
2 Fees & Cosis
3 Interest & Prog income
4 Btood Testing Fees
5 Blood Testing Costs
6 ADP

s 2,553,477

11,236
724

2.767

s 70,235

331

Net Total (1-2-3-4+S+6) $ 2,544.284 $

$ 2,483,182 $ 1,638,900 S 2,553,477 I

10,905
724

2,7S7

7,197
478

1,826

11,236
724

2.7S7

70.29S

331

$ 2,483,182 S 1,63S,900 S

10,905
724

2,7B7

7,197
47&

1,826

S 2,474.320 $ 1.633,051 $ 2,544,284 68,364- $ S 2.474,320 S 1,633,051 $

fiyarter Ending 9/30/2018
1 Salary & Overhead
2 Fees & Costs
3 Interest &Prog Income
4 Btood Testing Fees
5 Blood Testing Costs
6 ADP

Net Total (1-2-3-4+5+6)

$ 2,942,035 $

11,904
464

3.4S8

$ 2,933,135 S

81^55

356

s 2.ssa,7Bo $ 1,see,115 $ 2,942,035 S

11,54S
464

3,468

7,622
306

2,2B9

11,904
464

3,468

&1,255 S $ 2,860,780 $ 1,888,115 $

11,548
464

3,468

7,622
306

2,289

$ 2,852,236 $ 1,B82,47S $ 2,933.135 S $ 2.6S2236 S 1.882,476 S

Ct.ya.rter Ending 12/31/2018
1 Salary & Overhead
2 Fees & Casts
3 Interest & Frog Income
4 Stood Tasting Fees
5 Bto&d Testing Costs
S ADP

S 2,513,445 S

10,741
1.007
2,S9S

B9.703 S

327

950,000 $ 1,433,742 $ 935,870 S 2,513.445 $ SB,703 $ 950,000 $ 1,493,742 S 985,670 $

10,414
1,007
2,899

6,873
66S

1,913

10,741
1,007

2,398

10,414
1,007
2,BS9

6,B73
665

1,913

Ne! Total (l-2-3^t+S+6) $ 2,504,596 $ 69.S76 S 950,000 $ 1.48S.220 $ 980,245 S 2,504,596 $ 69,376 __ ,S_ 9SO.OOO I 1,485,220 $ 9BO,245 $



County of Delaware, Pennsylvania
Child Support Enforcement
Comparison of Reported Incentives to Incentives on Deposit
For the Year Ended December 31,2018
Exhibit A-1(c)

Month
January 1
March 31

June 30
September 30
December 31

MSE
Incentive Paid Cost Worksheet

Ending Incentive Balance
$ 57,080

242,622

427,467
610,144

80,475

Audited Title IV-D
Account

Incentive Balance **

$ 52,835
57,501

57,683
57,880
58,092

Type of Account Structure

(X) Separate Bank Account

( )
Restricted Fund - General Ledger

( ) Other:

** The Audited Title IV-D Account includes three restricted bank accounts. These accounts coliectiveiy contain the iV-
D reimbursements, incentive payments, and interest earned. The balance refiected on the MSE incentive paid costs
worksheets only include the balance of incentive payments as of that date. At each monthiy reporting date the !V-D
bank statement had at least the amount of reported incentive funds.
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County of Delaware, Pennsylvania
Child Support Enforcement
Comparison of Single Audit Title IV-D Account with Reported Title IV-D Account
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018
Exhibit A-1 (d)

Balance at January 1, 2018

Receipts:
Reimbursements

Incentives
Title XiX incentives
Interest

Program income
Genetic testing costs
Maintenance of effort (MOE)
Other

Total Receipts

Intra-fund Transfers - in

Funds Available

Disbursements:
Transfers to General Fund
Vendor Payments

Bank Charges
Other

Total Disbursements

Intra-fund Transfers - Out

Balance at December 31, 2018

Single
Audit

TITLE IV-D
Account

$ 1,240.149

7.478,810
749,426
223,983

71,738
22,367

3,016

13,456

8,562,796

9,802.945

Reported
TITLE 1V-D
Account

$ 1,240,149

7,478,810
749.426
223,983

71,738
22,367
3.016

13,456

8,562,796

9,802,945

Single
Audit

Over/( Under)
Reported

7,027,302

7,027,302

7.027,302

7,027,302

$ 2,775,643 $ 2,775,643

The Title IV-D account consists of four checking accounts.
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County of Delaware, Pennsylvania
Reconciliation Supplemental Financial Schedule - Exiilbif XX
Year Ended December 31, 2018

(A)

GrantoriProgram Frtle

(B)

Federal
CFDA

Number

(C)

Federal

Expenditures
per the
SEFA

(D)
Federal
Awards

Received
per the Audit
Confirmation

Reply from
Pennsylvania

difference
(C).(D)

% Difference
(£/D)

(C)

Detailed Explanation
of Differences

State matching grants for supplemental nutrifion assistance program

Special education grants for infants & families with disabilities

Guardianship assistance

Projects for assistance in •transition from hometessness

Proffioting safe and stable families

Child support enforcement

Childcare and development block grant

Childcare mandatory and matching funds of the childcare and development fund

Siephanfe Tubbs Jones Child Welfare Services Program

Foster care-TitieiV-E

Adoption assistance

Sadal services block grant

Chafee foster care independence program

Block grants for community mentai health serwces

Temporary assistance for needy families

Medical assistance program (Medicaid)

103,801

83,103

129,824

7,S31,8S2

13,486,782

5,825,576

220,851

5,921,866

1,909,470

3,730,S4t)

90,877

7,558,649

3,609,214

124,818 $

770,293

130,887

131,819

7,£14,411

13,220^37

3,768.393

103,874

696,276

6,780,475

3,690.552

(3,797)

(27,086)

(48,810)

15,156

(82,559)

266,545

(2,613,683)

905,128

(517,038)

(37,453)

(12,397)

(163,934)

B7S,1T4

(S1,338)

(3%)

(21%)

(37%)

(1%)

(31%)

(21%)

(1%)

(13%)

(24%)

5 52.G00.919 $ 53,250,171 $ (1,249,252)

The difference relates to timing of cash receipts compared with cash disbursements and relates to
payments received in the earfy part of the year which \vere for prioryear expenditures and end of year
expenditures where receipts were not received by the end of the year.

The difference relates to timing of cash receipts compared with cash disbursements and relates to
payments received in-theearty partof the year which were for prioryear expenditures and end of year
expenditures where receipts were not received by the end of the year.

The difference relates to timing of cash receipts compared with cash disburse ments and relates -to
payments received in the eariy part of the year vrfitch were for pi'ior year expenditures and end of year
expenditures where receipts were not received by the end of the year.

The difference relates to timing of cash receipts compared with cash disbursements and relates to
pay me nts received in the early part of Iheyearwhich were for prior year expenditures and end of year
expenditures where receipts were not received by the end of the year.

The difference relates to timing of cash receipts compared with cash disbursements and relates to
payments received In the eariy part of the year which were for prioryear expenditures and end of year
expenditures where recei pis were not received by the end of the year.

The difference relates to liming of cash receipts compared with cash disbursements and relates to
payments received in theearty part of the year which were for prioryear expenditures and end of year
expenditures where receipts were not received by the end of the year.

The difference relates to timing of cash receipts compared with cash disbursements and relates to
payments received intheearty part of the y&ar which were for prioryaar expenditures and end of year
expenditures where receipts were not received by the end of the year.

! ne airrerence reiaies to ummg or casn receipis comparea wiin casn aiscursements ana reiaies •to

payments received in advance in-the eariy part of the year, not yet fu!!y expended by the end of the

The difference relates 1c timing of cash receipts compared with cash disbursements and relates to
payments received in the eariy part of the yearwhich were for prior year expenditures and end of year
expenditures where receipts were not received by the end of the year.

The difference relates to •timing of cash receipts compared with cash disbursements and relates to
payments received in the eariy partof the year which were for prioryear expenditures and end af year
expenditures where receipts were not received by fhe end of the year.

The difference relates to fiming of cash receipts compared with cash disbursements and relates to
payments received in the early part of the year which were for prior year expenditures and end of year
expenditures where receipts were not received by the end of the year.

The difference relates to timing of cash receipts compared with cash disbu FEE merits and reia-tes to
payments received in the early part o-f the year wdilch were for prior year expenditures and end of year
expenditures where receipts were not received by the end of the year,

The difference relates to timing of cash receipts compared with cash disbursements and relates to
payments received in the eariy part of-the year which were for prior year expenditures and end of year
expenditures where receipts were not received by the end of the year.

The difference relates to timing of cash receipts compared mVn cash disbursements and relates to
payments received in the eariy part of the ysar which were for prior year expenditures and end of year
expenditures where receipts were not received by the end of the year.

The difference relates to timing of cash receipts compared with cash disbursements and relates to
payments received in the early part of the year u^iich were for prior year expenditures and end of year
expenditures where receipts were not received by the end of the year.

The difference relates 1o timing of cash receipts compared with cash disbursements and relates to
payments received In the early part oftte yearwhich were for prioryear expenditures and end of year
expenditures where receipts were rot received by the end of the year.



County of Delaware, Pennsylvania
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures EARN - Exhibit li
Office of Workforce Development EARN 17-18 4100077677
Year Ended June 30, 2018 (Final)

Administration Costs

A. Personnel

Staff Salaries
Staff Fringe Benefits

Total salaries/fringe benefits

B. Equipment and Supplies
C. Operating expenses

Total administration costs

Program Costs (Direct Training)
A, Personnel

Staff Salaries
Staff Fringe Benefits

Total personnel

B. Equipment and Supplies
C. Operating expenses
D. Other Program Expenses

Subcontractor expense

Total program costs

Total contract amount

Budgeted
Amount

$ 69,622
30,041

99,663

3.213
42,585

145,461

Cumulative
YTD Actual

Expenses

$ 24,595
5,299

29,894

239
7,990

38,123

Balance of
Budgeted
Amount

$ 45,027
24,742

69,769

2,974
34,595

107,338

800,039

800,039

797,887

797,887

2,152

2,152

945,500 $ 836,010 $ 109,490
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County of Delaware, Pennsylvania
Children and youth agency monitoring schedule- Exhibit XX!
Period Ended June 30, 2018

(A)

Provider
Name

(B)

Does Provider
Contract

Include Cpsl

Requirements

Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Y6S
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
No

Yes
Yes

(C)

Most
Recent

Monitoring
Date

5/10/2018
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a

3/1/2018
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a

(D)

Monitored
During the

Current Year
(yes/no)

Yes
No
No
No
No
No
No
No
No
No
No
No
No
No
No
No
No
No
No
No

Yes
No
No
No
Ho
No
No
No
No
No
No
No
No
No
No
No
No
No
No
Mo
No
No
No
No
No
No

(E)
List Any

Exceptions
Noted During
Current Year
Monitoring

n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a

If Column D is Yes.

(F»

If Applicable,
Was Cap
Submitted

n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/s
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
nfs
n/a

(G)

is Cap
Acceptable,

To Ccya

n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a

(H)

Date Follow-up
Was Done On

Prior Year
Monitoring

n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a

(0

Has Provider
Implemented

the Cap

n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a

A SECOND CHANCE
Accent interpreting LLC
Alere Testing Laboratory
American Monitoring
American Bio Medical Corporation
Andrea L. Katin & Associates
Anne Ackermann
Be Proud Foundation
CASA/Youth advocates, inc.
Catherine Surbeck Ph D.
Center for Arson Research
Ceiia Spearing
Certified Polygraph Testing
Child Guidance Research Center
Children's choice, inc
Community Specialists Corporation dba the academy
Comel! Abraxas group, inc. Youth & Family Services
Daikon Child family & community
Deaf Hearing Communication
Dr. Stephen Mechanick
Elwyn, Inc
Family Support Line
George Junior Republic in Pennsylvania
Gien Mills School
Holcomb Assoc.
ira Kedson, Ph D.
jane lannuzzeili
Jane Mackay
June Elcock Messam, M.D. dba Media Pediatrics
JusticeWorks YouthCare
Karen Dybner-Madero, Psy D.
Kathleen M. Carroil
Kids Connection
Language Sen/ices Associates
Lorrsine Harris
Pathways
Preventative aftercare, inc
RTM, Lie dba The Academy
Step by Step learning center
Summers Day, inc.
Terri Erbacher
The Center for Resolutions
Tiny hands and Sittie feet day care, lie
Ugo Mannugi
United youth community sen/ice, Uc
Woods services, inc



County of Delaware, Pennsylvania
Housing Opportunities for Persons with Aids, City of Philadelphia
Contract Number (1820021)
Schedule of Source and Status of Funds
For the Period from January 1,2018 to December 31, 2018

CDBG
Funds

Program

income

Other
City

Funds

Non-

City
Funds

299,844
289,106

588,950

$ 77,800 None None None

588,950

$ 77,800

Total Contract $ 666,750
(Final authorized budget)

Less:

Funds drawn down, prior year*
Funds drawn down, current year *

Total funds drawn

Funds available for draw

Total funds drawn

Add,
Program income

Total funds received

Less:

Program income expended
Funds applied, prior year *
Funds applied, current year *

Total funds applied

Total funds due from funding source

Total funds available for disposition

* For purposes of this schedule, current year represents the period from January 1, 2018 to December 31, 2018

588,950

588,950

299,844
289,106

Total

666,750

299,844
289,106

588,950

588,950

299,844
289.106

588,950

None

$ 77,800

None

None

None

None

None

None

588,950

None

$ 77,800
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County of Delaware, Pennsylvania
Housing Opportunities for Persons with Aids, City of Philadelphia
Contract Number (1820021)
Schedule of Program Expenditures
For the Period January 1, 2018 to December 31, 2018

Expenditures
Direct personnel
Direct fringe benefits
Professional services
Travel

Occupancy
Consumable supplies
Other costs
Indirect costs

Total

Budget

$ 88,113
36,391

2,950
8,739
8,857

511,250
10,450

$ 666,750

Expenditures
Prior to 1/1/18

$ 44,132
15,475

548
1,461
2,370

230,071
5,787

$ 299,844

Expenditures
1/1/18 to

12/31/2018

$ 40,818
14,788

1,558
4,920
2.622

221,600
2,800

$ 289.106

Expenditures
Cumulative
to 12/31/18

$ 84,950
30,263

2,106
6,381
4,992

451,671

8,587

$ 588,950
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County of Delaware, Pennsylvania
Housing Opportunities for Persons with Aids, City of Philadelphia
Contract Number (1820021)
Reconciliation Schedule
For the Period January 1, 2018 to December 31, 2018

Amount
Per Books

and
Records

Amount
Per

Subrecipient
Invoice Difference

Contract Amount $ 666,750 $ 666,750 $

Program Costs

Prior Year *

Current Year*

Cumulative

Funds Drawn Down

Prior Year *

Current Year *

Cumulative

* For purposes of this schedule, current year represents the period of January 1, 2018 from December 31, 201 (

299,844

289,106

$ 588,950 3

$ 299,844 ^

289,106

$ 588,950 3

299.844

289,106

? 588,950 $

; 299,844 $

289,106

? 588,950 $
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County of Delaware, Pennsylvania
Housing Opportunities for Persons with Aids, City of Philadelphia
Contract Number (1820021)
Schedule of Program income
For the Period from January 1, 2018 to December 31, 2018

Program Income
Cumulative to 12/31/17

Less,

Program income expended in prior years

Beginning Balance January 1, 2018

Add,
Program income received in current year

Less,

Program income expended in current year

Ending Balance as of December 31,2018

Sales Other

Proceeds (Specify)
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County of Delaware, Pennsylvania
Housing Opportunities for Persons with Aids, City of Philadelphia
Contract Number (1920029)
Schedule of Source and Status of Funds
ForthePeriodfrom January 1,2018 to December 31, 2018

CDBG Program
Funds Income

Total Contract
(Final authorized budget)

Less:
Funds drawn down, prior year *

Funds drawn down, current year *

Total funds drawn

Funds available for draw

Total funds drawn

Add,
Program income

Tota! funds received

Less:

Program income expended
Funds applied, prior year *
Funds applied, current year *

Total funds applied

Total funds due from funding source

Total funds available for disposition

651,250 $

278,371

278,371

278,37-1

278,371

278,371

None

$ 372,879

None

None

Other
City

Funds

Non-

City
Funds

None None

None None

Total

For purposes of this schedule, current year represents the period from January 1, 2018 to December 31, 2018

651,250

278,371

278,371

$ 372,879 None None None

278,371

$ 372,879

278,371

278,371

278,371

278,371

None

$ 372,879
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County of Delaware, Pennsylvania
Housing Opportunities for Persons with Aids, City of Philadelphia
Contract Number (1920029)
Schedule of Program Expenditures
For the Period January 1, 2018 to December 31, 2018

Expenditures
Direct personnel
Direct fringe benefits
Professional services

Travel

Occupancy
Consumable supplies
Other costs
Indirect costs

Total

Budget

$ 81,685
28,822

1,350

16,078
3,475

511,250
8,590

$ 651,250

Expenditures
Prior to 1/1/18

Expenditures
1/1,18 to

12/31/2018

$ 39,620
14,129

430
1,644

336
217,476

4,736

$ 278,371

Expenditures
Cumulative
to 12/31/18

$ 39,620
14,129

430
1,644

336
217,476

4,736

$ 278,371
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County of Delaware, Pennsylvania
Housing Opportunities for Persons with Aids, City of Philadelphia
Contract Number (1920029)
Reconciliation Schedule
ForthePeriod January 1,2018 to December 31, 2018

Contract Amount

Program Costs

Prior Year *

Current Year *

Cumulative

Funds Drawn Down

Prior Year *

Current Year *

Cumulative

Amount

Per Books

and

Records

Amount
Per

Subredpient
invoice Difference

651,250 $ 651,250 $

278,371 278,371

$ 278,371 $ 278,371

278,371 278,371

278,371 $ 278,371 $

For purposes of this schedule, current year represents the period of January 1,2018 from December 31, 201 £
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County of Delaware, Pennsylvania
Housing Opportunities for Persons with Aids, City of Philadelphia
Contract Number (1920029)
Schedule of Program Income
ForthePeriodfrom January 1,2018 to December 31, 2018

Sales Other

Proceeds (Specify)

Program Income
Cumuiative to 12/31/17

Less,

Program income expended in prior years

Beginning Balance January 1, 2018

Add,
Program income received in current year

Less,

Program income expended in current year

Ending Balance as of December 31,2018
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SECTION 2

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN

SUBMITTED BY:
COUNTY OF DELAWARE, PENNSYLVANIA



CONTROLLER OF DELAWARE COUNTY
GOVERNMENT CENTER BUILDING

201 W. FRONT STREET
MEDIA, PENNSYLVANIA 19063

Joanne Phillips, Esq.
CONTROLLER

Jeffrey J. Powers, C.P.A.
FmST DEPUTY CONTROLLER

Rick Megaro, C.P.P.
DEPUTY CONTROLLER

PHONE 610-891-4441
FAX NUMBER 610-566-3256

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN

Robert W. Scott, Esq.
SOLICITOR

The County of Delaware, Pennsylvania respectfully submits the following corrective action plan for the
year ended December 31,2018.

Name and address of independent public accounting firm:

Baker Tilly Vu'chow Ki'ause, LLP
1650 Market Street, Suite 4500
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19102

Audit period: December 31,2018

The finding from the December 31, 2018 schedule of findings and questioned cost are discussed below.

Finding 2018 - 001: Financial Statement Findings/Treasnry Department

Recommendation:

We recommend that the party responsible for reviewing bank reconciliations be separate from the
individuals with account signing privileges, individuals who prepare the bank reconciliations and
individuals with cash receipts duties.

Action Taken:

The County Treasurer's Department has miplemented internal controls to assure that

responsibility for bank account reconciliations shall be separate -from individuals who have
account signing privileges. Additional staff has been added to provide an adequate number of
employees to implement the internal controls.

Finding 2018 - 002: Cash Management/Reimbursement Reporting
WIOA Cluster-17.258/17.259/17.278

Recommendation:

We recommend that a policy be put in place requiring a level of review by an individual other
than the preparer prior to the submission of cash drawdowns, requests for reimbursement, and/or

external reporting.



Action Taken:

The Workforce Development Board office has reviewed the process and shall implement conta'ols

to provide a secondary review by the Director, or his designer to assure there is a secondary

review by an individual other than the preparer of cash drawdowns, requests for reimbursement,

and for external reporting.

Finding 2018 - 003: Cash IManagement/Reimbursement Reporting
TANF Cluster-93.558

Recommendation:

We recommend that a policy be put in place requiring a level of review by an individual other
than the preparer prior to the submission of cash drawdowns, requests for reimbursement, and/or

external reporting.

Action Taken:

The Workforce Development Board office has reviewed the process and shall implement controls

to provide a secondary review by the Director, or his designee, to assure there is a secondary

review by an individual other than the preparer of cash drawdowns, requests for rebnbursement,

and for external reporting.

If there are any questions regarding this plan please call me at 610-891-5333 or email me at
j3hiHipsj(ff),co.de!aware.pa.us.

Very truly yours,

'-ku^'
Joanne iPhillips
Controller

CC: Charlene Mangano, Treasurer

John Daly, Director, Workforce Development

Andrea Caladie, Baker Tilly
Jeffrey Powers, Fu-st Deputy Controller



SECTIONS

DATACOLLECTilON FORMS FOR REPORTING
ON AUDITS OF STATES/ LOCAL GOVERNMENTS, AND

NON -PROFIT ORGANIZATION

SUBMiTTEDBY:
COUNTY OF DELAWARE, PENNSYLVANIA





FORMSF-SAC 06/02/2016 US. Oept. of Co)'nm>-6con 9rnfStatA<imin.-U,s. Census Bureau

OMJB--KQ: 0348'0057:;:A?rwai-Ex^res.06/30/2pl9 ACTIMGAS.CQLLECT)N6A6^WFORQFftCEQF.MANA<5£MENTAND8UDSBr . • ;. . , ,,, '

P^ta Cpllection Form for Reporting on

AudilEs of States, local Governments Indian Tribes, Instituttons pftiigher Education an^ Nonprofit

For iFisc^tpeyiods Beginning pn or ^fterDecember^^

Rft^h^J^ftL-W^fVlAttON WQRTID:811363 V^R${OMil
t. Ftsc^i) Period Eh^Oate

12/31/2018

3. AMdjt Reriod Coy^retl

Annual

4/AHdi^)den€ific^iohNyrnhers/ I
a, Audits Employer Itierittfication Numfcier {^)N) I

23-6003046

b* Are multiple E)fi)5 covered in this report? |

No

^Ajy^itee^ljif^fmiifi^w ,
^Aydit)ej&rBm^...v. -...'':•' '-"'-•.." '. ;' -:::^\

COUNTY OF DELAWARE

b> Audited 9d^@?s/A/ymto crnd Mre^:
201 WEST FRONT STREET

Auciit^.Oity'-. '•.,, .,;. • . ' -". •• •- •.;

MEDIA
^y'cli^e-Std^e, •'- .'\," •- •,-.'••: '."^" -'•'•--

PA
Au^eeziP^ad^ : ' <-;. ':^:-<-' - --.

19063
c^t)c|j^@l<5i5.^p1E:;N^iCTie::"' '•" ••".'•:'^~ .'"^•:

JOANNE PHILLIPS
Audm^Nn^^Wie;"' :T-. /'- '^'-' ;:...:.::.:"..

CONTROLLER

ii*^^|t!e^€0ri1||^^^h9^;/^:^^ ,^
(610)891-4441
%^^lf|-@]s%ti||L^^n^i|.:-.;)-'^ '^,< ::^::-'/".1

PHILLiPSJ@CO.DELAWARE.PA.US

2» TypepfUnifQrffr) Guidance Aydit

Single Audit

If Audit Period Other/ then numberof months

ti.Aydltee Data UniversglNymberJrig System (DUISJS): Number

e. Are multiple DUNS coverfed in thisrepQrt?

No

|.^m^^ydit^r.)r!ifQt"rrmti)3in ^

a. Audit Ftrni/Qrg^niMpn^me; ^
BAKER TILLY VIRCHOW KRAUSE/ LIP
b>Au^jtF1rni/o^ganizatibn^^^^ , . J

39-0859910

c:,AMdltFfrrh/Org^nizati9n^^<;jress^ ;
16050 MARKET STREET, SUITE 4500
^jt fiirm/Organ^atfbn -City , '", -''-.

PHILADELPHIA
Aijdit^irtti/OrganlxationState
PA
Aucjit Rirm/^)rgan)2altipn Zli? Code
19103
G^Prinfigfry Auditor t^nt^;Namla : : ;:;

ANDREACALADIE
PrlnFi^^^tetjF^nW^Title^ <^^-^^ •:.-^; "-. ^' ^:^ ^

PARTNER
^^m^^dlfoir^Q^'i^^ •'€" "

(570)820-0174
^nmarY^Au<Jit0rC^nt^c^E-rria!):--.-; :•}- -</ ^" <;:'.:„..• ^" ' h

ANDREA.CALADIE@BAKERTILLY.COM
^^as;a.;s@ic(^49^^.Wi.)^9-''-;^ ::\.'-:'c- -" ':"'^':\ ^-~- :-'

Yes



Number of Audit Wdtngs

Bf^lqmn (a)"fs "y"/tyf?e.af-atttiii;.r^port-on Major Program *

11% fftS -Major 'Prvgfam

• !f coliimtith)^ "Y"j .Pfpvldfi

Amiwffa^.eijjliro.ygb

'Federal AwarAfta$;sie!Jti.raygb.»6 Subrecfpfents. ^

tf.coft(fnn'(k):(5t"N",'J^t-)(;le^&ingnumter^ss!gHE!(jby.tf»e
::;f'?sus'-t(>'pug)i Entity, if wsslgflejd7:

^K{

••:ltc^ium.n'.(R)Js.."NU> JistName of Pass-through.Entj.ty milsui ? a <s s

§ fc ° i u
S 3 < b: S >< S, 'Z ^ K
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1 Enter the letter(s) ofa[Itype(s) of compliance requirement(s) that apply to audit findings (i.e., noncompliance/

significant deficiency (including material weaknesses/}, questioned costs, fraud/ and other items

reported under 2 CFR 200.516(a)) reported for each Federal program.

A. Activities allowed or unallowed F. Equipment and real property management K. Reserved

B. Allowable costs/cost principles G. Matching/ level of effort/ earmarking L Reporting

C. Cash management H. Period of performance (or availability) of Feder M. Subrecipient monitoring

D. Reserved I. Procurement and suspension and debarment N. Special tests and provisions

E. Eligibility J. Program income P. Other

2 There are 9 valid combinations of "Compliance Audit Findings," "Internai Control Audit Findings/" and "Other Audit Findings"

for each Federal program with audit findings. (See chart in instructions" Item 4k)
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3;, ^tidifee CertifKsatioo Statement 2, Auditor Statement

This is to certify that/ to the best of my knowledge

and belief the following is true and correct. The

auditee has:

ensured that the Form SF-SAC and reporting

package does not include protected personally

identifiable information (Protected Pll) (2 CFR 200.79

and 2 CFR 200.82), or if it does/ the Federal Audit

Clearinghouse is authorized to publicly post al!

information contained in this Form SF-SACand the

audit report;

0 ensured that the Form SF-SAC and reporting

package does not include business identifiable

information (Bil) as defined below*, or if it does, the

Federal Audit Clearinghouse is authorized to publicly

post all information contained in this Form SF-SAC

and the audit report;

0 complied with the requirements of 2 CFR Part

200 Subpart F specific to the auditee;

EJ prepared the data in this form in accordance

with 2 CFR Part 200 and the accompanying

instructions to this form;

g) included all information required to be

reported in this form in its entirety and such

information is accurate and complete;

3 engaged an auditor to perform an audit in

accordance with 2 CFR Part 200.500 for the period

described in Part I, Items 1 and 3;

[3 ensured the auditor has completed such audit

and issued the signed audit report required by

200.515 which states that the audit has conducted in

accordance with the audit requirements of the

Uniform Guidance; and

E) authorized the FAC to make the Form SF-SAC

and reporting package publicly available on a Web

site

The data elements and information included in this

form are limited to those prescribed by the Uniform

Guidance. The information in Part I! of this form is the

responsibility of the auditee and is based on

information included in the reporting package required

by the Uniform Guidance. The information included in

Part 111 of this form, except for Part Hi Item 2(a)(iii), Item

3(d), and Items 4(a) - (d) (when there are audit

findings), was transferred by the auditor from the

auditor's report(s) for the period described in Part I/

items 1 and 3, and is not a substitute for such reports.

The auditor has not performed any auditing procedures

since the date of the auditor's report(s) or any

additional auditing procedures in connection with the

completion of this form. A copy of the reporting

package required by the Uniform Guidance, which

includes the complete auditor's report(s)/ is required to

be made available by the FAC on the FAC web site. It is

also available in its entirety from the auditee at the

address identified in Part ! of this form and on the FAC

web site.



*BII consists of information defined in the Freedom of Information Act (FOSA) as "trade secrets and commercial or financial information obtained from a person {that is]

priviieged or confidential." (5 U.S,C.552(b){4)), This information is exempt from automatic release under the (b}(4) FOIA exemption. "Commercial" is not confined to

records that reveal "basic commerdai operations" but includes any records or information in which the submitter has a commerciai interest, and can Include

information submitted by a nonprofit entity.

Auditee Certification ,
9/30/2019
Ngrtie of certifying official
JOANNE PHILLIPS

TJfN ofctertKyirig offleial
CONTROLLER

Auditor Signature , ;
(Date of Electronic Signature }

ELECTRONICALLY CERTIFIED: 9/30/2019
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SECTION 4

MANAGEMENT LETTER

SUBMITTED BY:
BAKER TILLY VIRCHOW KRAUSE, LLP





® bakertitly

Joanne PhEllips, Esq,
County Controller
County of Delaware, Pennsylvania

In planning and performing our audit of the basic financial statements of the County of Delaware (the "County")
as of and for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2018, in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, we considered the County's internal control over financial reporting
(internal control) as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the County's
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County's internal control.

However, during our audit we became aware of matters that we believe are opportunities for strengthening
internal controls and operating efficiency. Our comments and suggestions concerning these matters, which
reflect our desire to be of continuing assistance to management, are summarized below.

Bank Reconciliations

During our audit procedures we noted that bank reconciliations were not being completed until several months
later due to delays in cash receipts processing by the Treasury department. This can prevent the timely review
of information and potential correction of errors. AdditionaSiy, as noted in the prior year, combining several bank
accounts into one general ledger account can make reconciling cash a time consuming process that could lead
to errors. To simplify and expedite the process, we recommend a separate general ledger accounts for each
cash account and that reconciiiations be performed within one month of period end.

Timely preparation of complete and accurate bank reconciliations is a key to maintaining adequate control over
both cash receipts and disbursements. During much of the year, the general fund operating cash bank account
reconciliations appeared to be generally incomplete. An unreconciled difference that appears immaterial can
obscure significant but offsetting items (such as bank errors or improperiy recorded transactions) that would be
a cause for investigation if the items were apparent. We recommend that the general fund bank reconciliations
be reviewed for accuracy and completeness on a timeiy basis by the First Deputy Controller. The review should
include tests of mechanical accuracy and tracing of items on the reconciliation to the relevant source
documents. The composition of unreconciied differences should be determined and followed up on, and any
Journal entries deemed necessary as a result be recorded.

Although we were advised that all bank reconciliations are approved by a responsible employee, no indication
of such review was evident on the reconciliations selected for review. We recommend that the reconciliations
be signed as an indication of approval. Doing so would take little additional time and might even prevent time
from being wasted by inadvertent review of reconciliations that had already been reviewed. We also
recommend that the reconciliations be signed and dated by employees preparing them. As a prompt to the
preparer and reviewer/approver to sign the reconciliation, preprinted reconciliation forms couid include a
signature block with space for the signatures, or a stamp with a signature block couid be applied to the
reconciliations.

Capital Asset Accounts

The SAP system is designed for capita! asset expenditures to be recorded to certain accounts within the
general ledger. Since these expenditures are not capitalized on the fund perspective financia! statements there
is an offsetting entry generated by the system which is to net the capital asset balance to zero. We noted for
several funds, the balances did not net to zero. While the net differences were not material to the overall
financial statements, the accounts should be adjusted.

Baker Tiily Virchow Krause, LLP trading as Baker Tiily is a member of the global network of Baker Tilly International Ltd., the members
of which are separate and independent legal entities. ©2018 Baker TillyVirchow Krause, LLP
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Accounting for Capital Assets

During our audit, we noted that the County did not have formal procedures in place to determine capital assets
associatecf with projects on going and not yet placed In service. The County in practice capitalizes each
component of a project to a separate asset number as the purchase is made, instead of accumulating the
components of the project in construction in progress and capitalizing the full value of the project when it is
placed in service. We recommend that the County establish procedures for identifying projects not yet placed in
service, accumulating the costs to a single project, and capitalizing the full value of the project when it is placed
in service.

During our audit, we noted that the County did not have formal procedures in place to determine the impairment
of long-lived assets. The County did not identify, communicate, and document sufficient financial information
that could affect the impairment of assets. While no material amounts were involved this year, the Company
may have material amounts to consider in the future. Therefore, we recommend that the Company establish
procedures for evaluating impairment of iong-lived assets on a regular basis.

Eliminate Unnecessary General Ledger Accounts

During our audit, we noticed that there were a number of general ledger accounts that had not been used in
more than a year, had small balances, or were similar to other larger, more active accounts, in some cases, the
transactions or events for which the accounts were established no longer exist or were discontinued, or have
low volume. Retaining unnecessary accounts in the general ledger and chart of accounts, especially accounts
that are similar to others, can lead to confusion and inaccuracy in posting transactions or creating journal
entries. We recommend that the genera! ledger chart of accounts be periodicaily reviewed, that unused
accounts be eliminated, and that small balances in seldom-used accounts be merged into similar larger, more
active ones.

239999 Balancing Accounts and Fund-less Accounts

The County general ledger ("SAP") allows journal entries to be posted across funds. When a cross fund entry is
posted, SAP auto-generates a balancing offset account, ending in 239999, within each fund to ensure that the
fund remains balances. The 239999 accounts should not have activity recorded against them outside of the
fixed asset module. The 239999 accounts for each fund should be monitored for activity on at ieast a quarterly
basis, ancf any imbalanced entries identified should be corrected in a timely manner.

Additionally, SAP allows Journal entries to be posted to accounts without an associated fund. The fund-less
accounts should be monitored for activity on at least a quarterly basis, and any activity identified should be
corrected in a timely manner.

Warrants Payable Activity

As a function of the accounts payable process, the County utilizes warrant's payable accounts to charge funds
for expenditures paid on behalf of the fund by the Genera! Fund. The activity in the warrants payable accounts
should net to $0 on an annual basis. During our audit, we noticed that the activity in some of the warrant's
payable accounts was not properly netting to zero. We recommend that management review the activity in the
warrants payable accounts on at least a quarterly basis, and adjust for voids via manual journal entry in a timely
manner.

Review of Retirement and Death Benefit Calculations

During our audit, we noted that the calculation prepared to determine employee benefits at retirement, death, or
general option pay out are not reviewed by an individual other than the preparer. Though we did not identify any
errors in the calculations reviewed, we would recommend that the caicuiations be reviewed and approved by
someone other than the preparer prior to processing.



Improve Storage Safety of Employee Retirement Records

To prevent the loss of employee retirement records, the County should adopt a policy of storing basic source
documents in fireproof locations. Such a policy should be adhered to by ail offices because the reconstruction
of these records would be costly and time consuming.

Reconciliation of Tax Receivable and Deferral

During our audit, we noted that the supporting detail of tax accounts receivable and deferral had not been
reconciled to the genera! ledger since July 2018. This occurred due to the Deputy Controller's medical leave of
absence. We recommend that a reconciliation of the detail to the tax accounts receivable and deferral be made
at the end of each month and that any reconciling adjustments be investigated and recorded in a timely
manner. The reconciliation should then be reviewed and approved by someone other than the preparer.

Reconciliation ofCDBG Fund Loan Receivables

During our audit, we noted that Loan Funds were not being reconciied to the genera! ledger for funds 79, 80,
and 83. We recommend that a reconciliation of the general ledger to the loan transaction reports maintained by
the Office of Housing and Community Development be completed on an at lease quarterly basis. The
reconciliation should be reviewed and approved by someone other than preparer.

Cross-Training of Personnel

During our audit procedures, we noted instances where changes in staffing or individuals being unavailable,
due to extended leaves of absence or retirement, led to delays in recording of transactions or reconciliation of
balances. We recommend the County cross-train personnel in accounting functions, grant management
functions, and other key positions. Cross-training personnel will ensure that at [east two employees understand
the processes and controls associated with a job position. In addition, the personnel can assist with training a
replacement if the responsible individual is unavailable.

Succession Planning

The County pension allows retirement at age 55 if the employee has reached 20 years of service or upon
reaching the age of 60. As of December 31, 2018, the County has 537 active empioyees that are over the age
of 60 and an additional 373 employees that are over 55 but under 60.We recommend that the County assess
key department heads that are likely to retire within the next 3-5 years and have those department heads
document their key responsibilities and activities, help determine what qualities and knowledge is needed to
meet their job responsibilities. Ideally, the potential department head replacement would be able to train under
the retiring department head for 6 to 12 months prior to taking on the responsibilities to allow for continued
efficiency at the County and minimize potential issues,

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management and others within the
County, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

^t^'7^/^^/^1^ ^-p

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
June 25, 2018
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To Management and County Council Members
County of Delaware, Pennsylvania

in planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of County of Delaware (the "County") as of and
for the year ended December 31, 2018, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, We considered the County's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a
basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing my
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
County's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County's
internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.
However, as discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be a
significant deficiency.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. We did not identified any
deficiencies in the County's internal control to be materiai weaknesses.

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We
consider the following deficiency in the County's internal control to be a significant deficiency:

Segregation of Duties- Treasury Department

The bank reconciiiations for several cash accounts were prepared and reviewed by the same individual leading
to a lack of segregation of duties for the period September through December 2018. The Deputy Treasurer is
responsible for preparing the bank reconciliations while the Treasurer is responsibie for reviewing however the
Treasurer retired during this time frame. Since the Deputy Treasurer has signing rights on each account and
has cash receipt duties, internal control is most effective when the person reviewing the bank reconciliations
also is not responsible for entries in the receipts and disbursements records.

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management and County Council
Members, and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

'Uhgj/^ew/-)'

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
June 25, 2018

/^UM^^P

Baker Tiliy Virchow Krause, LLP trading as Baker Tiliy is a member of the global network of Baker Tilly Internationai Ltd., the members
of which are separate and independent legal entities. ©2018 Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP
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BARSZGOWiEAMONFULTZ
Certified Pub lie Accountants

Independent Auditor's Report

County Council
County of Delaware

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the County of Delaware, Department
of Human Services, Child Care Information Services (the "Agency"), as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the Agency's financial statements as listed m the table of contents.

Management^ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers

internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate m the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinion.

Barsz Gowie Amon & Fultz, LLC
BarszGowie.com

info@B3rszGowie.com

1400 N. Providence Road
Building 2, Suite 1040
Media, PA 19063
Phone: 610.565.1120
Fax: 610.565.1159

411 Old Baltimore Pike
ChaddsFord,PA19317
Phone: 610.388.7800
Fax: 610.388.9332



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the County of Delaware, Department of Human Services, Child Care
Information Services, as of June 30, 2018, and the changes in financial position for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Other Matters

Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that
comprise the County of Delaware, Department of Human Services, Child Care Information
Services' as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented
for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Azidit Reqziirements for Federal
A-wards (Umform Guidance) and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal
awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, m relation to the basic fmancial statements as a
whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated August
20, 2019 on our consideration of County of Delaware, Department of Human Services, Child
Care Information Services internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements and other

matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on mtemal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Agency s
interna] control over fmanclal repoi-ting and compliance.

^cui^f ^WM€ ^ww & i?cUifJi^.e

Media, Pennsylvania
August 20, 2019



County of Delaware

Department of Human Services

Child Care Information Services

Balance Sheet

June 30,2018

Assets

Current Assets

Due from County of Delaware

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable, due to PA Department

of Human Services

Fund Balance

Fund balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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County of Delaware

Department of Human Services
Child Care Information Services

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Year Ended June 30,2018

Budget Actual

Revenues

Pennsylvania Department of Human Services

Plus: Amounts due from PA Department of Human Services

Grant Revenues

Interest income

Miscellaneous revenue

Total Revenues

Expenditures

Purchased sub "contractors services

Salaries and benefits

Audit
Administrative services

Communications

Information technology

Staff training
Equipment rentals

Indirect costs

Maintenance

Occupancy

Supplies
Travel

Uncollected overpayments
Total Expenditures

Excess Revenues Over ExpendUyres

Fund Balance - Beginning

Fund Balance - Ending

$ 47,555,068

47,555,068

47,555,068

44,548,919
2,381,067

23,038
386,481
44,999

1,998
15,001

45,000

93,565
5,800
5,001
4,199

47,555,068

$ _^

$ 46,042,955
194,695

46,237,650
45,038
24,454

46,307,142

43,504,663
1,945,488

21,500
637,418
42,609

565
2,729

14,600
40,741

495
90,245
3,176
2,913

46,307,142

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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County of Delaware
Department of Human Services
Child Care Information Services
Notes to Financial Statements

Year Ended June 30,2018

Note 1 Nature of the Organization

The County of Delaware, Department of Human Services, Child Care Information
Services (the "Agency"), funds providers of day care services through subcontracts
with day care service providers throughout the County of Delaware ("County") under
a Child Care Information Services ("CCIS") contract with the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania Department of Human Services ("DHS ). The fiscal contract is
renewable annually on June 30th through June 30, 2020 under a new program title
Early Learning Resource Center ("ELRC") with annual renewals each year for
subsequent three years following.

DHS provides the subsidy directly to the County of Delaware (the "County") on
behalf of the Agency. The County In turn meets all obligations on behalf of the

Agency.

Note 2 Summary of Sipnificant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting
The accounts of the Agency are included in the books and records of the County. The
financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. Consequently,

revenue and the related assets are recorded when earned, and expenses and related

liabilities are recorded when incurred.

Revenues

Contract revenue consists primarily of funds earned for costs incurred and services
provided under the terms of the CCIS contract agreement with DHS.

Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires the Agency's management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

5 "



County of Delaware
Department of Human Services
Child Care Information Services
Notes to Financial Statements

Year Ended June 30,2018

Note 3 Due to/from PA Department of Human Services

Due to/fi'om the PA Department of Human Services is based on the difference
between funds received from DHS and actual expenditures incurred or services
rendered under the terms of the CCIS contract agreement. The receivable or
obligation resulting from this difference belongs to or is the responsibility of the
County. A budget for the CCIS contract agreement Is prepared annually and revised
throughout the year. Funding received by the Agency is based on the approved
budget and subsequent approved revisions. The Agency submitted a revised budget
subsequent to year end which Included a receivable due from DHS for excess funds
incurred of $194,695 which was subsequently received in August 2018 and reflected
as received as of June 30, 2018 in these financial statements.

Note 4 Cost Allocation PIan-Indirect Costs

The County has an approved cost allocation plan under the CCIS contract agreement
for indirect costs. Since the County operates on a calendar year, the indirect costs
charged by the Agency are based on the County's 2017 calendar year cost plan.

Note 5 Concentration of Risk

The Agency receives substantially all of its revenue from the federal and state funded
Pennsylvania Department of Human Services CCIS program passed through from the
County of Delaware. A change in funding priorities or discontinuation of these
revenues, which is dependent upon the federal and state programs, would have a
material adverse impact on the financial condition of the Agency.

Note 6 Subsequent Events

The Agency has evaluated subsequent events through August 20, 2019, the date
which the financial statements were available to be issued.

-6"



C o untyofDelaware

Department of Human Services
Child Care Information Services

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards

Year Ended June 30, 2018

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through CFDA/Grant Number Expenditures

Program Title

United States Department of Health and Human Services

Passed through Pennsylvania Department of Human Services

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families

CCDF Cluster

Social Services Block Grant

State Admin Matching Grants for Food Stamp Program

Total Federal Awards

State Funding Sources

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Passed through Pennsylvania Department of Human Services

Low Income (Fund A)

Former TANF (Fund C)

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families

Total State Funding 16,891,917

Total Federal Awards and State Funding $ 46,042,955

93.558

93.575/93.596

93.667

10.561

3,426,635

23,434,675

2,178,488

111,240

29,151,038

DC17-215327

DC 17-2153 27

DC17-215327

9,244,698

4,335,700

3,311,519

See Independent Auditor's Report and

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards.
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County of Delaware
Department of Human Services
Child Care Information Services

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of
Federal and State Awards

Year Ended June 30,2018

Note 1 Basis of Presentation

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards includes
the federal and state grant activity of the County of Delaware, Department of Human
Services, Child Care Information Services and is presented on the accrual basis of
accounting. The information in tills schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance, Audits of States, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit Organizations.



BARSZGOWIEAMONFULTZ
Certified PublicAccountants

Independent Ayditorls Report Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial StatemeHts

Performed in Accordance with Government Auditins Standards

County Council
County of Delaware

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of the County of Delaware, Department of Human Services, Child Care Information
Services (the "Agency"), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Agency's basic financial statements, and
have Issued our report thereon dated August 20, 2019.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Agency's
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness the Agency's
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency's
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a

deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented,

or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies. In internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described m the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies m Internal control that might be
material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Barsz Gowie Amon & Fultz, LLC
BarszGowie.com

info@BarszGowie.com

1400 N. Providence Road
Building 2, Suite 1040
Media, PA 19063
Phone: 610.565.1120
Fax: 610.565.1159

411 Old Baltimore Pike
Ch5ddsFord,PA19317
Phones 610.388.7800
Fax: 610.388.9332



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Agency's financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompllance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of Internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity s
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication Is not suitable for any other

purpose.

'S^i^t ^wUe ^wo^ & f?<^tf^e

Media, Pennsylvania
August 20, 2019



Independent Auditor^ Report on Compliance for a Federal Proeram

and on Internal Control over Compliance

County Council
County of Delaware

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the County of Delaware, Department of Human Services, Child Care
Information Services Program's (the "Agency") compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement and Pennsylvania Department of
Human Services Single Azidit Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on the

Agency's federal program for the year ended June 30, 2018.

Management^ Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grants applicable to Its federal program.

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for the Agency's major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We
conducted our audit of compliance In accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the
audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance)
and Pennsylvania Department of Human Services Single Audit Supplement. Those standards and
the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that
could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Agency's compliance with those requirements and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the
Agency's compliance.



Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the Agency, complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2018.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of the Agency is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Agency's internal control
over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on
each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the
Uniform Guidance and Pennsylvania Department of Human Services Single Audit Supplement,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency s
internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in Internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on
a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The pmpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other

purpose.

^T<^- ^ww y4^(w & f?<Ut^^e

Media, Pennsylvania
August 20, 2019



County of Delaware
Department of Human Services
Child Care Information Services

Schedule of Findings and Question Costs
Year Ended June 30,2018

Section 1 -Summary of Auditor^ Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued:

Internal control over financial reporting:
- Material weakness(es) identified?
- Significant deficiency(ies) identified

NoncompUance material to financial statements noted?

Federal A wards

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for major programs:

Internal control over financial reporting:
- Material weakness(es) identified?
- Significant deficiency(ies) identified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516a

Unmodlfied Opinion

Yes
Yes

Yes

X No
X None Reported

X No

Unmodified Opinion

Yes
Yes

X No
X None Reported

Yes X No

Identification of major programs:
CFDA Numbers Name of Federal Program or Cluster

93.596

93.667
93.558
93.575
10.561

Child Care Mandatory and Matching Funds of the Child
Care and Development Fund

Social Services Block Grant

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families
Child Care and Development Block Grant
State Admln Matching Grants for Food Stamp Program

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B federal programs: $750,000

Auditee qualifies as low-risk auditee: X Yes _ No

Section II - Financial Statement Findings

No matters were reported

Section in — Federal Awards Findings and Questioned Costs

No matters were reported

- 13-



County of Delaware
Department of Human Services
Child Care Information Services
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BARSZGOWIEAMONFULTZ

Certified Pubiic Accountants

Independent Accountant's Report on Applying
Agreed-Upon Procedures

The County Council
County of Delaware

We have performed the procedures enumerated below, which were agreed to by the Commonwealth
of Pennsylvania, Department of Human Services ("DHS") and the County of Delaware Department
of Human Services, Child Care Information Services, solely to assist you with respect to the
supplemental information required by this agreement. This supplemental information is the
responsibility of the County of Delaware Department of Human Services, Child Care Information
Services' management. This agreed-upon procedures engagement was conducted in accordance

with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The sufficiency of these procedures is solely the responsibility of those parties specified in the
report, Consequently, we make no representation regarding the sufficiency of the procedures
described below either for the purpose for which this report has been requested or for any other
purpose.

The procedures and findings are as follows:

a. We have verified by comparison of the amounts and classifications to ensure that the
schedule listed below, which summarize amounts reported to DHS for fiscal year
ended June 30, 2018, have been accurately compiled and reflect the audited books
and records of the County of Delaware Department of Human Services, Child Care
Information Services. We have also verified by comparison to the sample schedules
that these schedules are presented, at a minimum, at the level of detail and in the
format required by the DHS Single Audit Supplement pertaining to this period.

CCIS Recap Worksheet for Fiscal Year 2017-2018

b. We have inquired of management regarding adjustments to reported revenues or
expenditures, which were not reflected on the reports submitted to DHS for the
period in question. Any adjustments made were reflected on the reports submitted to
DHS.

c. Based in procedures noted above in steps a. and b. we did not note any adjustments
or findings affecting the schedules.

Barsz Gowie Amon & Fultz, ILC
BarszGowie.com
info@BarszGowie,com

1400 N, Providence Road
Building 2, Suite 1040
Media, PA 19063
Phone: 610.565.1120
Fax: 610.565.1159

411 Old Baltimore Pike
ChaddsFord,PA19317
Phone: 610.388.7800
Fax: 610.388,9332



We were not engaged to, and did not, conduct an audit, the objective of which would be the
expression of an opinion on the accompanying supplemental information. Accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might have come
to our attention that would have been reported to you.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania,
Department of Human Services and the County of Delaware Department of Human Services, Child
Care Information Services and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than
these specified parties.

'Sc^uf ^o^ie ^4w(^ & f?cUt^ ^e

Media, Pennsylvania
August 20, 2019



CCIS RECAP WORKSHEET FOR FY 2017-2018

CONTRACTOR:

FEDERAL ID NUMBER:

CONTRACT NUMBER:

COUNTV(-i£Sj: Delaware

PREPARED BY; JaGMc_Hantticx

PHONE NUMBER: 610.713.2246

REVENUE
DPW Funds

Audit Adiustmsnts
Other (eg. Penaities)

Client Repayments

TOTAL RB/EHUE
EXPENDITURES

Ftnal Report Totals
Carry Forwafd Amount
Benefit Rate Reduction
Issued bv Countv Office
After June FFS Due Date_

Audtl Cosls Estimate -Adj
Final Rec»d after FFSwas due.

TOTAT'ratFERtSTnjRST

SUBTOTAL.U/FT

LOW INCOME

S1,S9S,S51.79

'^'S-SS^sS^^SiS,

$1,599.651.79

£1,791.228.89

(£39,613.02)

(S1,538.00)
•'SSSSisS3^^^S^fWS^^

"•3T;756:i577-)Sr

(S1S0.426.08)

..S2M34^677.73

S44,635.40

524,454.45

528.103.767.58

S2S,005.629,a4

528,005,629.94

$38.137.64

FORMERTANF

S581.356.39
M^??'^3?i?iSg¥"iSt|

$581,356.39

$708,843,36

5708,843.36

(S127.485.97)

S11.351.743.S2

$11,351.743.92

511,387,372.10

311.387.372,10

(S35.628.18)

U& FT TOTAL.

S41.567.429.83
S44.635.40

SO. 00

$24,454.45

S41.636.51S.gg

$41,893,074.29

SO. 00

(S39.613.02i

so.oo
(S1.538.00)

so.oo
"•§^-(l;§5-i:5SA;S7

(5215,403.59)

SUMMARY FV 2017-1S

REVENUE
Sonfico

'FSS
SU8TOTAL

EXPENDITURES
Sorolco
FSS

SLJBTOTAL

TOTAL DUE BPW

gims;l!SX'Sii?%%%
$43,557.121.58

S2,552;S87,04
345,110,008.62

•sys;^:

~$43,493;300.43
-S2-8Tl7403:43-

$46,304,703.86

($134,695.24)

' IF TOTAL DUE DMS is positive. Issue check to Department of Human Semlces In the
amount listed. Include the check with the Recap Packet -to be received by OCDEL no

later than 5:00 pm,Fri((ayi September 14,2018.

REVENUE

TAMF/FS/GA SERVICE

TANHFS FSS

TOTAL REVEKUE
EXPENDITURES

TANF/FSfGA SERVICE

TANF/FSFSS

TOTAL EXPENDITURES
SUBTOTAL.TANF/FSreWWSa

DPW Funds
imsresl

TOTAL SERVICE
DPW Funds
Audit Adjustments
Other (eg. Penslties)

TOTAL. FSS

Final Report Totals
Cany Foiward Amoynt

TOTAL SERVICE

TANF TRAlNiHiG

S1,799,857.98

S1.799.B57.98

S176.669.63

$176,669.83

S1.976.527.S1

St,813,393,13

S1.813.393.13

Final Roport Tolais J _S167,4&1,S9
Cany Fonvard Amount

TOTALFSS $167,454.93

$1.980.848.12
. (54,320.31'

TANF WORKING

$1,133,176.83

S1.133.176.83

3109,158,36

S109,158.36

S1.242.335.19

31,134,288,42

$1.134.298.-t2

$103.464.82

S103..-! 64.82
~X237,763.24

S4.571.95

TANF STATE MOE

5941,^00^7

SS4i,400,27

$81.050.39

S81.050.39
31,022,450.66

$932,877.47

6932,877.47

576,822,82

S76,8_22,S2
31,009,700.39

£12,750.27

FOOD STAMPS

5217,479.53

5217,479.53

S5.C00.28

S5.000.28

S222.-I73.S1

5212,454,36

S212.454.36

S4,739.47

S4.739.47

S217.193.S3

S5.285.98

3EMERAL ASSISTAWS
2

S9,S95.47

$9,695.47

$9,695."f7

$7,275.01

$7,275.01

57,275.01

£2.420.46

FANFTOTAL

34,101,610,03
so.oo
so.oo
SO.GO
SO.OO
SQ.DO
so.oo
SD.OO

S4,101,510.03
S371,87S.8S

so.oo
SO.QO

S371.878.86

34,473,488.94

54,100,298.39
so.oo
$0,00
SO.DO
so.oo
$0.00
so.oo
50,00

£4,100,298.39

5352,482.20
so.oo

£352,482.20

$4,452,780,59

$20,708.32

CERTIFICATION:

COMMENTS:

SIGNATURE

NAME

-^OcAiff ^OJtl^b
^Ao.klip. <?

DATE

TITLE

^;/L
^;^AI '^ae^-U.

[please print)
CCIS Recap 06-1

Subbed to change
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MlNGIS, GUTOWSKI & COMPANY, I.LP
Certified Public Accountants 300 West State Street. Suite 206 • Media, PA 19063

610-544-5100
FAX: 610-544-9767

INDEPENDENT AUmTOR' S REPORT

County Council
County of Delaware, Pennsylvania

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the County of Delaware,
Pennsylvania Mental Health Program, Intellectual Developmental Disabilities Program,
and Early Intervention Program (collectively, "the Prograxns"), as of and for the years
ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements as listed
in the table of contents.

Managements Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors ResponsibUity

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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Page 2

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstanceSt but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of

the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also

includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the County of Delaware, Pennsylvania
Mental Health Program, Intellectual Developmental Disabilities Program» and Early
Intervention Program as of June 30, 2018 and 2017 and the results of their operations for
the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Emphasis of a Matter

As discussed in Note I, the financial statements are intended to present the financial
position and results of operations of only the County of Delaware, Pennsylvania's Mental
Health Program, Intellectual Developmental Disabilities Program, and Early Intervention
Program. They do not purport to, and do not, present fairly die financial position of the
County of Delaware as of June 30, 2018 and 2017 and the results of its operations for the
years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters

Other Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the Programs' basic

financial statements. The accompanying supplementary information identified in the
Table of Contents is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required

-2-
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part of the basic financial statements of the Programs. In addition, the accompanying
schedules of expenditures of Federal and Pennsylvania Department of Human Services
awards are also presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and
the Pennsylvania Department of Human Services Single Audit Supplement^ and are also
not a required part of the basic financial statements of the Programs. Such information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied m the audit of the basic fmancial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the financial statements of the Programs as a whole,

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards^ we have also issued our report dated

July 29, 2019, on our consideration of the Programs' internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,

contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an

audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
Programs' internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Hi^i4, Cf44M/4^i ^ dw^h^^ LtP

July 29,2019
Media, Pennsylvania
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COUNTY OF DELAWARE, PENNSYLVANIA
MENTAL HEALTH PROGRAM

BALANCE SHEETS
JUNE 30,2018 AND 2017

2018 2017
ASSETS

Receivable from Delaware County General Fund $ 9.277.427 $ 7.753.036

$ 9.277A27

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable, principally to contracted
service providers $ 9,277.427 $ 7.753.036

$ 9.277.427 $ 7.753.036

See accompanying notes to financial statements

^



COUNTY OF DELAWARE, PENNSYLVANIA
INTELLECTUAL DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES PROGRAM

BALANCE SHEETS
JUNE 30,2018 AND 2017

2018 2017
ASSETS

Receivable from Delaware County General Fund $ 3.677.433 $ 4.053,629

TOTAL ASSETS $ 3.677.433 $ 4.053.629

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities:
Accounts payable, principally to contracted

service providers $ 1.555.170 $ 1.931.366

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,555,170 1,931,366

Fund Balance:
Restricted Fund Balance 2.122.263 2.12Z263

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE $ 3.677.433 $ 4.053.629

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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COUNTY OF DELAWARE, PENNSYLVANIA
EARLY INTERVENTION PROGRAM

BALANCE SHEETS
JUNE 30,2018 AND 2017

2018
ASSETS

2617

Receivable from Delaware County General Fund

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable^ principally to contracted
service providers

i-

i.

734.233

i^

734.233

i.

1.

i.

520.278

LZi

520.278

520^

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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COUNTY OF DELAWARE^ PENNSYLVANIA
MENTAL HEALTH PROGRAM

STATEMENTS OF REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,2018 AND 2017

2018 2017

REVENUE:
State allocated PA DHS funding
Federal funding passed through PA DHS
Other Federal funding
County funding, including required

matching funds
Provider revenue

Delaware County HealthChoices Program
Cost of Care and Reinvestment transfer

Interest income
Miscellaneous income

Total revenue

EXPENDITURES:
Wages and salaries
Employee benefits
Miscellaneous personnel expenses
Occupancy
Communications
Administrative supplies
Transportation
Miscellaneous operating expenses
Purchase affixed assets

County indirect costs
Program cost of purchased provider services

Total expenditures

Excess of revenue over expenditures

$30,691,241
915,479
134,161

899,307
7,376,529

2,328,920
869

172.323
42.518.829

679,489
311,472
70,205

104,932
29,163
10,192
19,793
8,162
5,709

102,106
41.177.606
42 J 18.829

$

$30,530»153
988,759
147,795

842,432
7,436,924

2.529J51
621

269.512
42J45J47

620:762
320,130
203,556
126»531
37,935

9,728
21,235
96,307
24^697

111,050
41.173.416
42.745.347

$

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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COUNTY OF DELAWARE, PENNSYLVANIA
INTELLECTUAL DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES PROGRAM

STATEMENTS OP REVENUE, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,2018 AND 2017

2018 2017

REVENUE:
State allocated PA DHS funding
Federal funding passed through

PADHS
Supports coordination - State
Supports coordination - Federal

Case Management TSM Federal Admin
Provider revenue
Interest income

Miscellaneous income
Total revenue

EXPENDITURES:
Wages and salaries

Employee benefits
Miscellaneous personnel expenses

Occupancy
Communications
Administrative supplies
Transportation
Miscellaneous operating expenses

Purchase of fixed assets
County indirect costs
Program cost of purchased provider services

Total expenditures

Excess of revenue over expenditures

Beginning Restricted Fund Balance 2.122*263 2.122,263

Ending Restricted Fund Balance $ 2.122.263 $ 2.122.263

See accompanying notes to financial statements

$ 9,741,407

1,241,589
4,792,813

26,376
40,418

48
2.538

15.845.189

1,070,470
557,526
232,183

59,230
18,247
7,939

13,639
4,540
8»3H

53,809
13.819.295
15.845.189

$ 9,076,330

1,243,164
4,502,826

26,367
49,726

72
-28

14.898.513

1,155,742
585,614
242,274
64,798
21,076

9,088
14,784

1.294
86,353
63,525

12.653.965
14>898.513



COUNTY OF DELAWARE, PENNSYLVANIA
EARLY INTERVENTION PROGRAM

STATEMENTS OF REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,2018 AND 2017

2018 2017

REVENUE:
State allocated PA DHS funding
Federal funding passed through PA DHS
County funding, including required

matching funds
Case management
Miscellaneous
Interest income

Total revenue

EXPENDITURES:
Wages and salaries
Employee benefits
Miscellaneous personnel expenses

Occupancy
Communications
Administrative supplies
Transportation
Miscellaneous operating expenses
Repair and maintenance ° fixed assets

County indirect costs
Program cost of purchased provider services

Total expenditures

Excess of revenue over expenditures

$ 4,493,515
800,288

581,538
416,076

10,456
-43

6.301.916

1,239,606
599,835
122,501
87,546
39,565
32,043
33,112
33,776

239
46,967

4.066J26
6.301.916

*

$ 4,315,903
1,101.398

595,257
477,105

_31
6.489.694

1,183,018
610,091
193,433
79,690
30,438
27,409
35,865
48,574

197
62,882

4.218.097
6.489.694

$

See accompanying notes to financial statements

-9-



COUNTY OF DELAWARE, PENNSYLVANIA
MENTAL HEALTH PROGRAM, INTELLECTUAL DEVELOPMENTAL
DISABILITIES PROGRAM, AND EARLY INTERVENTION PROGRAM

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,2018 AND 2017

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Oreanization

The County of Delaware, Pennsylvania Mental Health Program, Intellectual Develop-
mental Disabilities Program, and Early Intervention Program (Programs) are Special
Revenue Funds serving as agencies for the County of Delaware, Pennsylvania (County)
in planning, coordinating and administering a comprehensive range of state mandated
service programs for the benefit of eligible adults and children who are residents of
Delaware County. The Programs conduct a wide range of community-based services

for mental illness, emotional disorders and Intellectual Developmental Disabilities, and
support and services to families who have children with developmental delays. They
are administered by the Office of Behavioral Health and the Office of Intellectual
Developmental Disabilities under the umbrella of the County's Department of Human
Services. The Programs are funded principally by an annual funding allocation ifirom
the Pennsylvania Department of Human Services (PA DHS) and are therefore subject to
the regulations and directives prescribed by PA DHS. The state funding allocation is
customarify received by the Programs in quarterly installments.

General

The financial statements presented herein are intended to present the financial position
and results of operations of the Programs only and are not intended to present fairly the
financial position, results of operations^ or changes in financial position of Delaware
County or its Department of Human Services in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, The accompanying financial
statements of the Programs, whose fiscal years end on June 30, have been prepared
using the accrual basis of accounting.
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COUNTY OF DELAWARE, PENNSYLVANIA
MENTAL HEALTH PROGRAM, INTELLECTUAL DEVELOPMENTAL
DISABILITIES PROGRAM, AND EARLY INTERVENTION PROGRAM

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,2018 AND 2017

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
PROCEDURES (CONTINUED)

Property and Equipment

In accordance with PA DHS regulations. Program funds may not be used for the
acquisition cost of land or buildings. Mortgaged real estate may be charged to the
Programs by providers at the lesser of fair rental value or the actual cost of debt
principal and interest,

Title to fixed assets that are acquired with program funds remains with the County.
Upon termination or cancellation of a provider contract within a prescribed period, the
County may retain the fixed assets for County use, transfer them to another provider, or
sell them and utilize the proceeds in the program.

The Programs charge the acquisition cost of fixed assets to expense. Under generally
accepted accounting principles^ these costs would normally be capitalized and depreci-
ated over their useful lives. The insignificant dollar amounts of these expenditures
were as follows:

2ftI8 2017

Mental Health $5,709 $24,697
Intellectual Developmental Disabilities $8,311 $8^353
Early Intervention $ 54 $ -

Revenue

The principal source of revenue received by the Programs is from the Pennsylvania
Department of Human Services and includes the pass-through of Federal funds.
Revenue from this source is considered earned as approved expenditures are incurred.

The Programs also receive revenue support from the Delaware County General Fund,

including required matching funds, to fund the program activity. County funds are
considered earned m the period for which such funds are requested from the County.
Annually, any Program shortfall is funded by the County. Income earned by providers
in supplying services to the Programs is recorded as income by the Programs pursuant
to contract arrangements with the providers. The Programs also receive certain funding

from other sources, including other County Human Services programs.

-11-


